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SubmiSSion of AnnuAl RepoRT 
noRTheRn CApe TouRiSm AuThoRiTy

it gives me great pleasure to submit 
the Annual Report of the northern 
Cape Tourism Authority for the 
financial year 1 April 2010 to 31 
march 2011 for your information and 
scrutiny, as well as for presentation 
to the northern Cape provincial 
legislature and other relevant 
institutions.

This report presents our activities and outcomes for the period under review, while at 
the same time highlighting those challenges faced.  It also highlights our contribu-
tion towards the development goals of the Province and living the principles of Batho 
Pele in everything we do.  

Ensuring that the Northern Cape gets its equitable and increased share of the tour-
ism market has always been and will continue to be a challenging task.  I believe that 
this has been the year in which the board and NCTA staff truly excelled by closing 
the gaps and reaching those goals, which were once beyond our wildest dreams.  
Through hard work and creative ‘out-of-the-box’ approaches, we have managed an 
unprecedented level of success and a distinctly heightened profile for the Province.

It gives our Board great pride to present a notably comprehensive Annual Report, 
which outlines successes achieved in the finest detail as well as highlighting chal-
lenges experienced.  We have put in place every possible measure to convey these 
successes and challenges in a language that is easily assimilated by those working 
closely with tourism stakeholders as much as those to whom tourism is a relatively 
new concept in their respective portfolio.

I respectfully urge the Honourable MEC to specifically note some challenges with 
which the new Board will continue to grapple and which require the urgent support 
from the Provincial Executive, to whom we remain grateful for sharing our vision in 
their continued commitment towards tourism development. 

Yours sincerely

Karel Phentela
Chairperson of the Board of Directors

honourable John block

meC finAnCe, eConomiC DeVelopmenT AnD TouRiSm 

Dear MEC
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44 The provincial hosting of the Maloof Money Cup was a major accomplishment and 
a reverberating success. The positive spin-offs of this event had far-reaching effects 
including job creation, skills development, infrastructure improvement, youth devel-
opment and the establishment of a global media platform for both the event and the 
Northern Cape Province as a whole. The success of MMC 2011 stretched beyond the 
financial implications and also made a significant social impact.  The legacy of the 
state-of-the-art skate park will in no small way serve as a memento of a historic event 
hosted in the province of extremes.  

The 2011 MMC has served as the biggest catalyst to the enhancement of the provin-
cial tourism objectives of promoting extreme sports within the province. Through the 
hosting of this event the province has succeeded in introducing new feet, gained 
desirable global recognition, enlisted extensive community involvement and youth 
advancement.   For the next three years the NCTA will actively be involved with the 
Department of Social Development, Department of Sports and the skateboarding for 
Hope programme.  This programme aims to reach as many communities as possible 
to enhance skateboarding. The NCTA will also be involved with the Department of 
Tourism to assist the Mier community in preparation for 2013/14 Bloodhound Race.  It 
is projected that 10 000 people will visit this community over a period of three months. 

We believe the success of this event has advanced the Northern Cape eligibility to 
secure hosting rights to several other major events. This success of this event also 
proves that the repositioning strategy as the adventure and extreme sports destina-
tion in the country has been on point. The MMC achieved an impressive R1 606 042 
503 editorial value while Bloodhound that will be hosted in 2014 already realised an 
editorial value of R28 931 304.

The Northern Cape does not have the fast-paced urban appeal of other provinces but 
one of our unique selling points is that we can offer visitors the wide, open spaces 
that are so distinctive to our province. These characteristics of the Northern Cape 
might just be what we need to advance our venture into astrology and create a new 
type of tourism. With the announcement of the SKA bid in the near future South Afri-
ca and especially the people of the Northern Cape remains hopeful and positive that 
Scientists from across the globe will be conducting research on Northern Cape soils. 

We have, in addition, rightfully earned respect within the international scientific fra-
ternity for our cutting edge solar power initiatives. New opportunities for mining tour-
ism, renewable energy and research as well as tertiary education exist and we should 
be pro-active to take advantage of these to deliver on our developmental growth 
goals. That will certainly lead to improvement on last year’s figures where ‘the North-
ern Cape saw a 6.6% growth in international arrivals and earnings of R600-million in 
foreign investment. The province also received 400 000 domestic trips generating 
R400 million. Northern Cape sees the highest average spent at R970 per person with 
2.3 million bed nights spent and an average stay of 5.7 nights.  (Source:  South African 
Tourism,  3rd quarter statistics)

A significant development in the MICE market was the official opening of the Mittah 
Seperepere Convention Centre.  With a capacity of 2,500 seats and with the potential 
for future expansion, the facility was and continues to be marketed at an international 
level as a high tech convention centre.  It is anticipated to provide welcome and 
sizeable additional cash injection into the province. This facility will in no way com-
pete with individual business as its focus will be on attracting large national and in-

foReWoRD by ChAiRpeRSon  
KARel phenTelA

In presenting this report, the nCta 
reports back and reflect on our an-
ticipated direction as we enter a fresh 
year.  Crucial areas that need to be ad-
dressed remains the nCta’s versatility 
to capitalise on activities that can as-
sist to promote the province as a travel 
destination and how to take advantage 
of this opportunities to ensure addi-
tional feet and spend. 

During the year under review, the North-
ern Cape Tourism Authority effectively 
managed to facilitate the first inter-
national sports event in the Northern 
Cape, Kimberley. The hosting of the 2011 
Maloof Money Cup was yet another leap 
towards the implementation of our pro-
vincial turn-around strategy for SMME 
Support and Development, Socio-eco-
nomic upliftment and racial relations ad-
vancement. 
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vice Excellence Strategy,the NCTA has embarked on an extensive awareness cam-
paign to highlight the importance of excellent service throughout the province.  The 
Northern Cape Department of Tourism adopted the national strategy and is in the 
process of finalising the provincial service excellence strategy.  In preparation for this 
roll-out, the Northern Cape Tourism Authority launched its EXCELLENT SERVICE STARTS 
WITH ME public awareness campaign in November last year.  This was followed in 
December by the I Love Northern Cape campaign, which put the spotlight on tourism 
product owners taking responsibility for service standards and encouraging feedback 
from tourism consumers.  Follow-up workshops are still being conducted and will 
continue to all regions within the province and all tourism stakeholders. Hospitality 
and service excellence are two of the most effective ways of increasing what remains 
our most powerful marketing tool: word of mouth – especially when the social media 
are utilised. In this regard, our industry partners play an enormously important role. 
The wealth of the Northern Cape lies with its people and I truly believe that we can all 
make a contribution to ensuring that our visitors have exceptional experiences while 
visiting the Northern Cape.

There has never been a better time to focus our efforts on growing the tourism sec-
tor, with all that it holds for job creation, economic growth and development.  The 
NCTA and its partners will continuously strive to create platforms to keep in touch with 
local communities and raise awareness of those opportunities within the tourism sec-
tor.  We must all work closely together to make our every dream a reality.

In conclusion I would like to extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to the Hon-
ourable MEC John Block for his leadership and guidance. My sincere thanks and ap-
preciation also goes to the members of the NCTA’s Board of Directors.  Their collec-
tive leadership, knowledge, passion, commitment and realistic assessments ensure 
that we can continue to meet our objectives for tourism development and growth. 
Through their commitment the NCTA has once again achieved an unqualified audit 
report. Many thanks to the Head of Department, Mr. Patrick Seboko and all our col-
leagues at the Department of Economic Development and Tourism for their ongoing 
guidance and support. I would also like to acknowledge the NCTA Chief Executive 
Officer, Sharron Lewis and her staff, for maintaining their passionate and willingness 
to go the extra mile. 

Karel Phentela

Chairperson of the Board of Directors                                                                                         

NORTHERN CAPE TOURISM AUTHORITY      

May 2012 

ternational events that will stimulate the 
tourism market as a whole. The province 
has committed to align itself with South 
African Tourism’s emphasis towards the 
MICE sector and to set up a fully fledged 
Northern Cape Convention Bureau by the 
end of 2012.  

The tourism industry is by its nature de-
pendent on multi-stakeholder relations.  
Central to this is the success of the NCTA’s 
co-ordination function. This function ex-
tends to the NCTA’s maintaining of stake-
holder relations between organisations 
and co-ordinating tourism structures, as 
mandated by the Northern Cape Tourism 
Act.  In the absence of regional tourism 
forums, the NCTA Board embarked on a 
regional stakeholder partnership engage-
ment, starting off with the Green Kalahari 
region in Upington. This excursion has 
included the engagement of product 
owners within the region and valuable 
insight(s) was gained into the spectrum 
of tourism products, as well as a better 
grasp of the value and service levels on 
offer.

During the past year, NCTA received nu-
merous awards at various tourism and 
trade shows. However, awards are mean-
ingless without a firm commitment to-
wards service excellence province-wide.  
In support of the National Tourism Ser-
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66 PrOGraMMe 1 – MarKetInG SerVICeS 
beyonD eXpeCTATionS

Once again the time has come to reflect on what has been achieved when reviewed 
against our performance targets.    We market in the leisure marketing and business 
tourism (Meetings, Incentives, Conferencing, and Events – MICE) segments.  In pe-
rusing the National Tourism Sector Strategy, it is evident that the NCTA is well within 
the objectives in terms of our utilising in particular the MICE segment to help increase 
jobs and develop skills within the province.  The year under review was once again 
one for the consolidation and implementation of numerous strategies, notably in the 
MICE market.  In line with our ‘extreme’ repositioning, Northern Cape now owns the 
skateboarding niche in South Africa.  Anyone who visited Kimberley prior to MMC will 
likely on a return visit observe a raised awareness of the empowering skateboard-
ing sub-culture among previously disadvantaged youths.  The province continues to 
promote its full spectrum of extreme offerings, ranging from the aforementioned 
extreme sports niche to extreme adventure (eg Cape Namibia N7 Route), to extreme 
nature (eg wild flowers), to extreme culture, where visitors engage with indigenous 
communities such as the San.

AWARDS

• PMR Diamond Arrow Award 2011 for Leaders and Achievers

• Silver Award in the category “Best Stand” at the Outdoor Eco Adventure and Travel 
Expo

• The NCTA stand earned a Silver Award for “Best Tourism Stand” at the Namibia 
Tourism Expo and the Northern Cape entrepreneur stand earned a Bronze Award.

• We continue to launch the Northern Cape Tourism Service Excellence Awards an-
nually 

Accolades such as the above proved to an unprecedented level that our brand com-
munication is on target and translates well in a highly competitive environment.  Ef-
fective brand communication is a measure of our success, however attracting visitors 
and enticing them to return is where we truly benchmark ourselves.  The NCTA is com-
mitted to translating the National Responsible Tourism Guidelines, central to South 
Africa’s tourism policy, into a Northern Cape context.  South Africa has been the first 
country in the world to officially include a national government commitment towards 
responsible tourism, in line with key global tourism trends.  Linked to this is the NCTA’s 
commitment towards a robust product development programme that assists in link-
ing local product with market insights and demand.  Tourism here, as anywhere, re-
quires effective partnerships among government, local communities and the private 
sector in order to thrive.  The province has historically enjoyed the attentions of the 
eco-tourist and the culturally inclined visitor.  By their very nature, these visitors lean 
towards responsible tourism-oriented product, underscored by a strong emphasis on 
the continuous improvement of service levels.  In this regard, the NCTA facilitated 
for previously disadvantaged individuals working in the tourism sector to tour their 
own backyard, especially those from rural regions.  We shared key learnings from the 
NCTA’s experience of exhibiting and scooping awards at trade and consumer expos.  
Following the launch of the Northern Cape Tourism Service Excellence Awards in No-
vember 2011, this programme will be rolled out during 2012 to maintain and improve 
the standards of service quality within the province.  Against the backdrop of host-
ing mega-events such as the Maloof Money Cup, the Northern Cape should leave 
nothing to chance when it comes to service levels.  Service levels make or break a 

The yeAR in ReVieW

The purpose of this Annual Report is to re-
port on how the NCTA achieved its goals 
and objectives with regard to the follow-
ing programmes:

programme 1 – marketing Services 

programme 2 – Corporate Services

nCTA ACT obJeCTiVeS

Each and every activity of the Northern 
Cape Tourism Authority is underpinned 
by the Northern Cape Tourism Act.  In 
this way, the NCTA answers to a legal and 
academic framework, which guide our 
operations.  During the past few years, 
our successes can largely be attributed to 
the guidance that this Act provides.  The 
Act continually reminds us of our opera-
tional parameters.  We actively make use 
of what is stated in the Act to achieve 
our objectives and to lobby for support 
to achieve our goals.   It is significant to 
note that during the year under review 
the NCTA was no longer responsible for 
Witsand Nature Reserve (previously Pro-
gramme 3 in past annual reports).
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town, region or province’s reputation.  In 
a bid to raise awareness of the need for 
ongoing service excellence, we success-
fully launched the “I love Northern Cape” 
campaign to communities throughout 
the province in December 2011.

moniToRinG peRfoRmAnCe  

According to South African Tourism’s tour-
ist arrivals report of January to November 
2011: 

• Tourist arrivals to South Africa in 2011 
showed a slight decrease against that 
of 2010, with overall arrivals in 2011 at 
1 950 359 compared to the total figure 
of 2 010 439 in 2010. Arrivals from the 
European continent was slightly down 
with 1 136 127 for the period January 
to November 2011 vs. 1 188 517 for the 
same period in 2010. North America 
showed a slight increase with 2011 fig-
ures recorded at 313 244 against 2010 
arrivals of 309 645.  The Asian market 
also showed an improvement with 
271 200 arrivals in 2011 vs. 239 223 ar-
rivals in 2010.

• 54.7% of European visitors were re-
peat visitors, with up to 12 repeats 
with an average stay of 17 days and 
the Asian market an average of 16 
days stays. 

• Northern Cape performance in Quar-
ter 2 of 2011: 70.3% arrivals from Africa 
with 59% of that from Namibia, 8,7% 
from the Americas and 13,8% of arriv-
als from  Europe with UK at 4.6% of 
that total.  During the same quarter 
for 2010, the province had 67.9% ar-
rivals from Africa with 60.8% from Na-
mibia and 18.4% from total European 
arrivals with UK predominantly featur-
ing at 7.1%. 

• Total bed nights for the province in 
Quarter 2 of 2011 was 114 956 vs. 67 
221 in 2010 for the same period – a 
71% increase.

• Domestic arrivals for the same time 
under review showed an improve-
ment from 6.3 million in 2010 to 7,2 
million in 2011.

mileSToneS – JuST ReWARDS

The NCTA proudly counts the following among milestones achieved for 2011-2012:

foCuSinG ouR effoRTS: mAloof money Cup

In three words, Maloof Money Cup (MMC) was undoubtedly our most significant 
milestone.  Tourism requires effective partnerships among national, provincial and 
local government, local communities and the private sector in order to thrive.  To 
this end, the hosting of the memorably successful Maloof Money Cup (MMC) by the 
NCTA saw our team striving and succeeding in forging the crucial strategic partner-
ships to ensure that this event was successfully presented to the national and inter-
national market.  

A CleAR ViSion: STRATeGy foR GRoWTh

It has been almost two years since the decision was made to promote the province 
under the Extreme Northern Cape brand pillar in order to establish the Northern Cape 
as a Mecca for extreme sports, adventure activities and outdoor pursuits.  As a tour-
ism destination, we are obligated to grow our core markets, but at the same time we 
face the huge challenge of developing new markets and attracting niche markets – a 
major motivation behind the brand positioning.  

RepoSiTioninG bRAnD noRTheRn CApe

Our repositioning exercise required a major catalyst to serve as an anchor project 
for the endeavour.  Our hosting Maloof Money Cup proved to be the ideal vehicle.  
However, the MMC should not be viewed in isolation as the successful presentation 
of this event also made a huge impact on our national and global reputation and has 
already attracted numerous other national and international events – all of which will 
assist in growing the stature of our brand repositioning.

SKATeboARDinG foR hope

MMC will go down in history as having impacted positively on previously disadvan-
taged youth in the Northern Cape.  In particular, the national community outreach 
initiative Skateboarding for Hope encourages young South Africans, who may oth-
erwise have succumbed to a despondent future where they may have developed a 
substance abuse or criminal mindset, to focus their attentions on positive hobbies 
such as skateboarding which can indeed even become a profession.  By incentivising 
the youth to learn skateboarding skills, there can be no doubt that a new generation 
of skateboarders was born.  More specifically, skateboarding offers our youth a clean 
alternative lifestyle with minimal economic barriers to entry.  The groundbreaking 
programme engaged with youngsters across the country, from rural villages such 
as Kommagas in the Namakwa to urban hubs such as Soweto.  The Northern Cape 
Provincial Government, for its part, supported the development of skateboarding as 
a sporting code.  

leGACy pRoJeCTS

In a surreal moment that epitomised the culmination of every branding and develop-
mental exercise the NCTA had hitherto undertaken, this vision was consolidated into 
one history-making moment when Joe Maloof spoke on national television about 
how skateboarding provides not least the youth with a positive, healthy and afford-
able sport.  One of the international riders mentioned that the skate park created 
for Kimberley is a “dream park”.  Kimberley, as the starting point of industrialisation 
in South Africa, holds much symbolism, especially as we have a community with 
a large number of previously disadvantaged youth.  Maloof added that safe, legal 
skate parks are desperately needed across the globe to service the growing number 
of skateboarders.  A child or teenager can pick up a skateboard, go outside and 
participate in a healthy, positive activity. This is merely the beginning of what we be-
lieve will be a major movement that promotes positive change for especially children 
and youth across South Africa.  With the Maloof Money Cup returning to Kimberley 
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88 for the next four years, the profile of the 
sport will remain high and the search for 
and development of talented local skat-
ers will continue. MMC not only attracted 
thousands of visitors to the province, but 
also provided a global platform for the 
Northern Cape to showcase its unique 
attractions and diverse offerings to an im-
mense international as well as local tele-
vision and web audience.

impoRTAnT leSSonS

The NCTA team benefited from a tre-
mendous amount of skills transfer as we 
learned to think on the spot more than 
ever with the multi-tasking challenges 
that an event of the magnitude of MMC 
commands.  Although MMC encapsu-
lated an enormous amount of our time 
during the past year, we have gained 
many additional lessons from other NCTA 
initiatives.  We are resilient in the face of 
any who doubt that we can sustain the 
momentum.  In a province where dreams 
have indeed come true, it is vital that 
everyone must pull together.  This is a 
core Northern Cape strength.  It is in our 
cultural DNA to work in partnership for 
the common benefit of Northern Cape 
communities. Through strategic partner-
ing, we can continue to secure ongoing 
commitment and unfailing dedication.  
Through good corporate governance, 
the NCTA is able to effectively lobby for 
further public-private sector support.  It is 
only by believing in ourselves ahead of 
others believing in us, that we can truly 
promote all that is positive in the inter-
national media.  This is the essence of 
the I Love Northern Cape campaign.  We 
must stop selling ourselves short with any 
negative intonation.  In order to continue 
to be viewed as a major player in the 
international arena, in particular in our 
extreme sporting niche, we must take 
advantage of opportunities and continue 
to follow up with a dogged determina-
tion on any leads for the hosting of other 
major sporting events.  We succeeded 
admirably against all odds and the North-
ern Cape will never again be perceived 
in the same manner as in the past.  We 
have shown that in hosting an event of 
the calibre of MMC, we can attract other 
events, such as the major canoe, aircraft, 
paragliding and water-skiing events we 
have also hosted during the year under 
review.  

ouR SponSoRS TAKe A boW

All credit to our sponsors, Kumba Iron Ore (R10 million and the competition present-
er rights); Standard Bank (R1 million towards the successful hosting of the event); 
First national Bank and South african tourism (Marketing and PR partner).

ouTComeS

In terms of the Northern Cape Tourism Act, we have more than met all its objectives.  
We have dramatically advanced Brand Northern Cape as we secured global recogni-
tion with notable media imprints.  MMC was a sell-out and exceeded all expectations.  
The economic impact delivered to the broader Northern Cape community has been 
significant.  The enormous influx of skateboarding enthusiasts had a direct effect on 
the tourism and hospitality industry as a whole.  

Thanks not least to our hosting of Maloof Money Cup, South Africa is now officially 
recognised as an emerging skateboarding market in a report titled Boardsports: A 
Global Strategic Business Report by Companies and Markets, an organisation which 
describes itself as the home of the world’s largest database of market research and 
company profiles.  Skateboarding is one of the fastest growing sporting disciplines 
around the globe.  

Our coverage of MMC was the most the province had ever realised.  The MMC web-
site received more media impressions for the Kimberley event than for its Washington 
DC counterpart.  MMC editorial coverage achieved an impressive R1 606 042 503.50 
editorial value.  Bloodhound, for its part, realised an editorial value of R28 931 304.42.  
Our total national editorial value for the year under review was R254 230 791.37.  Total 
international editorial value tallied up to R629 337 406.20 (Source: newsclip Media 
Monitoring, Meltwater news report & limelight Pr agencies USa).  

We invested into 250 paid advertisements in international and South African media.  
These advertisements reached in excess of 15 million viewers or readers at a ROI of 
R15 724 707,00 (Source: Newsclip Media Monitoring & Meltwater News Report).

ouR miCe STRATeGy GAinS momenTum

Building on our MMC success, we hosted the 7th International Wildlife Ranching Con-
vention, with 200 delegates from South Africa, neighbouring African countries and 
from around the world.  The Bloodhound launch created 380 jobs.  The media value 
during the visit of Andy Green and his team was R22 million with a reach of 19,8 mil-
lion viewers.  2013 is soon on the horizon as this is the year when the bid to break the 
world landspeed record will be undertaken at Hakskeenpan.  The resultant exposure 
surrounding this attempt has already created another foothold for the province in a 
related field as the pan will also be the venue for the inaugural Kalahari Desert Speed 
Week in August – the first event of its kind to be hosted on the African continent.

A significant coup for our MICE bids was the official opening of the Mittah Seperere 
Convention Centre, which with a capacity of 2,500 has the potential for future expan-
sion.  We concluded Phase 1 of our website upgrade.  The NCTA e-Newsletter was 
disseminated to roughly 13,500 subscribers at last count.  We are making extensive 
use of 15 social media platforms, which is being grown on a regular basis.

We entered into numerous joint marketing initiatives with tour operators situated both 
in core markets and in tactical markets where we stand to gain fresh business. JMA’s 
encourage the development of niched experiences in a competitive, demanding and 
oftentimes fickle marketplace.  We kept well in line with our annual target of 4 JMA’s.
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market Specific agreement 
Dutch: Highline and Djoser (Djoser is 
the 4th largest Dutch-based tour operat-
ing company and works in the German 
market) 

14 day tour promoting the Namakwa 
flowers and the rest of the province, with 
four departures during July and August

Poland and Eastern Europe - Highline 18 day tour offering of the Northern Cape
German: Boomerang Reizen 18 day self-drive package featuring the 

Northern cape for 18 of those days ex-
clusively

10 Day Cape to Namibia offering

16 Day Adventure offering
Chinese: Longway Travel 4—5-day package of Kimberley and sur-

rounds
Belgium: HOBO Reizen 12-14-day package promoted in their 

2012-2013 catalogue the flower offering  
of Namakwa and the province

The NCTA continues to support and assist in the development of community and 
SMME projects.  These initiatives have been actively encouraged to participate on 
national and international platforms, where NCTA has a brand presence. 35.7% of 
the NCTA’s budget was spent on community development – a figure of 2,978 173.18

The John Taolo region was proud to be selected as the host for Tourism Month 2011.  
Each year, a different town in the Northern Cape is identified to host this annual high-
light on the provincial and national tourism calendar.  The forum of Tourism Month 
was employed to promote the Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year Award 
(ETAYA) winners.  The Tourism Month 2011 theme, “Linking Cultures”, was well suited 
to the cultural tourism niche that attracts many visitors.  For Tourism Month, we fo-
cused on youth and local communities, especially through Skateboarding for Hope 
activations.  In this way, the NCTA could further expose our tourism product, which 
highlights our cultural assets, in particular community-based tourism ventures.  We 
placed much emphasis on media activations, as we always do during this important 
event on our calendar.  Stakeholder relations between the government and the pri-
vate sector are notably enhanced through Tourism Month activations.

PrOGraMMe tWO: COrPOrate SerVICeS
The Northern Cape Tourism Authority views good corporate governance practice as 
integral to good performance. We are committed to promoting sustainable confi-
dence in our conduct as an organisation and as a corporate citizen. While the Board 
oversees the overall process and structure of corporate governance, each business 
unit and every employee within the organisation is responsible for promoting good 
corporate governance practices. Our values and philosophies are the framework 
against which we measure behaviour, practices and activities, to assess the character-
istics of good governance. Our values require staff to behave with integrity, consis-
tency and to uncompromisingly display moral strength and conduct which promotes 
trust. The NCTA is guided in its commitment to the principles of good corporate gov-
ernance by the King III Code and Report on Corporate Governance in SA 2009. The 
Northern Cape Tourism Entity Act, 2008 (Act No. 5 of 2008) has been in operation for 
two financial years, it remains a challenge in terms of aligning the organisation with 
the ever changing reporting and compliance requirements of a Sec 3C Public entity. 
We have been able to meet all our statutory reporting deadlines during the period 
under review, but due to a lack of resources we were however unable to comply with 

indaba  
maloof  
activation
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the following requirements:

• Establishment Internal Audit function.

• Establishment of Supply Chain Man-
agement unit.

Together with the Department of Eco-
nomic Development & Tourism we have 
established an Audit Committee during 
the period under review. The Audit com-
mittee consists of three members, two 
non executive directors and one repre-
sentative from the Department of Eco-
nomic Development and Tourism. The 
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Rob 
Williams. The following Board and sub 
committee meetings were held during 
the 2011/2012 financial period:

Committee no. of meetings
Board 4
Exco Committee 12
Audit Committee 1

Together with our parent entity we have 
established a CFO forum that deals with 
transversal issues relating to corporate 
governance, risk management, compli-
ance and best practices within the public 
sector. 

Challenges

In the absence of a fully staffed supply 
chain management unit we have adapt-
ed operations within the organisation in 
order to implement the approved Supply 
Chain Management Policy. The mission 
of the Northern Cape Tourism Authority 
is to be recognised domestically and in-
ternationally as a highly desirable tourist 
destination. This can only be achieved 
through the attraction, recruitment, de-
velopment and retention of high qual-
ity staff and to achieve this, the NCTA 
provides a full function - integrated Hu-
man Resources service which has moved 
steadily over the last two (2) years to play 
a more strategic role in the planning and 
decision-making processes of the NCTA. 
The expansion of the marketing and 
Business Tourism units bears testimony 
to our commitment to improve our out-
puts in these core business units. 

Continuous processes have evolved on 
organisational development which gave 

rise to the appointment of a Marketing Communications Officer to drive the Public 
Relations and communication initiatives. 

Training and Development forms an integral part of our focus in this ever changing 
environment therefore the following training interventions took place:

• Continuous emphasis has been placed on staff development to improve leader-
ship and management through coaching and mentoring. 

• Though training has been more challenging due to a lack of financial resources 
the NCTA has trained 4 junior staff members on frontline service excellence to 
improve output to clients and partners. 

• Furthermore training was conducted on report writing skills to address shortcom-
ings in the presentation and compilation of operational reports. 

• The lack of capacity to produce Pastel financial statements has also been ad-
dressed through training interventions.

• Concerted efforts were also made to address the skills gap in terms of asset man-
agement processes. 

• The approach adopted by the NCTA to utilise social media as a meaningful market-
ing platform has also resulted in a formal training intervention in this regard.  

The creation and expansion of an equitable and diverse workforce remains key to 
our commitment to governmental targets thus we have made considerable steps to 
address inequalities by addressing this gap. 

pRioRiTy AReAS foR 2012

• Continue to highlight the Northern Cape ‘extreme’ brand proposition in interna-
tional and domestic media as well as to the travel trade. 

• Continue to advance the Northern Cape a MICE destination.

• A continued commitment towards broad-based black economic empowerment, 
tourism SMME development and transformation within the sector. 

• We must continue to emphasise destination access and visitor mobility in the 
province. 

• Service excellence must remain the driving force behind every worker in this prov-
ince, who indirectly or directly touches upon the tourism industry in his or her 
daily line of work.

• Retain status of unqualified audit report.

• Strive to achieve our economic objectives of building the economy of the NC 

• Continue to invest at least one third of our budget on local businesses. 

• Sign up  more JMA nationally and international – special focus on SADC

• We need to explore, develop and capitalise on gains made to date with regard to 
the development of an industry “brand family” of facilities i.e. accommodation 
and tourist attractions, tour operators, tourist guide and industry organisations 
that endorse the brand and use it in conjunction with their own brands in their 
marketing collateral.  With the ever increasing number of big ticket government 
and private events being hosted in the province – notably local and provincial 
festivals and sports events as well as the burgeoning business tourism niche – 
this presents the ideal opportunity to further capitalise on this particular strategy.  
Every available opportunity to enhance Brand Northern Cape is exploited to its 
fullest with the available resources. 
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COnClUSIOn
I am pleased to report that the NCTA now 
has systems in place to fully report back 
on the impact of the provincial govern-
ment’s increased investment into tour-
ism, notably the hosting of major events.  
Out of the sheer necessity, given the vol-
ume of major events we are hosting, a fo-
cused team effort has become a necessi-
ty in our daily undertakings.  We have the 
eyes of the international and domestic 
media upon us and cannot afford to let 
them down.  We achieved all this – and 
more – despite the severe human and fi-
nancial resource challenges we continue 
to face. 

Our level of organisation can now justifiably be termed as of world-class standards.  
We are au fait with the protocol of organising a mega-event to exacting, global stan-
dards.  Success begets success and this leads us into new frontiers.  

The investment into tourism (especially into the marketing of major events) time and 
again shows returns in many areas, for example potential investors are enticed, com-
munity pride levels are raised, legacy projects are created, skills are developed and 
jobs of a permanent or temporary nature are created.  We now have personal experi-
ence of how good it feels to impact on so many individuals both locally, as well as 
regionally, nationally and internationally.  We can only build on our success and this 
spurs us on into the future.  It has been a long and at times challenging journey to 
reach this pinnacle of NCTA success.  Along the way, we have gained many lessons 
that now pave the way for an even more successful future.  With support, commit-
ment and dedication, the Northern Cape can continue to grow its MICE sector.  It is 
no exaggeration to say that our time has come.  Northern Cape has well and truly 
arrived and landed on the international tourism stage.  

I would like to hail each of my staff members who deliver their very best at all times

A special word of thanks goes to our Board of Directors, especially the Executive Com-
mittee, for their unwavering support and commitment to support the professionalism 
and good management that we all pride ourselves on.

Chief executive officer

Chinese delegation

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012
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ViSion  
The Northern Cape is South Africa’s premier destination for extreme escapism, explo-
ration and adventure with tourism growth outstripping the national average.  Tourism 
exists in harmony with nature and is a major generator of jobs, income and com-
munity pride. 

miSSion

The NCTA promotes the Northern Cape as a highly desirable tourism destination, in a 
responsible and sustainable manner.

GoAlS

• To achieve above-average growth in domestic and international tourist arrivals 
and revenues, focusing specifically on improving the market yield of tourism and 
achieving:

• Increased expenditure by tourists visiting the province;

• Reduced seasonality and improved tourist flows and revenues throughout the 
year;

• Longer average stays per tourist.

• To establish a sought after and widely recognized Northern Cape tourism brand.

• To coordinate and optimize the marketing efforts and resources of the Govern-
ment, the private sector and tourism communities.

• To work closely with the Department in packaging and presenting tourism attrac-
tions and experiences at the highest possible standard and in accordance with 
market demand.

• To support transformation of the industry through improved marketing exposure 
and access, with a particular focus on tourism SMMEs.

ouR Role

The NCTA will actively contribute to the economic growth of the Northern Cape within 
national and provincial policies and guidelines through marketing the Northern Cape 
Province effectively and efficiently to the selected target markets and market seg-
ments. 

obJeCTiVeS of The enTiTy

• The managing, planning and directing of the marketing activities of all sectors of 
the Province’s tourism industry, namely meetings, incentives, conventions, exhibi-
tions, events and leisure marketing and visitor and support services;

• The facilitation of the development of new tourism products and destinations 
throughout the Provinces;

• Co-operation with other bodies involved in the marketing of trade and investment 
in the Province;

• Providing a vehicle which facilitates public and private sector co-operation, partici-
pation decision-making and funding in the context of marketing the Province as a 
tourism destination;

• Aligning marketing activities in all sectors of tourism in the Province, in collabora-
tion with existing entities;

• Facilitating the pursuit of transformation and empowerment goals within all sec-
tors of the Province’s tourism industry;

• Fostering relations and entering into agreements with organizations of all kinds, 
both public and private, for the purpose of promoting the objectives of the Entity; 
and

• Fostering close co-operation between the public and private sectors in the pursuit 
of tourism growth for the benefit of all the people of the Province.

The Northern Cape Tourism Authority is 
registered as a Section 3C Public Entity 
and is seated in Kimberley, the capital city 
of the Northern Cape Province.

The Northern Cape Tourism Authority was 
established in April 1998 and is governed 
in accordance with its Articles of Associa-
tion and the Provincial Tourism Act (Act 
Number 5 of 1998).

phySiCAl ADDReSS

Tourism House, 14 Dalham Road,  
Belgravia, Kimberley, 8301

poSTAl ADDReSS

Private Bag X5017, Kimberley, 8300

ConTACT numbeRS

Telephone: 053 – 833 1434  
(International: +27 +53 +833 1434)

Facsimile: 053 – 831 2937  
(International: +27 +53 +831 2937)

E-mail:  
reception.ncta@telkomsa.net 

Website:  
www.experiencenortherncape.com 

boARD of DiReCToRS 

Mr K Phentela (Chairperson)
Ms B Bopape
Mr A Vass
Mr R Williams
Mr J van Vuuren
Mr R Loko
Ms A van Wyk
Ms H Samson

mAnAGemenT AnD boARD’S TeRm 
of offiCe

The Board of Directors of the Northern 
Cape Tourism Authority appointed an 
Executive Committee to oversee the day-
to-day management of the Authority’s af-
fairs.  The Executive Committee meets on 
a monthly basis and when special circum-
stances require an ad hoc meeting is ar-
ranged.  The full Board of Directors meets 
on a quarterly basis.
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pRoGRAmme 1
MarKetInG SerVICeS
Marketing Services comprises the following six key areas:

• Brand Management and Promotion

• Domestic Leisure Marketing

• International Leisure Marketing

• MICE and Events Development

• Market Research and Information Management

• Special Strategic Projects

A comparison of the approved budgeted figures and the actual expenditure is 
included as part of the audited annual financial statements.

KeY PerFOrManCe area 1:  BranD ManaGeMent anD PrOMOtIOn
Aim: To develop and promote a highly sought after Northern Cape Tourism Brand to remain top of mind provincially, nationally 
and internationally

Strategy Action performance Targets performance

local Brand appli-
cation

Apply the brand at 
key visitor gateways 
in the province

Brand touch points

Identify key visitor gateways e.g. 
airports, border posts, entry routes 
and boundaries, key tourism town 
entrances, visitor centres, etc. and 

Negotiate agreements with relevant 
authorities and apply branding e.g. 
welcome signs and boards, directional 
and interpretive signage, etc.

Inventory and prioriti-
zation of brand touch 
points

Agreements regarding 
brand application at 
main points 

Signage erected at 3 
points Y1 and 3 points 
each year thereafter

Achieved.

Destination branding developed and 
on display at Kimberley and Uping-
ton Airport.

The Northern Cape’s social media, 
comprising 18 platforms, are increas-
ingly being visited and thereby fur-
ther increasing the brand exposure 
nationally and internationally.   

Brand endorsement

Explore and develop an industry 
“brand family” of facilities, operators, 
industry organisations that endorse 
the brand and use it in conjunction 
with their own brands

Co-operative branding 
agreements with a key 
private operators 

Achieved. 

indaba maloof 
activatation

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012
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Strategy Action performance Targets performance

Branded Collateral

Make the brand 
visible by produc-
ing and distributing 
branded destination 
and corporate mar-
keting collateral

produce printed marketing  
collateral:

Northern Cape Consumer Travel 
Guide 

Northern Cape Travel Map

Northern Cape poster series 

Mice Brochure

High quality printed 
marketing materials 
produced and at least 
50% distributed Y1 and 
100% in Y 2

Achieved.  

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved

Produce Corporate marketing  
collateral:

NCTA banners, signage

Corporate wear

Corporate stationery

Corporate gifts

Desk  calendars

Northern Cape and 
NCTA highly visible 
throughout province and 
industry

Achieved.

Achieved.

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Strategy Action performance Targets performance

E-marketing  
materials

Produce electronic marketing  
collateral

Electronic photo-library

Northern Cape E Guide – interactive 
sales cd to assist tour operators selling 
the Northern Cape more effectively 

Northern Cape tour itineraries as sales 
aid to travel trade

High quality electronic 
marketing materials 
produced and at least 
50% distributed Y1 and 
100% in Y 2

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Green Kalahari 
canoe  
marathan
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Apply the brand at key visitor gate-
ways in the province

brand Touch points
Flagship Provincial Tourism Information 
Centre – Kimberley:  the brand layout con-
sultation with the Department of Tourism 
has begun, with a completion date of 
June 2012. Successful negotiations with 
Kimberley Airport Management has led 
to the continued display of the Northern 
Cape branding at the Arrivals and Depar-
ture Halls. The Gateway Centres at Beau-
fort West and Van Rijnsdorp were closed 
down.

brand Application
Ongoing activities, media mentions and 
our improved web and social media pres-
ence have raised the awareness of the 
Northern Cape brand within all our target 
markets and positioned the destination 
favorably as a desirable holiday destina-
tion. Our local and district municipalities 
continue to support the brand:

District municipalities
• Namakwa

• Diamantveld

• Kgalagadi

• Pixley Ka Seme

local municipalities
• Upington

• Kuruman

• Kimberley

• De Aar

• Sol Plaatje

brand endorsement
The Northern Cape brand continues to 
grow from strength to strength both na-
tionally and locally. The Northern Cape 
logo is constantly being used by accom-
modation facilities, tour operators and 
tour guides in their marketing collateral 
as well as by provincial departments dur-
ing their events and activities.  It is used 
by various sporting codes, government 
and the private sector.  Our brand mate-
rial is further extensively and effectively 
used during local and provincial festivals 
to promote the Northern Cape brand.  We 
are optimising every possible platform to 
have the brand prominently displayed.

BranDeD COllateral – Make the brand visible by producing and distributing 
branded destination and corporate marketing collateral

Branded collateral, in this instance printed and corporate marketing collateral, is our 
primary ally in raising brand visibility via the production and distribution of branded 
destination and corporate marketing collateral.  The strategy is to produce and distrib-
ute collateral which not only endorses our brand but also provides quality information 
about the Northern Cape as a destination with its unique offerings. 

The following marketing and promotional material has been produced to enhance, 
expand and strengthen our brand image and positioning:

Marketing Material Produced Objective

Maps  and guides

• Northern Cape guides:  6  000

• Northern Cape maps:    2  000

• Business Tourism brochures:  200

• Brand awareness

• Image building

• Visibility

• Positioning

• Professionalism

• Information
Pamphlets

• N12 Marketing Pamphlets:  10 000

• Monster Mob  Information  

• Maloof  Money Cup:  50 000

• Marketing Surveys:  10 000

posters 

• Maloof:  50 000

Printed posters for, Apollo Festival and 
Carnarvon Festivals further increasing 
the Northern Cape brand exposure.

• Brand awareness

• Image building

• Positioning

• Professionalism

exhibition material

• Outdoor/Exhibition display:  1

• Outdoor/Destination billboards:  10

• Wing banners:  21

• Brand Pillar banners:  7

• Trigger systems:  4

• Gazebo’s:  2

• Banana Logo’s:  10

• Umbrella’s:  4

• Pull up banners:  8

• Cluster banner:  1

• Brand awareness

• Image building

• Visibility

• Positioning

• Professionalism 

• Information

• Brand Pillar awareness

lOCal BranD aPPlICatIOn 

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012
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Corporate Wear

• I love northern Cape T-Shirts:  150

• Maloof  T-shirts 

• Tourism Month T-shirts

• Indaba Corporate wear

• Brand awareness

• Image building

• Visibility

• Positioning

• Messaging

• Building brand ambassadors

• Living the brand at all levels
Desk Calendars

• produced and distributed:  500

• Image building

• Awareness

• Visibility

• Communication

• Professionalism

e-MarKetInG MaterIalS 
E-marketing is the way to go for any organisation not only in the SMME sector, but also 
any major public or private sector organisations.  Time is money and the prospective 
visitor would most likely respond favorably by rapidly booking their holiday (or via 
their tour operator if they are enquiring on behalf of the visitor) provided that infor-
mation is timeously supplied.  The quality of the information is important.  So is the 
accessibility.  Most travelers prefer information in an electronic format that they can 
easily file on their computers or cellphones.  In terms of e-Marketing materials, the 
ongoing expansion of our electronic photo library remains as important as ever.  The 
NCTA is at the top of its game with regard to e-Marketing materials as this greatly aids 
our relationship with international and domestic media and travel trade.  

e-marketing material produced objective
• NC Interactive E –guides:  1 000 

• NC tour itineraries:  200

• Brand awareness

• Image building

• Visibility

• Positioning

• Messaging

• Brand endorsement

• Brand ambassadors

• Professionalism

• Sales Aid

• Information

• Communication
photographic library

Expanding library photographs:  800

• Ensure new and appropriate photo-
graphic material required for both 
printed  and e  -platforms i.e. website, 
e-newsletter and brochures and ad-
verts

• Destination marketing and promo-
tion

• Sales aids

• Media aid

16indaba  
maloof  
Activation
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KeY PerFOrManCe area 2: DOMeStIC leISUre MarKetInG
Aim: To exceed average national growth levels pertaining to South Africans visiting, staying and spending on holiday travel in the 
Northern Cape

Strategy Actions performance Targets performance

Domestic tactical 
Destination    
Campaigns

launch various local promotion cam-
paigns 

Easter Campaign

Festive Season Campaign

Attract an additional 
R4,5 million tourism 
revenue for a 
spend/return ratio of 
1:30

Achieved.

Achieved.

launch cross-border Campaigns

Floral Campaign 

N7 Campaign (Namibia, Western Cape)

Investigate possibilities with other prov-
inces

Attract an additional 
R3,9 million tourism 
revenue for a 
spend/return ratio of 
1:30

Achieved.

Achieved. 

Achieved

extreme advertising Campaign 

Multi-media campaign aimed at identified 
target audiences 

Attract an additional 
R45 million tourism 
revenue for a 
spend/return ratio of 
1:30

Achieved

Flagship events

Maloof Campaign 

Bloodhound

Raise brand awareness 
of NC among MMC 
visitors

Achieved

Achieved
Domestic exhibitions

Promote the destina-
tion at domestic key 
consumer fairs 

Special campaign of-
fers promoted

Regional & SMME 
participation

Competitions etc. to 
build  CRM database

Exhibit at:

Rand Show - JHB

Outdoor Eco and Tourism Show - JHB

Getaway Show Johannesburg

Distribute 600 
leaflets; Interface 
with visitors; 
contacts captured 

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved. 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Strategy Actions performance Targets performance
Brand awareness/ 
tourism Month

Promote brand pride 
among tourism indus-
try stakeholders (e.g. 
DEAT, private sector 
etc.), and the popula-
tion at large with a 
specific focus on Tour-
ism Month

tourism Month

Launch a tourism month awareness 
campaign tied to Sho’t Left. Rotate tourism 
month in various regions

Tourism events or 
initiatives in at 
least 6 towns in 
province

Achieved. 

launch a community tourism support  
programme

Programme to assist local school groups to 
travel and explore the province

At least 10 schools 
participating Y1, 25 Y2 
and 40 Y3

Achieved. 

Stage tourism awards

Annual Northern Cape tourism industry 
awards with independent panel of judges 
and gala awards evening

Successful awards eve-
ning with participation 
of all key stakeholders

With the changes proposed 
and announced on national 
level, the Service Excellence 
Awards for 2011 have been 
postponed and an awareness 
campaign focusing on the im-
portance of increasing our tour-
ism service levels have been 
launched in November 2011.

Domestic media and 
Pr

Conduct media 
editorial promotion 
initiatives

Media educationals

Conduct 2 domestic leisure media road 
shows to showcase the province. 

Four positive articles 
published per month

Achieved 

Achieved 

outdoor stand 
Johannesburg
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local promotional Campaigns

With the execution of promotional cam-
paigns, we strengthen our target mar-
kets’ awareness towards the destination 
and its tourism offerings, aside from its 
unique seasonal experiences. 

easter Campaign  - “northern Cape – 
your easter experience”

The Easter campaign, was launched in 
destination magazines and consumer 
magazines, was also coupled with a 
small survey. The purpose of NCTA run 
surveys is to set a benchmark baseline 
for year by year assessment of the des-
tination performance and service levels. 
The campaign’s objective was to promote 
the Northern Cape as the Easter Destina-
tion for families with its unique tourism 
offerings such as hikes and walks, good 
weather and family activities. 

Articles 138

Reach 4,505,796

Value R3,845,508

n12 Campaign – “Take a Sho’t left to 
the northern Cape”

The campaign was launched on the 15th 
December to take advantage of the in-
creased traffic flow through the province 
and again coupled with a destination 
questionnaire to determine stays and 
usages of provincial tour attractions and 
service levels. Ending on 23 December 
the activation was stationed in Kimberley, 
Warrenton, Three Sisters, and Britstown.  
50 students were employed for the dura-
tion of the campaign.

The term Sho’t Left has been used 
by South African Tourism, and by 
extension, within the provincial 
tourism structures, for almost a de-
cade.  In essence, “Taking a Sho’t 
Left” refers to a domestic traveller 
turning off the main ‘highways and 
byways’ to truly explore the diverse 
and often time lesser known gems, 
notably in the rural areas of South 
Africa. The N12 campaign included 
the towns of Warrenton, Kimber-
ley, Britstown, and Victoria West.  
The campaign set out to promote 

DOMeStIC taCtICal DeStInatIOn CaMPaIGnS 

the Northern Cape as an alternative summer holiday destination, or a 
stop-over while enjoying the trip along the N12.  The campaign aimed at 
promoting the N12 as an alternative route to the N1.  The N12 is a safe 
travel option across the Northern Cape and the country en route to the 
coast.  There remains plenty of scope for the Northern Cape to continue 
to capitalise on ‘routes marketing’ as it has proven immensely popular 
in the renowned Western Cape “Route 66” world’s-longest-wine-route 
example.  In order to increase visitor numbers to our region, we capitalise 
on the province’s proximity to several of South Africa’s major highways.

Articles 104

Reach 32,216,569

Value R12,697,105

Cross border Campaigns

floral Campaign

Northern Cape Tourism once again embarked on an awareness campaign 
to promote the exceptional flower offering as well as other activities in 
the Namakwa region.  This took the form of a print advertisement cam-
paign supported by an extensive editorial campaign in all media, ranging 
from print to electronic to social media. Weekly flower hotspot updates, 
together with local tourism office contact details were communicated via 
the media and our social platforms. A dedicated online and print advertis-
ing campaign was launched to promote this spectacular natural Northern 
Cape experience. 

n7 Campaign

Renewed promotions and awareness towards the N7 was launched at 
Windhoek show with a trade and media breakfast.  The partnership re-
printed 10 000 maps in May and the website is continuously being up-
dated.

A multi-stakeholder collaboration with Cape Town Routes Unlimited, 
West Coast Tourism, NCTA, and Namibia Tourism began almost 4 years 
ago.  The stakeholders are collectively working on updates and activities 
on the website to be re-launched at Indaba 2012. Updates on our new 
website will be loaded on this site to ensure NCTA content is updated 
and live.  This ongoing campaign is continuously promoted by all entities.  
Route signage on the Northern Cape section is yet to be completed.    

Articles 180

Reach 719,564,080

Value R626,244,665

extreme Advertising Campaign

The NCTA has successfully and extensively promoted the province as an extreme des-
tination and our striking and strategic advertising campaigns has further entrenched 
these messages in our target market’s mindsets. The brand pillars were also well 
promoted and communicated in similar fashion in select number of publications na-
tionally and internationally.

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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international and SADC

Publication area location advert focus

Frequency of 
Publication 
and no adverts 
Insert 

Print run Viewership
Media Value 

rand 

Explore South 
Africa

Africa/Europe Adventure,  
Outdoor

Quarterly x1 10 000 80 000 280 701

Experience 
South Africa

Africa/Europe Adventure,  
Outdoor

Biannual x1 127 000 200 000 185 000

Sűd- Afrika Germany Flower Campaign, 
Extreme  
Experiences

Quarterly x2  60 000 450 000 675 000

Travel Africa United Kingdom Adventure,  
Outdoor

Quarterly x3 69 000 600 000 169 000

Encounter 
Africa

Africa/ Europe Adventure,  
Outdoor

Bi-Annual x 1 50 000 480 000 493 498

Kapstadt.com International Flowers & Skate-
boarding

Annual x1 30 000 75 000 35 000

SANEC  
Magazine

Netherlands/SA NC as investment 
destination

Annual x1 10 000 79 618 159 236

Mein Sűdliches 
Afrika

Germany Extreme  
experiences

Annual x1 30 000   90 000 207 000

AA Traveller National and  
International

Adventure,  
Outdoor

Annual 1 85 000 400 000 148 000

Die  
Republikein

SADC Namibia Extreme  
Adventure

Weekly x1 39 000 120 000 312 000

Algemeine 
Zeitung

SADC Namibia Extreme  
Adventure

Weekly x1 39 000 120 000 312 000

Namibian Sun SADC Namibia Extreme  
Adventure

Weekly x1 39 000 120 000 312 000

total 15 588 000 2 814 618 3 288 435

Advertising:  national

publication Area location Advert focus

frequency of 
publication 
and no Ad-
verts insert 

print run Viewership
media Value 

Rand 

Cape Etc. National Adventure,  
Outdoor

Bi-annual  2 20 000 400 000 415 000

High Flyers National Adventure, 
Outdoor, Flowers, 
Skateboarding

Monthly  2 30 000 800 000 348 690

Out There National Adventure,  
Outdoor

Monthly x 2 20 000 110 000 334 500

Franschhoek 
Style

Western Cape/
National

Lifestyle. Outdoor Monthly  x 1 10 000 29 000 144 000

Airport Maga-
zine

National Adventure,  
Outdoor, Flowers

Monthly x 2 80 000 100 000 220 000

Passport National Adventure, 
Outdoor, Flowers, 
Skateboarding

Monthly x 3 120 000 400 000 701 754
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publication Area location Advert focus

frequency of 
publication 
and no Ad-
verts insert 

print run Viewership
media Value 

Rand 

AbouTime National in-flight Adventure,  
Outdoor

Monthly x 2 80 000 400 000 323 000

Blue Train National Adventure,  
Outdoor, Flower

Monthly x 3 120 000 210 000 465 200

Dirty Boots National, Interna-
tional

Adventure,  
Outdoor

Annual x 1  30 000  50 000 138 700

Mamas & Papas National Skateboarding Monthly x 2 28 000 37 308   39 834
Tourism Tatler National Flowers & Skate-

boarding  
Campaign

Monthly x 2 38 840 195 000 249 016

Travel Ideas National Flowers, Skate-
boarding; NC 
Your Easter  
Destination,  
Adventure,  
Outdoor

Monthly x 3 66 000 270 000 549 783

021 Magazine Cape Town Flower Campaign Monthly x 1 3 000 9 000   38 571
The Commuter National Skateboarding 

Campaign,  
Adventure,  
Outdoor

Monthly x 1 50 000 200 000 142 857

Extrmlife National Skateboarding 1 35 000 80 000     7 980
Gariep Kunsfees Local Skateboarding 1 60 000 240 000  25 992
Northern Cape 
Blink

Northern Cape Skateboarding 1 5 000 15 000    5 000

Indwe National Skateboarding For 
Hope

4 40 000 800 000  900 000

Greyton Sen-
tinel

Local-Western 
Cape

Adventure,  
Outdoor

Monthly x4 6 000 30 000 54 800 

Biznizmaker 
Mag

Local-Kimberley Adventure,  
Outdoor

Bi-monthly x1 8 000 32 000    22 000

Barney Barnato Local-Kimberley Adventure,  
Outdoor

Bi-annualx1 2 000 5 000    12 300

total 40 971 840 4 622 308 5 418 977

online advertising:  Domestic

Site area location advert Focus
Frequency of 
adverts/edito-

rials

Brand aware-
ness achieved 
through Poten-
tial Viewership

rand Value 
achieved 

Pick ‘n Pay Travel Ideas 
newsletter

National/Inter

National overflow

NC your Easter 
Destination

March   220 000 206 122 98

Getaway Travel weekends 
away web letter

National with interna-
tional overflow

NC your Easter 
Destination as 

March   534 000 228 234 76

GSA website National with Interna-
tional overflow

NC your ex-
treme adven-
ture destination

Annual   109 600 334 298 22

total 3 863 600 768 655 96

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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outdoor advertising:  Domestic

type area location advert Focus
Frequency of 
adverts/ 
editorials

Brand aware-
ness achieved 
through Poten-
tial Viewership

Value achieved 

Billboard - Kimberley Barkley Road Maloof Aug/Sept 480 000 705 000.00
Cape Town Rd Maloof Sept 310 000 765 700.00
Long Street Maloof Aug/Sept 310 000 765 700.00
N12 Maloof Aug 310 000 765 700.00
Airport Maloof Sep   65 901   96 874.00
Cecil Sussman Str Maloof Sept 240 000   88 000.00

Bloemfontein Nelson Mandela Drive Maloof Aug/ Sept 720 000 105 840.00
Show time Video Screens Cnr Bultfontein and Len-

nox St
Maloof Sept 420 000   61 740.00

Pick a Pay screens Rhodesdene Maloof Aug/Sept x8 170 000 249 900.00
Street Posters  Transvaal rd/Memorial 

Rd/Pniel Rd/ Barkley Rd/ 
Schmidtdrift Rd/ Long 
street/ Du Toitspan Rd

Maloof Aug/Sept x90 69 000 101 430.00

 Screens ORTIAP Extreme NC Jan x4 1 172,964 601 000.00

Screens ORTIAP The NC Feb x 4 1 132,464 600 891.00
Screens ORTIAP Flowers March x4 1 223,004 622 455.00
total 121 6 623 333 6 030 230.00

Radio Advertising 

Station area location advert Focus
Frequency of 
adverts/edito-
rials

Brand aware-
ness achieved 
through Poten-
tial Viewership

rand Value 
achieved 

Riverside Magareng 
Teemaneng Kabosna        Ul-
wazi              NFM

Upington Warrenton 
Kimberley Calvina          
De Aar Springbok

Maloof Aug/Sept x 56 
spots

255 000 190 000.00

OFM Bloemfontein Maloof Sept x 15 
spots

580 000    28 410.00

total 71 835 000  218 410.00

Summary 

type total of adverts/spots reach (readership/listenership) Value rand
Advertising International 15   2 814 618   3 288 435
Advertising National 40   4 622 308  5 418 977 
Online 3      863 600      768 655
Outdoor 121   6 623 333   6 030 230
Radio 71       835 000     218  410
total 250 15 007 359 15 724 707
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Flagship events
maloof Campaign

An extensive two month marketing com-
munications campaign was launched in 
August and September which covered 
print, electronic, radio and television and 
included editorial and advertorial (paid 
for advertising) which led to sold-out 
skateboarding events and a well-attend-
ed concert.

With an international audience of more 
than 50 million viewers, the province’s 
extreme sports positioning was success-
fully entrenched in the minds of the lo-
cal, national, and international communi-
ties.  A 120-second destination advert was 
screened during the live broadcast and 
during the subsequent re-screenings.  
With each screening, the destination’s 
unique tourist attractions and its brand 
positioning as an extreme sport destina-
tion was re-affirmed and promoted.  

Advertising –  mmC South Africa.

The strategic print, outdoor and radio 
campaign covered an extensive range 
of media within the province as well as 
nationally and internationally, reaching 
a wide audience, especially also a youth 
specific market and target audience. Dur-
ing the last 18 months, the event was 
promoted, marketed and communicated 
along with the NCTA’s on-going destina-
tion marketing communications and ex-
treme brand positioning of the Northern 
Cape as an extreme sport destination on 
the various platforms.  A further intensi-
fied and extensive two month market-
ing campaign was launched in August.  
The above-the-line campaign included 
an outdoor billboard campaign; a street 
poster campaign; and a radio and print 
campaign.  We produced a mascot – the 
diamond bauble.  

online marketing

The campaign was coupled to South Af-
rican Tourism’s Sho’t Left Campaign in 
order to attract and drive actual feet into 
the province during the event.  The event 
and tour offerings were extensively pro-
moted and featured on the social media 
platforms of   SA Tourism, Sho’t Left, the 
NCTA, and the Maloof Money Cup.  The 

skateboarding championship was a sell-out.  T-shirt and deck design competitions 
were initiated on line which further encouraged participation and awareness of the 
event amongst the target audiences both within Southern African and internationally.

Television live broadcasts and Re-airs

Supersport provided the uplink for the broadcast to international television partners.  
The broadcast was re-aired at least 8 times over the following months. Additionally 
a 90-minute live broadcast was aired to Supersport’s South African and African view-
ers.  Internationally, the MMC and its stakeholder brands were promoted through 
extensive screenings and re-screenings through ESPN Brazil, Extreme Sport Channel 
(Europe and USA), Fuel TV (Europe and Australia) and CNBC Africa.  Morning Live on 
SABC 2 featured the 50 day countdown event live from Kimberley and the Skate Park 
and various other pre-event and actual event screenings.  

Channel marketing

The Maloof Money Cup was highlighted and promoted at WTM 2010, ITB 2011, and 
Indaba 2011.  The event was also well featured and sold to consumers at Getaway 
2010 and 2011, The Outdoor Adventure and Travel Show in Gauteng, as well as the 
Namibian Tourism Expo held in Windhoek June 2011.  The Cape Argus Lifestyle Expo 
and the Vryfees in Bloemfontein was also targeted.  

editorial and pR

A crucial element in the Maloof marketing communications plan is media relations 
and liaison with leading national and international journalists to maintain the event 
remains top of mind in the consciences of our target audiences and to encourage 
their attendance of the event. Media releases produced included: Skateboarding 
spectacular takes to the road; Maloof Countdown; Maloof Money Cup creates oppor-
tunities for local small business in Kimberley; Northern Cape puts its skates on; Skate-
boarding for Hope update; Northern Cape to host the world’s greatest skateboarding 
extravaganza; Northern Cape set to galvanize youth movement; Mining giant part-
ners with Northern Cape Province for Maloof Money Cup; Skateboarding fever hits 
Kimberley; Skateboarding fever hits Bloemfontein; Kimberley to host Maloof Battle of 
the Bands; Northern Cape hosts countdown to Maloof; Maloof skateboarding heads 
for Soweto; Northern Cape to host the world’s greatest skateboarding extravaganza; 
Maloof benefit concert to rock the Diamond City; Final countdown to Maloof; Maloof 
Money Cup SA overview.

The event communication furthermore promoted the Northern Cape and its ability to 
host international world class events and as a premier tourism destination.  

Source: Meltwater, newsclip (South Africa)

Period no. of articles Viewership rand Value
Q1 847 1 205 156 100 7 833 514.65

Q2 681    849 000 000 1 229 428 350.00
Q3 144    467 072 608 303 597 195.20
Q4 83 1 002 822 210 65  183 443.65
total 1 755 3 524 050 918 1 606 042 503.50

bloodhound

This flagship event is well presented in the media and continues to remain of interest. 
The education angle is of great interest to local schools and within the country.  Sto-
ries that appeared included: World’s Fastest Man to lecture in Sa. Fastest man speeds 
in, Green piloting Bloodhound at 1600km per hour, New land speed record attempt-
ed, Speed record challenge’ Green will be a flash in the pan, On track for 1600 k/ph 
record dash in the Northern Cape, Groot Mier kry dalk 2 records, Twin Trust,  Workers 

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012



2424
prepare the pan for the world record , Bloodhound – Northern Cape to host fastest man in the world;  Bloodhound review; The 
race is on for Northern Cape land speed record attempt.  Project is supported by marketing communication program in partner-
ship with Bloodhound UK.

per media platform

Media no. of articles Viewership rand Value
Online 60 22 352 998 19 372 739 65
Print 39 21 343 207 5 606 220 20
Radio 32 16 562 000 3 001 711 24
TV 2 10 249 724      950 633 33
total 133 70 507 929 28 931 304 42

per Quarter

Period no of articles Viewership rand Value
Q1 33 31 791 746 206 646 35
Q2 7      500 000   4 934 901 00
Q3 43 18 410 183 1 789 757 07
Q4 50  19 800 000 22 000 000.00
Total 133 70 509 729 28 931 304 42

Source: newsclip and Meltwater news

DomeSTiC eXhibiTonS – promote the destination at domestic key consumer fairs

A key reason why we attend exhibitions is that we go a long way in promoting the destination at key domestic consumer fairs 
where we frequently promote specific campaigns e.g. promotions offering discounted rates which, in turn, engender regional 
and SMME participation. Competitions are held with the purpose of increasing traffic to our stand while simultaneously serv-
ing to raise awareness of the provincial product offering as well as aiding in increasing our customer relationship management 
(CRM) database.  Through a careful vetting process, we annually select which domestic exhibitions we plan to attend.  The selec-
tions are made on the basis of whether the exhibition ties in well with our brand positioning and product offering.

Our strategic intent is to maximise national and provincial media coverage opportunities to position Northern Cape as a desirable 
holiday destination as the number one destination for extreme culture, nature and adventure. Many visitors to the exhibition 
stands enquire about tour operators and want to discuss various tour packages that exist and it is thus a good thing that as many 
tour operators as possible join us on our stand.

Rand easter Show: 22 – 24 April 2011 

This show, which included the largest fun fair in Africa, underwent a major transformation in recent years.  Northern Cape Tour-
ism Authority staff attended the Rand Show at NASREC and based themselves alongside the Maloof Money Cup exhibition or-
ganised by Element Skateboarding.  The event had a large following, with traders exhibiting their products or services.  The layout 
of stalls area was divided into indoor and outdoor stands.  Maloof T-shirts and cups were among gifts handed to those visiting 
our stall ahead of the Maloof Pro-Tour, which took place a few days later on 29 April at Kimberley’s North Cape Mall.  It was a 
competitive atmosphere when faced with the daunting prospect of luring as many visitors as possible to one’s stand, given that 
there were many attractive stands all vying for the visitors’ attentions.  It therefore made marketing sense to punt major events 
such as MMC as a hook to lure visitors to our stand.  

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guide: 210

• Witsand brochures: 200

• Maloof Money Cup: 200

• Bloodhound: 150

outdoor eco Adventure and Travel expo: 10 – 12 June

The Outdoor Eco Adventure and Travel Expo, is mainly aimed at the consumer and we continue to enjoy a 
strong presence at this event.  The NCTA notched up a Silver award.  Now in its 19th year, the Expo was 
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again situated at Gauteng’s Inanda 
Country Club.  The expo attracted 
medium to high income earners, 
LSM 7 – 10, from Four Ways, Pre-
toria, Krugersdorp, Sandton, and 
Soweto. Stand position is all impor-
tant at travel expos and we were 
fortunate to secure close proximity 
to two main entrances. 

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guide: 360

Getaway Show Gauteng: 2-4 Septem-
ber 2011   

The 19th DSTV Getaway Show, a bi-annual, 
national consumer show for all outdoor-
product suppliers, as well as travel and 
tourism-related marketers, was held at 
the Coca Cola Dome.  The show offers 
exhibitors a chance to interact face-to-
face with a broad spectrum of affluent 
travel enthusiasts eager to experience 
products and services that are available 
in the Northern Cape.  The prestigious 
Getaway Show forms part of the Getaway 
magazine and is backed up by the Get-
away website.  Getaway has won numer-

ous awards of excellence in the past and is still considered to be the Number 1 Travel 
and Outdoor Show in Africa.  The Show’s in-house media team generate in excess of 
R5,5 million in media exposure.  The Getaway Show website notes that “our exhibitors 
were extremely pleased with the response.” The 2011 show included over 400 interac-
tive and informative exhibits, show specials, prizes, a climbing wall, Spin & Win, 4x4 
simulators, quad bikes, bubble ball, and Quattro bungee and attracted an audience 
of over 20 000.  This family oriented consumer show aims to bring the Getaway brand 
to life in a 3-d experience of outdoor, travel and adventure related products.

marketing Collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guide: 800

• Northern Cape Maps:  300

• German DVDs:  10

• Spanish DVDs:   5

• Cape to Namibia:  100

Domestic Channel marketing 

We optimise all channels to ensure that the Northern Cape is not only featured but 
also sold as a desirable destination within Southern Africa and as the Number 1 des-
tination for extreme experiences.  

houston Trade Road Shows

As part of our domestic channel marketing objectives, we garner the support of local 
travel trade and improve their knowledge about the province and its tourism offer-
ings. During April 2011, the NCTA Marketing department attended three trade pre-
sentations with Houston Marketing in Sandton and in Cape Town, where we had the 
opportunity to closely connect with trade in selling the Northern Cape. During these 
one-on-one sessions we met with 44 trade partners. 

marcus mbetha Safety Centre upington

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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bRAnD AWAReneSS – promote brand pride among tourism industry stakeholders and the population at large with 
a specific focus on Tourism month

We promote brand pride among tourism industry stakeholders and communities as a whole.  We achieve this especially through 
the annual focus on Tourism Month.  

Tourism month 2011

We use the forum of Tourism Month to promote the Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year Award (ETAYA) winners at the 
same time as promoting the theme for Tourism Month.  The Tourism Month 2010 theme was “Linking Cultures.”

TouRiSm monTh pRoGRAmme 

Date event activity town / 
region

nCta Participation

11/08 50-day count-
down

50-day countdown to Maloof Money 
Cup Skateboarding Event and tourism 
ambassadors announcement

Kimberley  Branding and media support for the event 
ensuring reporting in online and print and 
electronic media.

12/08 Morning Live  
Broadcast

Interviews with Premier, MEC, and fea-
turing dancers, artists and skaters from 
the province to highlight tourism offer-
ings as well as positioning the province 
as a MICE destination, demonstrating 
its ability in hosting world class events 

Kimberley NCTA organised live broadcast with Morning 
Live to nationally promote the province, the 
Tourism Month line-up and the upcoming 
flagship event, Maloof Money Cup Skate-
boarding World Championship.

13/08 Skateboard-
ing for Hope 
-  Maponya 
Mall, Soweto

Part of the Skateboard for Hope 
campaign, as well as promoting the 
province as an events destination 

Soweto NCTA hosted the day with branding, clinics 
and “Battle of the Bands”.  Media interviews 
and editorial in print, radio and online media.  
The event was also published in the DET Tour-
ism Month programme.

23-
24/08

Schools pro-
gramme

FBDM hosted the Tourism Schools Busi-
ness Plan Competition, an annual event 
for Tourism Month with the objective 
of promoting tourism development, 
entrepreneurship and product owner 
development among learners, encour-
aging creative thinking on the role of 
information and communication tech-
nologies in Tourism Development

Kimberley Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online media + published in DET’s Tourism 
Month programme.

1/09 Media launch Launch of provincial tourism month 
and activities, as well as the launch of 
the tourism excellence programme and 
ambassadorship

Kimberley NCTA hosted the breakfast and day.

1/09 Tourism 
Month 
launch

Sector stakeholder breakfast and 
introduction of Tourism Month to local 
communities

Kuruman Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online media.

2-4/09 Getaway 
Show- Johan-
nesburg

The Johannesburg Getaway Show is a 
premier consumer holiday show

Johannes-
burg

NCTA stand comprised 4 participants promot-
ing Northern Cape as a tourism destination to 
premier consumers attending the show.

1-4/09 Gariep Fes-
tival

Festival promoting all forms or arts (live 
performers – local and national) and 
crafts

Kimberley R60,000 for media activation.

Radio, exhibition and live interviews as well as 
skate park / Skateboarding for Hope activa-
tion.
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Date event activity town / 

region
nCta Participation

3-17/09 Arts and craft 
exhibitions

To market the region and support and 
develop the SMME’s through product 
marketing and selling. 

Namakwa 
Tourism 
Office

Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online media. 

3/09 Williston Win-
ter Festival 
and stargaz-
ing

Weekend festival promoting Williston 
and its attractions 

Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online media.

4/09 NWCA NDFT 
Daisy Mara-
thon

Running marathon Springbok Marketing and promotional assistance. 
Published on NCTA website and in the DET 
Tourism Month programme.

8/09 Cleaning 
campaign: 
schools 
(Secondary 
schools)

Cleaning one of our main tourism at-
tractions in the region with help from 
Tourism learners

Upington Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online media + and published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

12-16/09 Know Your 
Region: 
schools 
campaign 
(Primary 
schools)

Share with learners knowledge about 
tourism attractions and opportunities 
around the John Taolo Gaetsewe region

Schools list 
supplied by 
the Depart-
ment of 
Education

Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

15-16/09 Tourist guid-
ing workshop 
with NDT and 
DEDat

A 2-day workshop /  campaign to eradi-
cate illegal tourist guiding practices and 
promote professionalism and improved 
conduct among tour guides within the 
province 

Upington Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

17/09 Tourism 
Schools’ 
Business Plan 
Competition

Business Plan competition for learners 
studying tourism

Frances 
Baard

Marketing and promotional assistance. Pub-
lished on NCTA website and in DET Tourism 
Month programme. 

17/09 Northern 
Cape Tourism 
Day

Tourism Day celebrations, including 
choral, dance, cultural activities and 
Skateboarding for Hope

Kuruman NCTA responsible for programme.  Pro-
gramme executed in partnership with Kumba 
/ DET. 

22-
24/09

Kalahari 
Kuierfees

Tourism Exhibition - marketing and pro-
motion of tourism in the province

Upington Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

24/09 St Augus-
tine’s Cultural 
Festival

Celebrates the cultural diversity of Na-
makwaland-choral, dance, arts, crafts, 
donkey cart rides, motorcade, floats

Okiep Marketing and promotional assistance. Pub-
lished on NCTA website and in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

24/09 Heritage Day 
Programme

To celebrate and raise awareness of 
cultural heritage by uniting youth and 
veterans to share experiences, hopes 
and dreams

All regions 
and Kimber-
ley

Marketing and promotional assistance. Pub-
lished on NCTA website and in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

25/09 Skateboard-
ing for Hope 

Skateboarding for Hope clinics and 
community outreach programmes

Kimberley, 
Homevale, 
Roodepan, 
Collville, 
Greenpoint 

Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media, as well as organisation and 
co-ordination. 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Date event activity town / 

region
nCta Participation

27/09 World Tour-
ism Day 
Celebrations

Celebrating World Tourism Day Clarens DEDat representation. 

30/09 Traditional 
music and 
dance  fes-
tival

Invite local groups to participate in the 
festival and give exposure to those that 
are unknown 

ABSA Plein- 
Kalahari

Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

30/09 – 
1/10

St Augus-
tine’s Cultural 
Festival

The Anglican Community of St. Au-
gustine’s, Okiep, Namakwa unite in 
celebrating cultural diversity 

Okiep, 
Springbok

Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

30/09 Traditional 
Music and 
Dance Fes-
tival

Traditional music and dance festival 
with local talent and a cultural evening 
with music and dance

Kuruman Marketing and promotional assistance in 
creating awareness for the event through 
media interviews and editorial in print, radio 
and online media + published in DET Tourism 
Month programme.

30/09 – 
2/10

Maloof 
Money Cup 
Competition

World’s first ever world skateboarding 
championship

Skate park Part of provincial task team, as well as creating 
awareness for the event through a strategic 
provincial marketing and promotions media 
campaign.  National and international media 
coverage through print, radio and online 
media + published in DET Tourism Month 
programme.

1/10 L’il Jon in 
concert

Benefit concert with Li’l Jon, Gang of 
instrumentals , Kabelo, Danny K and 
others

GWK 
Stadium, 
Kimberley

Part of provincial task team, as well as creating 
awareness for the event through a strategic 
marketing and promotions media campaign 
within the province, nationally and internation-
ally through print, radio and online media +  
published in DET Tourism Month programme.

8-9/10 Kreebergfees Community festival featuring local 
groups and culture

Carnarvon Marketing and promotional assistance in cre-
ating awareness for the event through media 
interviews and editorial in print, radio and 
online and published in DET Tourism Month 
programme, as well as branding of the event. 
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provincial Tourism Day Celebrations

This year Tourism Month was celebrated 
in the John Taolo region in Kuruman.  We 
embarked upon a media and promotion-
al activation programme that would:

• Create a new perception of the region 
among locals and non-locals 

• Involve a broad spectrum of the local 
community (bringing all sectors of the 
community together for mutual ben-
efit and through Skateboarding for 
Hope campaigns) 

• Install tourism pride and acceptance 
among the local community i.e. that 
they do have something unique to of-
fer the visitor

• Drive a realisation that events of all 
magnitudes can be successfully host-
ed in their area, given the necessary 
planning, organisational, financial 
and management support 

• Unlock activities peculiar to the re-
gion to be developed into commu-
nity-uniting annual activities that also 
attract income-generating opportuni-
ties from visitors

• Prove that the essence of the brand 
language is alive and true to “The 
Northern Cape is as real as those who 
choose to experience it”

The focus was very much on youth and 
local communities.  We linked cultural 
groups not least through the Skateboard-
ing for Hope activations.  In so doing, we 
succeeded in fostering a tourism culture 
while enhancing the destination’s sports / 
adventure tourism niche.  We are starting 
to reap rich dividends in terms of trans-
forming communities: they are equipped 
with the pride that comes from their right 
to enjoy sports tourism activities.

launch a community tourism sup-
port programme

This year, with the theme being linking 
cultures, and through the Skateboard-
ing for Hope activations, we focused 
mainly on youth and local communities.  
We aimed to foster a tourism culture, 
while enhancing the Northern Cape as a 
sports/adventure tourism destination as 
much for locals as for non-Northern Cape 

visitors.  The emphasis for Tourism Month was to enhance and promote a tourism cul-
ture among local communities to ensure tourism growth among local communities.

As part of the continued commitment to the development of the sport and uplift-
ment of children and youth not only within the province, but also within the greater 
South Africa, NCTA hosted several groups from Kwa-Zulu Natal, Johannesburg and 
Cape Town during the actual MMCSA event. These children were also keen partici-
pants in previously held Skateboarding for Hope clinics. The group of 122 children 
from disadvantaged backgrounds and their supervisors were transported to Kimber-
ley to give them the once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to experience the world’s greatest 
skateboarding contest. 120 young adults were invited to join our volunteer’s corps for 
a 1-month programme which included direct marketing and marshaling.

Stage Tourism Awards

Due to the development of a new service excellence strategy by the national depart-
ment of tourism and limited response from the industry, we decided to postpone the 
awards function until next year.  In November we hosted a function with key South 
African Celebrities on the subject matter.

The function showcased the standards that can be achieved, whether within the tra-
ditional city environment or within a township environment.  In the words of our 
Programme Manager, Soli Philander (well known SA TV Celebrity/Comedian) the prov-
ince has again shown the way ahead and set the benchmark with world class music, 
service and food offerings within a township environment. In 2012 we continue this 
campaign for all Northern Cape partners to take pride in their service and general 
population all to become tourism ambassadors and participate in our campaign.  I 
love Northern Cape with the roll-out of the NCTA roadshows throughout the province 
along with select tourism partners. 

DOMeStIC MeDIa & Pr 
- Conduct media editorial promotion initiatives

The NCTA has successfully maximised national and provincial media coverage op-
portunities and positioned the Northern Cape as a desirable holiday destination and 
the No1 destination for extreme culture, nature and adventure experiences. A total of 
3121 articles were published at a staggering R 254 million (R254 230 791.37) worth of 
publicity reaching 3, 1 billion viewers and readers.

media educationals

Twenty media were hosted in partnership with SA Tourism’s Sho’t Left Campaign 
managers and Media Department in the Green Kalahari and Diamond Fields.  This re-
sulted in extensive coverage on television; Real Goboza on SABC 1; Soweto TV, CNBC 
Africa; and in print: Tonight supplement of The Star, Pretoria News, Cape Argus, Daily 
News, Mail and Guardian, Sunday World, Sowetan, The Star, Beeld, City Press, Sunday 
Sun and Daily Sun. 

SABC 2’s Lifestyle show Pasella producers and presenters were hosted 5 times 
throughout the province and featured inserts on Namakwa, Karoo, Green Kalahari 
and SABC 3 show Espresso were hosted twice and they featured the Green Kalahari 
and Kokerboom Route. 

Tourism month Celebrations

The NCTA hosted a media group to expose them firsthand to the unique tourism 
treasures of the region.  Media included in the 2-day tour were as follows: SABC Radio, 
Radio Teemaneng, Die Gemsbok, Radio Teemaneng, Kathu Gazette, Kalahari Bulle-
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tin, KZN Business magazine, NC Express, 
DFA, Kalahari News Isivinini

northern Cape events

The various Northern Cape events were 
well promoted through press releases 
and social media networks which in-
creased audience awareness regarding 
the event which led to an increase in 
number people attending the events. 
The increased media editorials further en-
hanced the image of the Northern Cape 
as a desirable tourism destination in the 
minds of our target audiences.

Events covered included De Aar Paraglid-
ing, Carnavon Fly-in, Hantam Vleisfees, 
Williston Festival, Kalahari Kuierfees, Gari-
ep Fees, Apollo Film Festival, Namakwa 
Festival and Barney Barnato Golf Tourna-
ment, Speedo Ice Swim and Marrick MTB 
Challenge. For the inaugural Kalahari 
Canoe Marathon from 22 to 25 March, 
we hosted 5 national and 3 regional me-

dia.  The trip included regional highlights such as the Quiver Tree Route.  The media 
hosted were as follows:  Editor Getaway, Die Burger photographer and freelancer, 
Managing editor Skyways magazine, Buite Burger – editor, Freelance journalist for 
Weg and Go, Volksblad / Kalahari Bulletin-journalist, Gemsbok – journalist, Radio Riv-
erside.  A further two journalists were hosted at the European/African Waterskiing 
Championship from 29 March to 1 April at Lake Grappa, Kakamas. It is significant that 
Northern Cape continues to build on its media relations and, with every passing year, 
host more heavyweight media.  Gone are the days when we had to beg sports / ad-
venture / travel media to join a media trip.  The global economic crisis plays into our 
hands.  For example, the Buite Burger editor maintains that his readers are desperate 
for articles on domestic self-drive travel, given limits on their budget.  More than any 
other province, we suspect, we are capable of luring the sports / adventure niched 
media at the snap of a finger.  This is testimony to the province’s offerings and our 
repositioning as the province of extremes.  

Source:  newsclip and Meltwater news

Media no. of articles Viewership Value rand
Online 2 565 3 048 354 056 230 202 262.30
Print 489 22 109 176   16 698 821.97
Radio 37 39 389 600        155 281.50
TV 30 83 139 550     7 174 425.60
total 3121 3 192 992 382 254 230 791.37

maloof Sponsorship Announcement
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KeY PerFOrManCe area 3:  InternatIOnal leISUre MarKetInG 
Aim:  To optimise international visitor numbers, length of stay and expenditure in the Northern Cape

Strategy actions Performance targets Performance

International Chan-
nel Marketing

Solicit the support 
and improved knowl-
edge of international 
inbound operators 
and wholesalers 

Engage in Joint Marketing Agreements (budget 
permitting) 

Negotiate Joint Marketing Agreements to promote 
extreme sports (ASTA, ATA, etc.)

Trade Educationals

At least 1 JMA in year 1, 
expand to 3 in Year 3

Achieved 

Achieved 

Achieved

International Media 
and Pr

Maximise internation-
al media coverage 
opportunities for the 
Northern Cape

Arrange international media educationals

Work with SAT international offices and guest pro-
grammes to identify, target and host suitable media 
for media educationals to the province.  Key markets: 
USA, UK, Far East,  SADC

At least 5 articles in suit-
able publications about 
Northern Cape “escapes” 
p.a.

Achieved.

host VIP’s

Host and attend VIP and foreign dignitaries and 
invitations 

Building marketing 
relationships with 3 key 
embassies and other

Achieved. 

Interacted with the 
following em-
bassy’s :

Dutch, Spanish, 
Namibia ,USA High 
Commissioner’s 
office

UK High Commis-
sioner’s office.

Distribute marketing press releases and stories

Produce a series of interesting “stories” for distribu-
tion to international media regarding extreme activi-
ties in the NC 

At least 5 newsworthy 
press releases p.a.

Achieved. 

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012



3232
Strategy actions Performance targets Performance
International  
exhibitions

Promote the destina-
tion at key interna-
tional consumer and 
trade fairs 

Objective to establish 
JMA’s

SMME participation 
where possible

Build  CRM database

exhibit at:

Indaba, Durban

World Travel Market, London

Vakantiebeurs, Utrecht

Fitur,Madrid

ITB, Berlin

Sports Tourism Exchange

At least 1 JMA per show

Distribute 600 leaflets;  
Interface with visitors

Distribute 550 

Distribute 550

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved
exhibit regionally in SaDC at:

Namibia as a star market Distribute 600 leaflets;  
Interface with  visitors; 
capture contacts

Visitor growth from South-
ern Africa of at least 10% 
p.a. by Y3

Achieved

International road-
shows

Participate in SAT 
roadshows and work-
shops in growth and 
tactical markets

Attend trade roadshows/workshops in:

Utrecht with SA Tourism Netherlands

USA - Hunting

Maloof Money Cup – Washington

To encourage visitor 
growth from key markets 
of at least 10% p.a. by Y3

 

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved
Trade Missions Attend and leverage off Government trade missions 

(DTI, FA, Premier’s Office ) as required
At least one tour opera-
tor agreement per trade 
mission

Not achieved - 

No opportunities 
during the year 
under review.  
Deliverable is 
dependent upon 
trade visits to the 
province arranged 
by government 
departments 
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InternatIOnal  
Channel MarKetInG 
- Solicit the support and improved 
knowledge of international inbound 
operators and wholesalers 

We optimised all channels to ensure 
that the Northern Cape is not only fea-
tured but sold as a desirable destination 
within our core markets as the Number 
1 destination for extreme experiences 
and a must visit destination for all target 
markets.  Timeously acting on oppor-
tunities to feature in all important trade 
catalogues is crucial to growing our mar-
kets in various primary as well as niche 
markets.  We are in business just like any 
other business: we are mandated to do 
our level best to increase visitor numbers 
year on year.  As with any business, the 
NCTA must ensure to gain maximum ex-
posure in trade catalogues.  This is partic-
ularly important in the oftentimes fickle 
tourism industry which frequently bases 
decisions on top-of-mind awareness (eg 
placement in trade catalogue).  

From the destination’s perspective, it is 
a case of “being there at the right place 
and the right time”, for example being 
spotted in the travel trade’s most impor-
tant and respected resource: the trade 
catalogues.  Destinations are enormously 
competitive in vying for the attention of 
the prospective visitor, thus a prominent 
advertorial in a trade catalogue goes 
a long way towards raising awareness 
of the destination.  One equally needs 
to continually keep the travel trade in-
formed and incentivized as to promot-
ing new packages in one’s destination.  
Germany, UK and the Benelux countries, 
and regionally Namibia are areas where 
we work on establishing Joint Marketing 
Agreements.  We market to high end mar-
kets with expendible income and markets 
thus able to engage in long haul travel.  
The market of course needs to fit in with 
the unique experiences on offer within 
the Northern Cape which we promote. 
Our investment into these markets is 
based on South African Tourism research 
and past experiences; in other words, 
there is no ‘spray and pray’ tactic applied.  
It is not sufficient to attend a travel expo 

in a foreign destination merely because a government department sitting outside of 
tourism happens to be currently engaging in discussions with that country or is any-
way visiting that country.  Having said that, we need to actively lobby at all times that 
Northern Cape’s tourism interests are promoted at every opportunity in whichever 
destinations officials outside of tourism structures are visiting.  Officials all need to 
be made aware of the tourism marketing collateral they can make use of for select 
overseas trips and it is much appreciated when officials help spread the word about 
the province as a prime tourist destination.  To use an analogy, we cannot “make the 
mountain come to Mohammad” if the culture of that country is not interested in the 
culture nature and adventure and sports and hospitality culture that Northern Cape 
has to offer.  We may “lead the horse to water” but can never make it drink.  We there-
fore are tactical in the first instance when we promote to any market, given the cost 
of international travel and exhibiting in international travel trade fairs.   

Joint marketing Agreements

Market Specific agreement 
Dutch: Highline and Djoser (Djoser is the 
4th largest Dutch-based tour operating 
company 

14 day tour promoting the Namakwa 
flowers but also the rest of the province 
with four departures during July and Au-
gust

Poland and Eastern Europe - Highline 18 day tour offering of the Northern Cape
German: Boomerang Reizen 18 day self-drive package featuring the 

Northern cape for 18 of those days exclu-
sively

10 Day Cape to Namibia offering

16 Day Adventure offering
Chinese: Longway Travel 4—5-day package of Kimberley and sur-

rounds
Belgium: HOBO Reizen 12-14-day package promoted in their 

2012-2013 catalogue the flower offering  
of Namakwa and the province

A mere few years ago, the concept of Joint Marketing Agreements was a relatively 
new one in the majority of South Africa’s tourism structures; however this is now com-
monplace within all provincial tourism authorities.  All the more so as we up our game 
in the competitive bid to win more visitors to our particular province.  The provinces 
stand to benefit from any JMA’s signed in any province: visitors tend to visit again as 
a consequence of such agreements.  There is the possibility of visiting neighbouring 
provinces excluded from their initial itinerary.  JMA’s give provinces a competitive 
edge and also keep provinces on their toes as we are continually reminded that we 
need to add fresh new experiences to our packages.  We aim to sign at least 4 JMA’s 
annually and have thus achieved – in fact exceeded – our target.

Trade hosted

As with any educational, the hosting of trade affords our most important marketers – 
the travel trade – an opportunity to experience for themselves the various Northern 
Cape offerings.  At the same time, the travel trade is allowed a platform to feed back 
to the NCTA any positive and negative experiences they may have noted during the 
educational.  This in turn is then is fed back to the hosting product owners.  

Dutch

Among those travel trade hosted was the highlight of hosting 16 Dutch travel agents. 
It is a significant scoop to host the Benelux market – a core Northern Cape market.  
We hosted the following agent: African Backpackers; De Jong; Intra;  Africa Feeling; 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Fox Vakanties; ITG; Kras; Kuoni; OAD; Talis-
man; Terra Casta; Terra Travel / Summum 
/ Baobab; TUI Rondreis op maat. Travel 
agents sell what they have seen and they 
are also able to book significantly large 
groups.  Our aim is selling group travel 
and individual self drives.  

Chinese

11 Chinese trade visitors spent four nights 
and five days in the Diamond Fields re-
gion on a post Indaba trip to afford them 
first-hand experience of the Northern 
Cape and its tourism offerings relevant 
to th Chinese market.  As direct result of 
this visit a 4- night 5-day Kimberley and 
surrounds a tour itinerary was requested 
by Longway Travel based in Beijing for 
inclusion in their next trade brochure.  It 
is a significant coup to be able to host 
Chinese travel trade and an even more 
significant coup when they start book-
ing holidays in one’s region given that 
the Chinese travel prolifically and is the 
world’s number one traveling nation. We 
will continue to engage closely with the 
South African Embassy in China and with 
the Chinese travel trade with regard to ex-
pectations that this lucrative market has 
for travelling within our province.  

International Media and 
Pr 
– maximise international media cov-
erage opportunities for the northern 
Cape

international media educationals

Arguably the most important aspect of 
all our marketing endeavours is the edu-
cating of media.  They give media expo-
sure which is then noticed by the travel 
trade and public who, in turn, generate 
enquiries and bookings.  Ireland and 
Cape Town have both largely based their 
marketing endeavors on media educa-
tionals. The NCTA has established good 
relationships with a select number of 
international journalists which has paid 
off tremendously during the past year.  
Northern Cape has many unique assets 
in global terms and we certainly have 
unique tourism offerings that none of 
the other provinces can offer.  The NCTA 

has also fostered good relationships with South African Tourism’s international offices  
and their communications partners who further greatly assist in directing media to 
the Province.  Key markets are Germany, Italy, United Kingdom, USA, the Far East, and 
SADC countries.  Pre- and post- Indaba tours were hosted to media from Italy, South 
America, Belgium, and China.  The hosting of these journalists ensured that our core 
markets and watch list markets were exposed to the rich and varied tourism offerings 
and experiences of the Northern Cape. The media members each had their own key 
tour itineraries in addition to the group itinerary, which allowed focus on each region.  

Journalist Country of 
origin

Publication topic / area

Helge Bendl Germany Sud- Afrika 
magazine

Green Kalahari offerings

Orange River  Wine offerings

Quiver tree route

Namakwa and  Richtersveld
Paolo Ferrari Italy Il Mondo del 

Golf  and 
Degusta 

golf offerings within the 
province 

tourism story of NC -lifestyle 
and food

Dave Southwood United kingdom Travel Africa Namakwa region - Port Nol-
loth  experience

Among media hosted from SADC countries, we hosted 7 media from our neighbors 
at Botswana.  Given the number of media attending Indaba that hail from SADC coun-
tries, there is plenty scope to increase our relations with media from SADC countries.  
The Cape Namibia N7 Route takes care of our relations with Namibia and Western 
Cape. 

Distribute marketing press releases and stories

Through the dissemination of press releases and stories generated by journalists 1 
815 articles were published online, radio and print and TV and reached 3, 3 billion 
readers and viewers at a value of R629 million and went a long way in re-affirming 
the Northern Cape as a sought after tourism destination. (Source: Meltwater News 
and Newsclip) 

northern Cape

Period no of articles Viewership rand Value
Q1     444    422 376 062   2 745 444.40
Q2     626 2 600 000 000 389 331 632.00
Q3     601    314 090 437 204 009 156.80
Q4     144      13 333 787 33 251 173.00
total 1  815 3 349 800 286 629 337 406.20
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InternatIOnal  
eXhIBItIOnS 
– promote the destination at key in-
ternational consumer and trade fairs

inDAbA 2011:   7 - 10 may 2011, Al-
bert luthuli Convention Centre (Dur-
ban iCC) 

INDABA is one of the largest tourism 
marketing events on the African calen-
dar and one of the top three ‘must visit’ 
events of its kind on the global calendar. 
Now in its 29th year, INDABA is owned 
by South African Tourism and organised 
by Witch & Wizard Creative (Pty) Ltd and 
is  a key component of the Governments 
and South African Tourism’s strategy to 
further develop the tourism industry as 
a key driver of economic growth and job 
creation in South Africa. It showcases the 
widest variety of Southern Africa’s best 
tourism products, and attracts interna-
tional visitors and media from across the 
world. 

Unaudited figures showed 11,205 people 
passed through the Inkosi Albert Luthuli 
International Convention Centre’s doors 
over the four exhibition days, with 1610 
exhibitors and over 7210 exhibition per-
sonnel across all imaginable tourism-
related business categories showcasing 
their products, and 661 local and interna-
tional media registering to cover INDABA.

Activations and meetings – market-
ing Communications

A comprehensive online campaign was 
launched from early April to the regis-
tered trade and media to ensure that they 
are aware of the Northern Cape’s tour-
ism offering and its position as a lead-
ing “must do” tourism destination within 
Southern Africa. This campaign included 
requests for meetings, the Maloof Media 
Briefing and countdown as well as invita-
tions to join our three activations. 

The meetings email campaign was 
started early in April with an e-invitation 
to 2748 registered trade inviting them to 
come and meet with representatives on 
the Northern Cape pavilion, a further di-
rect e-invite was send to 689 adventure 

travel operators mid April and a further 178 direct invitations were sent to key trade 
and media in both our core and watch markets via the online diary resulting in 78 
confirmed and conducted meetings on our stand with NCTA representatives. 

Meetings held on the stand included representatives of South African Tourism’s inter-
national offices and SA embassy representatives, wholesalers, ground handlers, tour 
operators and media.  

A further 551 meetings were also conducted by representatives on the stand and very 
importantly resulting in real bookings and sales for tour operators and other product 
representatives on the stand. 

The activation email campaign started in mid April with the first of the e-invitations 
to join us for “experience the Northern Cape” evening on Sunday 8th May, followed 
by the e-invite to the diamond draw on Saturday 7th May and lastly the e-invitation to 
join us for a wine and awards evening on Monday 9th May ensuring that the Northern 
Cape remained top of mind of all visiting trade and media attending Indaba 2011. All 
the events were well attended and the prize give aways by our partner regions and 
the diamond draws were received with great enthusiasm from our audience resulting 
in a great deal of good will being generated towards the Northern Cape. About 1 200 
trade and media representatives attended the three events but more importantly also 
resulted in further requests for meetings, information or exchange of business cards 
with representatives on the stand.

An advertising campaign was also launched in the Indaba Daily detailing our extreme 
culture, adventure and nature offerings and resulted in driving feet to our stand re-
questing information or meetings. 

Stakeholder and public Relations

Our ongoing public relations campaigns not only included the external publics but 
also our own internal provincial publics and with the annual Northern Cape Tourism 
Service Excellence Awards evening on Monday the 9th the awards were again well 
received and strengthen the relationship between the NCTA and the regions and dis-
trict municipalities and product owners’. The award winners each received a full page 
display advert in the Northern Cape Leisure Guide and a booth on the Northern Cape 
platform exhibiting at the Getaway Show as their prize winnings.

best Stand

Winner: Ant Walk African Cuisine Restaurant, KIMBERLEY

Runner-up: Undulata Country Lodge, SPRINGBOK

brand Ambassador

Winner: Jo’s Guest House, CALVINIA

Runner-up: Tata ma Tata Tours, UPINGTON

overall performance

Winner: Boitumela Jwa Sechaba Guest House, KIMBERLEY

Runner-up: World Wide Travel & Tours, KIMBERLEY

media and maloof Countdown

Media invited and attended – South African

Sunday Times     Weekend Witness

Daily News    Daily Sun

Weekend Sun    SABC Morning Live 

City Press    Gagasi 99.5 FM

Rapport newspaper   Avusa JHB

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Weekend Witness

Sunday Tribune

Independent on Saturday

Mail & Guardian

Isolezwe (Zulu)

The Mercury

Ilanga

Durban Youth Radio

East Coast Radio

ETV

Radio Sunny South

SAFM

international media and Africa

• Sud Afrika Magazine

• Travel Africa

• El Gusta

• Kapstadt.com

• Explore South Africa

• Experience South Africa

• African Safaris

• Encounter Africa

• CNN

• CNBC

media Value Generated

Source:  newsclip and Meltwater news

Media no. of articles Viewership Value rand
Online 98 49 225 856 2 052 024.82
Print 24 727 596 881 203.39
Radio 37 39 389 600 155 281.50
TV 5 15 457 920 4 592 300.00
total 164 104 800 972 7 680 809.71

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 1200

• Northern Cape Maps:  1000

• English DVDs:   100

Recommendations

• To relook the size and presentation off the Northern Cape pavilion to accommo-
date the increasingly limited budget

• To relook product offerings on the stand to encourage more tour operators and 
also to increase the variety and range of product offerings rather than the current 
predominantly accommodation product representation.

• To present quality product offering which can only enhance the Northern Cape’s 
position as desirable tourism destination in Southern Africa

• Develop and sell more Northern Cape tour packages to promote visits to the Prov-
ince especially for this target market

SADC 

namibia Tourism expo: 8 – 11 June; outdoor eco Adventure and Travel expo: 
10 – 12 June

The thirteenth annual Namibia Tourism Expo took place from 8 until 11 June 2011. The 
event is organised by Republikein News Production, with the support of all Namibian 
tourism organisations. In addition, the Namibia Tourism Board (NTB) works closely 
with the organisers by inviting international travel agents, guests and members of the 
media to the Expo.  Since its inception in 1999, the Namibia Tourism Expo has con-
sistently grown and has earned a superb reputation for offering the only centralised 
marketing platform for Namibia’s hospitality industry. Apart from presenting a highly 
effective showcase for exhibitors active in tourism, the organisers have revitalized 
the exhibition year after year by expanding the showcase. Tour and safari operators, 
travel agents, lodges, hotels, restaurants, tourism-related SMME’s, all Namibia’s major 
tourism support bodies and suppliers to industry flock to the event to introduce their 
products and catch up on the latest developments in tourism.

Activations and meetings

An e-mailer campaign was send out to 178 Namibian trade, travel agents and media 
inviting them to a breakfast presentation on the Northern Cape and its tourism of-
ferings, the upcoming Maloof, the Cape to Namibia route and 5 product (entrepre-
neurs) owners. 17 trade and 4 media attended the event. 14 requested meetings at 
the show. We discussed client needs and provided information about tourism offer-
ings.  A further 41 meetings were conducted by representatives on the SMME stand.  
These resulted in bookings for tour operators and other product representatives on 
the stand.  We enjoyed extensive pre- and during event publicity.  We were men-
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tioned in Namibian / Windhoek editorial. 
In partnership with Highline Tours, a 4x4 
tour was promoted. These activities drove 
much traffic to our stand, including 345 
competition entry forms.  

Stand Awards

The NCTA stand won a silver award and 
the Northern Cape Entrepreneur stand a 
bronze award in the category “”Best Tour-
ism Stand”.

Namibia is becoming exceptionally well 
visited.  Northern Cape benefits due to 
our proximity for, not least, the self-drive 
visitor.  During the second quarter of 
2011, there were 70.3% arrivals from Af-
rica, of which  59% were from Namibia.  
This was 8,7% up on the previous year, 
which had seen 67.9% arrivals from Africa, 
with 60.8% from Namibia.  This remains 
an important market to cultivate.

NCTA presence at the Namibia Tourism 
Expo was very successful, especially with 
the give-aways and competition, which 
encouraged more feet to the stand. Com-
petitions are surely a good way to encour-
age visitors to our stand and ultimately to 
the province, thereby assisting with our 
SADC tourism drive. Most of the people 
who visited NCTA stand have been to the 
province before, with Kalahari and Na-
makwa topping the list. 

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 540

• Northern Cape Maps: 500

• English DVDs: 20

• German DVDs: 200

Sports and events Tourism exchange: 
27- 29 July 2011 

This fact finding mission we conducted 
in partnership with the Department of 
Sport.  We gained information on the 
bidding for sporting events and on un-
derstanding the business aspect of the 
sporting arena.

marketing Collateral Distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 400

• Northern Cape Maps: 200

• German DVDs: 20

• Spanish DVDs: 20

• Cape to Namibia: 50

Tour Salon poznan (poland) 19 - 22 october 2011

A 10- day tour itinerary was successfully launched at the Travel and Tourism Show held 
in Prague.  The Eastern European markets, followed by the Middle Eastern markets, 
are increasingly growing. This is evident in the increased requests for information 
from these countries from both the travel trade as well as the South African Embas-
sies’ tourism desks within these countries. 

World Travel market in london:  7 – 10 november 2011

As the premier global event for the travel industry, WTM is a vibrant must-attend four 
day business-to-business event.  A diverse range of destinations and industry sec-
tors are presented to UK and international travel professionals, who meet, network, 
negotiate and conduct business.  The organisers reported a 5 percent increase in 
visitors compared the 2010 event and a 15% increase compared to 2009.  The United 
Kingdom remains one of the most important core markets.  Our attendance at WTM 
provided opportunities to network with the SA Tourism UK team regarding trade and 
media engagements to South Africa.  This resulted in a firm commitment for 20 trade 
and media to visit the province in February 2012. Total number of visitors from this 
market remains on our Top 10 lists of countries visiting the destination.  It is also 
clearly visible in the number of visits to our website generated from UK search en-
gines.  We are also enjoying unique visitors from the UK on our website and they are 
spending some time on the website, thus are interested and planning to visit.  The 
Northern Cape competes not only with sister provinces or countries within Southern 
Africa and Africa for the tourism dollar of our key and developing markets.  We com-
pete with the world.  Face to face marketing has shown time and time again to be 
the most efficient manner of not only selling our destination.  We engage first hand 
with our consumers to efficiently and effectively deliver on their demands.  As result 
of our attendance at ITB and WTM, we have three tour itineraries in two markets, 
with concrete departure dates for 2012. We have effectively delivered on our strategic 
objectives through well structured meetings, presentations and events attended.  The 
Minister of Tourism, Marthinus van Schalkwyk, congratulated the province on our 
recent success with Maloof Money Cup.

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 500

• Northern Cape Itineraries: 250

Vakantiebeurs, utrecht: 10 - 15 January 2012

Staged annually in Utrecht, Vakantiebeurs, (operational for 39 years) is the world’s 
largest consumer event.  This consumer-to-business event presents a diverse range 
of destinations and industry sectors to the Dutch travelling public. The first day, being 
a trade day, offers not least an opportunity to meet, network, negotiate and conduct 
business with major Dutch travel trade.  The Dutch market is a healthy contributor to 
South Africa’s arrivals.  The Netherlands is ranked the fourth largest long-haul market 
for South Africa after the UK, USA and Germany.  NCTA attended along with the De-
partment of Tourism and a delegation of the Department of Economic Development, 
Finance and Tourism. Our stand was part of the South Africa Village managed by the 
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Exhibition Organisers and supported by 
SA Tourism Netherlands.  We also attend-
ed the South African Tourism Netherlands 
Road Show, presented immediately after 
Vakantiebeurs.

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 1167

• Northern Cape Maps: 823

• Northern Cape Itineraries: 19

fiTuR, madrid: 18 – 22 January 2012

NCTA attended Fitur in partnership with 
the Department of Tourism.  This was 
upon an invitation from the South African 
Embassy in Spain.  South African compa-
nies participating included Private Safaris, 
Rhythm Africa Tours & Safaris, Sun Inter-
national, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, Value 
South Africa, and Welcome Tourism Ser-
vices.  Northern Cape product demand 
at this show was for hunting packages 
combined with safari experiences; high-
end safaris; adventure.

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 923

• Spanish DVDs:   166

iTb, berlin: 8 - 11 march 2012

ITB Berlin is a prime meeting place, a mar-
ket place and a driving force behind the 
entire international tourism industry.  The 
exhibition area and various segments, 
along with the comprehensive congress 
programme and supporting events, rep-
resent the entire product spectrum of the 
tourist industry worldwide.  At the same 
time, they form the basis for the devel-
opment of new ideas, global approaches 
and targeted marketing.  With more than 
180,000 visitors, among these 108,000 
trade visitors, and over 10,000 exhibitors 
from 180 countries, ITB Berlin is the lead-
ing business-to-business platform of all 
tourism industry offers. In addition, the 
world’s largest tourism convention, Mar-
ket Trends & Innovations, provides unique 
opportunities to benefit from the leading 
think tank of the global tourism industry. 
All levels of the value- added chain are 
present, from tour operators to booking 
engines, destinations, airlines, hotels up 

and even car rentals. Despite its size, ITB Berlin is clearly structured. ITB Berlin enjoys 
worldwide media recognition and offers comprehensive support for all marketing.  
ITB continues to grow as the global travel industry’s think tank and provided delegates 
with more than just inspiration for the future, with a programme that looked at cur-
rent developments, offered concrete solutions and presented today’s relevant best 
practices in all spheres of the industry.

Challenges identified during meetings

• Air access

• Service excellence

• Departure time to Upington - too early for arriving tourists. Tourists can only depart 
the next day. Most tourists refuse and choose the Kruger Park instead 

• Pricing – accommodation prices are rocked out of control during flower season, 
tourist view this as a rip off. This is very bad for potential visitors

• Signage, especially N7 Cape to Namibia route

marketing collateral distributed:

• Northern Cape Travel Guides: 560

• Northern Cape Maps:  520

• German DVDs:   132

Comments

The continued annual growth of the ITB platform and the growth of visitor and trade 
numbers to the show indicate that it remains a premier platform for engaging not 
only the German market but also other strategic markets. Visitors to the trade fair 
are predominantly in the 50 and older market, representing the segment of this im-
portant market that does travel continuously and the second most likely to travel to 
South Africa and the Northern Cape.  Among our most significant ITB scoops was the 
introduction by Highline Travel to HOBO Reisen, which resulted in a 14-day flower 
tour for 2012.     



3939
InternatIOnal rOaDShOWS 
– participate in SAT roadshows and workshops in growth and tactical markets

South African Tourism netherlands Roadshow / workshop

The NCTA attended this 1-day workshop / roadshow, which was presented immediately after Vakantiebeurs. In partnership with 
the Department of Tourism, we conducted a presentation on the tour offerings of the Northern Cape.  The presentation included 
the proposed routes to 43 travel agencies.  We also conducted one-on-one speed marketing meetings.  These gave us an op-
portunity to sell the Northern Cape to 17 qualified tour operators and product managers. Despite time limitations, we managed 
to interest several of the tour operators to consider a Northern Cape Tour offering in their next printed catalogues and online tour 
offerings. HOBO Reizen, one of the participants, again met with us during ITB and we successfully concluded a 16-day itinerary 
featuring the flowers for July and August.  Several other tour operators have already scheduled meetings during Indaba, where 
we will continue the discussions and hopefully conclude a tour offering to their clients.  With 10 Dutch Tour operators and media 
already confirmed for a post- Indaba tour of the Northern Cape, we will continue selling the unique tour offerings of our province. 

Challenges identified during meetings

• Air access

• Service excellence

• Departure time to Upington - too early for arriving tourists. Tourists can only depart the next day. Most tourists refuse and 
choose the Kruger Park instead 

• Pricing – accommodation prices are rocked out of control during flower season, tourist view this as a rip off. This is very bad 
for potential visitors

• Signage, especially N7 Cape to Namibia route

Year Market total room night’s
rand spent per 
person per night 
(land and air)

Value rand Growth %

2010 USA 26 554 1 080 R28 678 320

2011 USA 62 296 1 080 R67 279 680 9.1

2010 Namibia 173 408 1,560 (land market) R270 516 480

2011 Namibia 152 310 1,640 (land market) R249 788 400

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012
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Key Performance area 4:  MICe and events Development 
Aim:  To attract and stage high-revenue Conferences, Meetings, Incentives, Exhibitions and Events

Strategy actions Performance targets Performance 

Conference and Meetings 
Support

Support the development and 
expansion of the MICE sector 
to:

Improve tourism demand 
especially during periods of 
slower demand

Advance and compliment 
the brand identity and attract 
higher spending visitors

Provide bidding support with 
associations, sports bodies, 
etc.

Gather facts and figures

Assist with compiling bid 
documents

Prepare promotion materials

Conference marking and 
bidding support for at least 
2 meetings of 100 delegates 
or more, in conjunction with 
conference venues

Achieved

Promote the northern Cape 
as a MICe destination

Advertise in appropriate 
media

PR and communication aimed 
at MICE market

5 MICE advertisements with 
enquiries measured

Achieved

Sell the northern Cape to 
trade buyers as a MICe op-
tion

Attend MICE sales platforms:

Meetings Africa

At least two trade relation-
ships and agreements estab-
lished per MICE fair

Achieved

events support

Support the development and 
expansion of annual events, 
including:

Flagship events: NCTA as key 
partner

Endorsed Events: NCTA 
endorsement and promotion 
through regular channels

Seed-supported local events: 
NCTA provides limited finan-
cial support for events at local 
town level.

Support Flagship events

Provide marketing support 
for selected flagship events 
including:

NCTA cost/benefit of at least 
R30 for every R1 spent
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Strategy actions Performance targets Performance 

Maloof Money Cup 

Promote MMC at exhibitions

Achieved

• Maloof Money Cup suc-
cessfully implemented

• Benefit Concert 

I• nternational, domestic and 
national marketing cam-
paigns – major internation-
al exposure received.

Media coverage still be-
ing received. To date since 
December 2010 29 billion 
impressions were generated, 
worldwide reaching an inter-
national audience of 23 billion 
and generating a media value 
of USD 309 million.

Achieved
Bloodhound

Promote Bloodhound at 
exhibitions

Work on the plan in progress
Andy Green and Bloodhound 
team visited South Africa
Major media coverage 
received 133 articles at R28,9 
million reaching 70 million 
viewers.

Achieved

Kalahari Festival Event postponed

Support local events 

Provide support and endorse-
ment for to the develop-
ment and promotion of local 
events, including:

Diamond & Dorings Festival

Williston Festival

Gariep Festival 

Kalahari Kuierfees

Apollo / Alluta Film Festival

Carnarvon Festival

Namakwa Festival

Measurable growth and 
expansion of at least 10% p.a. 
in attendance of each local 
event supported by NCTA

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Produce annual events 
calendar

Produce a Northern Cape 
events calendar in print and 
electronic format for visitor 
and industry distribution

Detailed monthly events in 
the monthly e-newsletter and 
on website 

Achieved

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012
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The NCTA is tremendously excited about 
our relatively new pursuit of the lucra-
tive, influential and seasonality-immune 
Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and 
Events (MICE) market.  This market rep-
resents enormous new possibilities for 
extending the length of stay of visitors, 
for introducing fresh business and leisure 
markets to the province, for raising aware-
ness of our niche offerings (including dia-
mond shopping tourism) to some of the 
world’s most influential conference del-
egates.  Having said that, our new con-
vention centre does not have the same 
capacity as rival centres in Johannes-
burg, Durban, and Cape Town; however 
we offer unrivalled ecotourism pre- and 
post- tours notably for conferences that 
ever increasingly focus on sustainable 
development, notably with regard to the 
interface between the environment and 
communities.  Why have we entered into 
the MICE market?  The Northern Cape 
Tourism Act prescribes that the NCTA co-
operate between the public and private 
sectors in the pursuit of tourism growth 
for the benefit of all the people of the 
province. In the absence of regional tour-
ism forums specific to the MICE market, 
the NCTA Board deliberately embarked 
on our first regional quarterly stakeholder 
partnership engagement with regard to 
the MICE market.

Among benefits of romancing the MICE 
market, this market travels year-round, 
tends to repeat its activities at the same 
venues, frequently includes large num-
bers such as accompanying family mem-
bers or spouses, includes a significant 
and niche pre- and post- conference 
tours component.  This market tends to 
see the return of the same visitors time 
and again because conferences, for ex-
ample, are hosted on for example an an-
nual basis or perhaps the business visitor 
is inspired to return with their family after 
having initially attended a conference in 
the region.  The hosting of the MICE mar-
ket places us at the forefront of national 
and global attentions as a serious force 
for the hosting of business events, and 
by extension, attracts infrastructural and 
business investor interest between the 
public and private sectors.  The power 
of just one major player in the domestic, 
regional or international business arena 

represents a significant coup for the province.

As for events, if carefully managed in that multiple public-private sector funding 
sources are secured year-on-year, they tend to show annual growth (the NCTA sup-
ports local events that demonstrate at least a 10 percent annual growth).  Foot traf-
fic is guaranteed with the hosting of events as not only do we attract visitors from 
neighbouring towns and provinces; we attract local communities who turn up in a 
consolidated front of community pride.  When local communities start to see that 
Event X means bread on the table for a member of their own family or a neighbour or 
friend, community buy-in to the event and to the hosting of other events in that town 
increases.  The local and even provincial and national economy benefits, even if only 
in terms of temporary job creation and skills development through the hosting of an 
event on, say, an annual basis.  An event brings together the community in a united 
front as they bid to outdo rival events.  In addition, events promote rural tourism as 
well as cultural and heritage tourism, all new sectors identified in the new National 
Tourism Sector Strategy.

The Mittah Seperere Convention Centre, for its part, has, at 2,000 square metres, a 
capacity of 2,500, with the potential for future expansion.  The facility is a tourist attrac-
tion in its own right and is ideally situated, being opposite The Big Hole.   The facility 
is being marketed at an international level as a high tech convention centre and is 
anticipated to provide a decent sized cash injection into the province.

miCe Strategy

A Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Events (MICE) Operations Plan has been 
presented to the NCTA Board for approval. The MICE strategy is currently being de-
veloped, taking into consideration relevant outputs from and critical elements of the 
following developmental initiatives:

• Provincial Air Access Strategy – commissioned by Department of Economic Devel-
opment and Tourism

• Provincial Event Strategy – commissioned by Department of Economic Develop-
ment and Tourism

• South African Tourism’s Event Strategy

COnFerenCe anD MeetInGS SUPPOrt 
– support the development and expansion of the miCe sector

provide bidding support with associations

A key function in providing bidding support for meetings, incentives, conferences 
and events is the collating of facts and figures, as well as assisting in the compilation 
of bid documents.  Central to this is the preparation of promotional materials.  Bidding 
support for the following events was considered during the period of review:

• Paragliding World Cup Championship, scheduled to take place in De Aar in March 
2013

• International Formula Drift event, intended to take place in Kimberley in Decem-
ber 2012

• Kalahari Desert Speedweek event, scheduled to take place at Hakskeenpan in 
August 2012

• International Stereoscopic Union World Congress scheduled to take place in Kim-
berley in 2017

• Congress and Exhibition by the South African Institute of Mechanical Engineering 
in conjunction with the Engineering Council of South Africa and the Bloodhound 
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Group, intended to take place during 
2013 in Kimberley

promote northern Cape as a miCe 
Destination

Promoting the Northern Cape as a des-
tination of choice for Business Tourism 
is an important element of our promo-
tional and marketing initiatives. During 
the period of review, the NCTA promoted 
the Northern Cape on 2 international 
platforms, namely the Safari Club Inter-
national in Las Vegas, USA and Meetings 
Africa in Sandston, South Africa. The ex-
tensive media coverage generated as a 
result of recently hosted events such as 
the Maloof Money Cup Skateboarding 
Championship, the 7th International Wild-
life Ranching Symposium and work com-
pleted on the Bloodhound Landspeed 
track, the Northern Cape Province has 
positioned itself as a desirable destina-
tion for the hosting of world class events 
within Southern Africa.

las Vegas visit

A visit to the Formula Drift Pro Champi-
onship circuit was undertaken by a del-
egation led by Premier Hazel Jenkins at 
Las Vegas from 24-29 August 2011.The 
objective of this visit was to gain an un-
derstanding of the processes involved in 
hosting and managing an event of this 
nature with a view to effectively develop-
ing a management plan for the hosting 
of a Formula Drift Pro Championship in 
Kimberley, South Africa. 

Washington DC visit

Immediately following the Las Vegas visit, 
the Premier and delegation transferred 
to Washington DC to attend the Maloof 
Money Cup contest in Washington DC. 
The motivation behind this visit is the be-
lief that it will offer the province the best 
possible opportunity to further strength-
en and secure the estimated value of an 
event of this magnitude and utilise the 
platform to tie up and address any block-
age or challenge that might threaten the 
success of the Kimberley event.

Sell the northern Cape to trade buy-
ers as a miCe option

Safari Club international

The SCI is the world’s largest international 

hunting show and this year was held at the Mandalay Bay Convention Centre in Las 
Vegas. The SCI’s main objective is the promotion of conservation in the hunting in-
dustry and the protection of freedom to hunt.  The NCTA partnered with Wintershoek 
Johnny Vivier Safaris in marketing the Northern Cape. Marketing material which in-
cluded the Northern Cape Travel Guides and Maps were distributed from their stand.  
The outcome of a meeting held during this event was that hunting outfitters are 
prepared to include tourism packages on itineraries.

meetings Africa: 

Meetings Africa is South Africa and Southern Africa’s largest Business Tourism Trade 
Exhibition. Held at the Sandton Convention Centre, this Business Tourism platform 
affords the trade platform for South Africa’s business tourism community and stake-
holders to promote and market the destination to the world’s foremost buyers of 
MICE business.

South African Tourism hosted buyers from the following countries:

Australia Germany Nigeria
Belgium India Spain
Brazil Italy Sweden
Canada Kenya Switzerland
China Netherlands United Kingdom
France New Zealand United States of America
  

In the following categories:

Local and International meeting and event 
planners

Incentive houses

Association buyers of international conven-
tions

Conference organisers (PCO)

Local Corporate executives who book business 
travel

Sales and Promotion agencies

In-house event co-coordinators Marketing Agencies
Travel agencies specialising in incentive, busi-
ness and conference travel

PR and Advertising Agencies

The NCTA, in collaboration with the Northern Cape Economic Development Agency, 
participated at Meetings Africa to promote the province as a destination of choice for 
business tourism. The MSCC was promoted and marketed as a viable and alternative 
choice for meetings, conferences, exhibitions, and concerts. The NCTA held approxi-
mately 50 meetings with various stakeholders in most of the categories in attendance

The interest in the province as a business tourism destination varied but the overarch-
ing principle was that the Northern Cape is viewed as alternative and viable to current 
destinations in South Africa. It is however regarded to be a new destination and per-
ceptions exist that it is a difficult and expensive destination to visit due to the fact that 
it does not have direct air access from international destinations. Unique alternative 
travel options such as luxury train travel to Kimberley generated lots of interest, es-
pecially with incentive travel buyers. Packaged itineraries and marketing agreements 
with PCO’s and Destination Marketing Companies are to be strongly considered and 
implemented.  Itineraries and pricing structures for the MSCC have been requested 
by approximately 50% of international buyers.

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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eVentS SUPPOrt 
– support the development and ex-
pansion of annual events

We support the development and expan-
sion of annual events, including:

• Flagship events:  NCTA as key partner

• Endorsed events:  NCTA endorsement 
and promotion through regular chan-
nels

• Seed-supported local events:  NCTA 
provides limited financial support

flagship events

maloof money Cup

The presentation of an event such as 
the Maloof Money Cup falls well within 
the NCTA’s mandate. Staging this world 
renowned skateboarding competition 
provided the Provincial government with 
an opportunity to bring about a real and 
positive shift in how the Northern Cape 
is perceived as a destination. The Maloof 
Money Cup is regarded as the world’s 
greatest skateboarding event and is a 
premier showcase for amateur and pro-
fessional skateboarding. The competi-
tion offers the biggest prize purse of any 
skateboarding competition, with a total 
purse of half a million rand. The event 
included competition classes in amateur 
street skating, professional street skat-
ing and professional vert and mini-mega 
ramp skating.

Goals

• Destination repositioning: To provide 
momentum for a shift in how the 
province is perceived as a tourist des-
tination, i.e. that the Northern Cape is 
accepted in the market as a premier 
destination for extreme sport and ad-
venture activities.

• Niche tourism product development: 
To provide an opportunity for devel-
oping skateboarding as a sustainable 
niche tourism product offering to the 
market.

• Destination awareness: To provide a 
platform from where there is a sus-
tained media highlighting of the 
Northern Cape as extreme sport and 
adventure destination, while show-

casing other tourist attractions.

• Increase in the number of tourist arrivals: To provide a stimulus for the increase in 
the number of domestic and international tourist arrivals to the province.

• Infrastructure development: To provide a world-class skate park in each of the 
provincial regions.

• Sport development: To ensure the development of skateboarding as an easily ac-
cessed sport targeting the youth and attracting as many as possible local riders to 
enter.

• Job creation: To encourage the creation of permanent and temporary job oppor-
tunities.

• Small enterprise development: To provide opportunities for small enterprise de-
velopment and growth through exposure to the competition itself and the likes of 
servicing and manufacturing of skateboards.

• Economic impact: To improve the tourism sector’s contribution to the provincial 
economy and amplify the local and provincial economic multiplier effect.

 

Sponsors

The MMC is the pinnacle of extreme sport and with international media coverage 
proved a sponsorship dream for the following sponsors: Kumba Iron Ore (R10 million 
and the competition presenter rights); Standard Bank (R1 million towards the suc-
cessful hosting of the event); South African Tourism (Marketing and PR partner; First 
National Bank; 

event Activations

Ahead of and around the launch period, awareness programmes, Skateboarding for 
Hope, Protours, a 100-day countdown (Indaba, May 2011), a 50-day countdown (Kim-
berley, August 2011), a 20-day countdown (Kuruman, September 2011), and activa-
tions at Soweto’s Maponya Mall were among initiatives that took place.  The main 
event was a 3--day event that covered the Pro Men’s Championship, the Pro Vert 
Championship, and The Amateur Championship.  The launch event took place at 
Indaba during May 2010 and in New York in June 2010, in both cases to domestic and 
international audiences.   

main event

The main event took place from 30 September to 2 October 2011. It was preceded by 
an Olympic type opening event on 29 September, which included projection onto 
water screens with performances by well-known performing artist, Dr Victor and the 
Rasta Rebels and story-telling by a San group ending in a 10 minute fireworks display.  
The 3 day event was well attended with approximately 5000 people from all over 
South Africa, neighbouring countries and the rest of the world going through the 
gates daily. Ishod Wair from Pennsylvania, USA walked away with the grand prize of 
R730,000.00 in the professional street course championship, followed by a former 
South Africa, currently living in Australia with the second prize of R300,000.00. A Ca-
nadian, Pierre Luc Gacnon won the vert championship and walked away with approxi-
mately R400,000.00. The amateur championship was won by Justus Kotze from Cape 
Town, who used his winnings to settle his student loan at Cape Technical.

bloodhound project

Preparations to host the landspeed record attempt of 1000mph or 1609kph is well 
on track at Hakskeenpan near Mier  in the Siyanda District of the Northern Cape 
Province. The 315 temporary labour force has completed removal of stones from the 
main track of approximately 20km by 500m and have started work on the safety zones 
on both sides of the main track. The total expected area envisaged to be cleared 
will amount to 24million square metres which will be the biggest area to be cleared 
by hand according to the Guinness World Records. The landspeed record attempt 
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is expected to take place during the dry 
season in 2013.

Support local events 

Northern Cape is perfectly positioned to 
capitalise on the domestic market’s appe-
tite for rural events.  An ever increasing 
number of jaded “city slickers” now flock 
to the outlying areas to “let down their 
hair” away from city stresses.  Northern 
Cape is thus ideally poised to capitalise 
on this growing market as a means of 
promoting socio-economic cohesion in 
rural nodes.  Ideally every event should 
demonstrate incremental growth, albeit 
extenuating circumstances sometimes 
prevent this from being the case each 
year, for example the so-called “Weather 
Gods” may bring rain and a consequent 
lack of support for that year’s event.  The 
global economic crisis or a petrol hike 
may mean that an event receives less 
support one year from the next.  The 
event continues regardless as a fine exer-
cise in community pride and in forging a 
newfound respect for the ways in which 
tourism can unite a community around 
a central focus “project”.  Community 
members may service a certain niche for 
the duration of an event, only to discover 
that this service has the potential to be-
come a full-time job, for example serving 
moerkoffie or producing unique hand-
crafted souvenirs.   

During the year under review, we sup-
ported the following local events: Gariep 
Festival; Carnarvon Kreeberg Festival; Wil-
liston Winterfees; Apollo Film Festival; 
Namakwa Festival; Barney Barnato Golf 
Challenge; Marrick MTB Challenge; Karoo 
Open 2012; Green Kalahari Canoe Mara-
thon; Waterski Championships By sup-
porting these events the NCTA achieved 
their objectives of Brand awareness, Im-
age building, Visibility and positioning of 
the destination as a viable host of events.

Gariep festival: 1 - 4 September 2011

The twelfth annual Gariep Festival was 
held in Kimberley.   The line-up saw fes-
tival-goers presented with an opportunity 
to choose from theatre shows and mu-
sic performances, as well as a children’s 
entertainment area. The NCTA engaged 
in general marketing and promotions 
as well as in a skateboarding activation 

to promote the Maloof Money Cup Championship and the L’il Jon benefit concert. 
Support provided includes advertising, online and social media marketing and skate-
board activation. 

Carnarvon Kreeberg festival: 8 - 9 october 2011

The Carnarvon Kreeberg Festival in Carnarvon has grown from strength to strength 
since the inaugural event in 2008.  Estimates supplied by the organisers indicate that 
B&B’s generated profits of approximately R72,000 and it is estimated that 8 jobs were 
created for the event.  There was increased community participation at the most 
recent festival.  Increased visitation to the tune of an estimated 700 visitors resulted 
in increased sales by local businesses.  Support provided includes online and social 
media marketing and production of marketing material. This event’s visitation figures 
indeed grew by 10 percent.

Williston Winterfees: 2 - 3 September 2011 

Now in its second year, this event’s biggest success was the cultural integration as 
reflected in management, artists, stalls, entertainers and people attending the festi-
val.  As a viable art and culture country festival, this is without doubt one of the most 
unusual and colourful festivals in South Africa and attracted 800 people, an increase 
of over 200 percent on the previous year.  Next year’s target, well within sight, is to at-
tract 2,000 visitors. Support provided includes online and social media marketing and 
production of marketing material.  

In this regard, it is recommended that the NCTA increase the investment for the festi-
val for the following reasons:

• The festival indicates a good community involvement (all cultures are involved)

• The area is a poverty stricken area

• The festival is well organised 

• The cross-sectoral economic beneficiation

• Promotes rural tourism and has the potential to grow extensively with further sup-
port

Apollo film festival: 2 - 10 December 2011 

The Apollo Film Festival in Victoria West has now celebrated 11 years.  It does not cur-
rently receive the support of the National Film and Video Foundation and was only 
supported by the NCTA. DEDaT allocated funding on condition that the municipality 
get involved and support the event but it seems this did not transpire, leading to the 
funds not being made available for the Apollo Film Festival.  Revival of this historic 
event should become a priority for the Northern Cape. Such revival will boost the 
economy of Victoria West and the surrounding areas. The Department of Economic 
Development and Tourism and Department of Sport, Arts and Culture will be ap-
proached to assist in reviving the Apollo Film Festival to its rightful place. Support 
provided includes online and social media marketing and production of marketing 
material.   

It is recommended that the NCTA increase the investment for the following reasons:

• The strategic position of Victoria West

• The Festival has an international association

• The investment will boost the local economy

• To promote and enhance rural tourism

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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namakwa festival: 16 - 18 December 
2011 

This festival has been linked to the Rich-
tersveld Festival.  Its primary aims are to 
boost cultural tourism such as the unique 
Namakwa signing and storytelling tradi-
tions.  The event needs better planning 
in order to maximise its objectives.  It is 
well poised to lure travellers on their way 
up or down from Namibia.  Ideally the 
festival needs to feature on the national 
events calendar due to its unique nature 
and local community focus. Support pro-
vided includes online and social media 
marketing.

barney barnato Golf Challenge: 22 - 
29 october 2011   

The annual and perennially popular Bar-
ney Barnato Golf Challenge is held at the 
Kimberley Golf Club.  The event attracted 
600 players, with the majority (450) vis-
iting from other provinces. This event 
is becoming a major player within the 
South African golfing community and has 
grown steadily over the past few years.  
This is significant, given the competition 
between various big name golfing events 
for the attentions of golfers and accom-
panying family supporters.  100 tempo-
rary jobs were created.  Both Kimberley 
and the province benefited through the 
participation of visitors from other re-
gions.  Golf tourism is a niche that several 
provinces are bidding for, for example the 
Western Cape enjoys tremendous suc-
cess from its promotion of golf tourism.  
Golf tourism is a lucrative niche and, in 
turn, ties in well with our bid to increase 
business tourism in the province. Support 
provided includes radio activation with 
OFM, advertising and online and social 
media marketing.

marrick mTb Challenge: 15 - 17 feb-
ruary 2012

The third Marrick MTB (mountain biking) 
Challenge is a 3-day staged race held 
at the Marrick Safari Game Ranch near 
Kimberley. The 2012 event saw the par-
ticipation of 4 riders from Belgium, rep-
resenting a large European club called 
MTB Ladies comprising some 220 riders 
and more than 2,500 followers on social 
networks.  Each stage is between 35 and 
90kms in length, including a night stage. 

The race offers eco-tourism opportunities for spectators and followers alike.  Cycling 
in South Africa is a dynamic sport that has grown from strength to strength over the 
past 8 years, with over 100,000 active riders taking part in races nationally and more 
riding informally.  When one looks at the entrant figures for the Cape Argus Cycle Tour 
(37,000) and the Pick & Pay 94.7 Cycle Challenge (30,000), it is easy to see how this 
dynamic sport has grown in popularity in the past few years.  Cycling has become big 
business and big brands are putting their names behind the sport. Support provided 
includes online and social media marketing and financial assistance of the timing 
systems.

Karoo open 2012 (pre- paragliding World Cup)

Paragliding operations started in De Aar in 2003. Since then, the region has set 9 
world records, double that in national records, and many more personal records. The 
paragliding school was opened in 2005 but since then the students have mainly come 
from larger towns such as Kimberley and Bloemfontein. The immediate community in 
De Aar has struggled to get involved due to the costs of the sport. For the higher in-
come brackets, paragliding is relatively cheap in comparison to other aviation options, 
however still very much out of the reach for most of the population living in smaller 
town such as De Aar. Support includes online and social media marketing.

Green Kalahari Canoe marathon: 22 - 24 march 2012

The inaugural Green Kalahari Canoe Marathon, a 99km 3-day stage race from Up-
ington to the Augrabies Falls was an undoubted success with top paddlers such as 
seven-time Dusi champion Martin Dreyer and Wayne August firm supporters.  Dreyer 
entered a team of ten paddlers from his Change a Life Academy.  The three-day stage 
race started from Upington and traversed 99 kilometres downstream towards Augra-
bies Falls and twenty one K2 boats and three K1 paddlers entered the competition, 
which had a prize purse of R270 000.  The event was well supported by the local struc-
tures and local communities who cheered the participants along the way. This event 
not only was successful in profiling the Northern Cape’s unique position as adventure 
event destination; the region’s rich cultural and tourism offering was showcased. Sup-
port includes online and social media marketing and hosting of media.

european African Waterski Championships: 29 march - 1 April 2011 

Lake Grappa, situated near Kakamas, was the venue for southern Africa’s first ever 
hosting of the European and African Under 21 Waterski Championships.  Twenty-five 
skiers from the likes of Belgium, Cyprus, Czech Republic, France, Great Britain, Italy, 
Namibia, Norway, and Sweden were present.  Competitors were judged on the jump, 
trick and slalom disciplines.  The chief judge was France’s Muriel Fromiau, ably assist-
ed by fellow adjudicators Louis Polome, the official South African Waterski Federation 
representative, and Greece’s Angeliki Androupoulo, the appointed EA representative, 
as well as 12 IWWF officials from eight countries.  The Italian took the honours, fol-
lowed by Great Britain and Sweden, with South Africa in 7th place.  The international 
participants were greatly impressed with the venue and the quality of the event.  The 
pre-event Kalahari excursions proved enormously popular among athletes, IWWF of-
ficials and supporters.  Seven media were present.  The successful delivery of this 
event once again validated the province’s positioning as the premier destination for 
extreme and adventure sports.  Support provided includes online and social media 
marketing and hosting of media.
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KeY PerFOrManCe area 5:  MarKet reSearCh anD InFOrMatIOn Man-
aGeMent 
Aim:  To develop an effective e-business platform and systems to monitor, track and measure the tourism performance of the 
Northern Cape and providing quality information to the identified target markets and promoting the destination and its unique 
tourism offerings

 

Strategy actions
Performance 
targets

Performance

e- Business system

Improve the usage of the in-
ternet to manage information 
and promote tourism

Upgrade Website 

Maintain, upgrade and improve Northern Cape 
e-business system and website to provide quality 
information to the intended markets and promoting 
the destination and its tourism offerings 

Unique visitors 
growing by 15% 
p.a.

Achieved – First 
phase  completed

Performance research

Measure and track the 
tourism performance of the 
Northern Cape 

Conduct visitor surveys

Bi-annual sample visitor profile and satisfaction 
survey in the province to track travel patterns, visitor 
profiles and experience ratings 

Measurable 
improvement in 
visitor satisfaction, 
spread and expen-
diture

Achieved. 

establish a tourism barometer

Track the performance of tourism using a “basket” of 
indicators 

At least 5% p.a. 
improvement in 
overall index

Achieved. 

Conduct Brand research

Conduct a syndicated brand awareness survey 
among SA consumers and international trade

At least 10% in-
crease p.a. in brand 
awareness

Achieved. 

Industry Database

Establish an inventory for 
regular communication and 
liaison with stakeholders and 
clients

Database management

Maintain a computer based application for capturing 
and tracking information regarding suppliers, opera-
tors, and customers in key target markets 

electronic newsletter

Focused, targeted 
and effective 
market execution,  
with best return on 
expenditure

Distribute to data-
base monthly.

Achieved

 

Achieved

Marketing Strategy

Devise a detailed growth 
strategy for each key target 
market 

Update and improve growth strategy

Based on target market strategy, devise and execute 
a practical growth strategy for each market identify-
ing segments, specific operators, specific media, etc. 
as per the new SAT Domestic strategy   and our own 
provincial strategy

Focused, targeted 
and effective 
market execution, 
with best return on 
expenditure

Achieved.

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Strategy actions
Performance 
targets

Performance

Information Distribution

Ensure the distribution of 
Northern Cape tourist infor-
mation at key distribution 
points

Distribute marketing collateral

Send marketing collateral for distribution at own of-
fice, airports in province, publicity association offices 
within and outside of the NC, SA Tourism offices and 
Embassies, etc

Increase distribu-
tion of marketing 
collateral by at least 
10 % and telephon-
ic enquiries to 20 
per day

Achieved.

It is an important function of the NCTA to monitor, track and measure the tourism performance of the Northern Cape through visi-
tor surveys, tourism barometers and event impact studies as well as establishing effective e –business platforms providing quality 
information to the identified target markets and promoting the destination and its unique tourism offerings. 

e-BUSIneSS SYSteM 
– improve the usage of the internet 
to manage information and promote 
tourism

upgrade Website

Web technology has grown tremendous-
ly over the last five years with new trends 
and remains an essential and valuable 
marketing tool for any destination mar-
keting organisation or product to provide 
information to prospective travelers.

Work on the new website, www.experi-
encenortherncape.com is progressing 
and the site map, design files and da-
tabase architecture and infrastructure, 
which formed part of phase one, has 
been completed. Phases 2 and 3 will be 
completed during the next financial year 
and will result in a secure web platform 
with optimal functional performance.

The multi lingual world class website will 
allow for an optimal functional, integrat-
ed and interactive fast site and will allow 
for the following content and capabilities:

• Will be compatible with all e-platforms 
including smart phones and ipad de-
vices

• Allow for the import and content in-
tegration from other relevant sources 
(Trip Advisor, Expedia) 

• Import NCTA social networks and al-
low for further integration from social 
platforms (blogs. flicker, twitter, face 

book, 4 square)

• A multi functional photo gallery which will allow for photo and video sharing and 
member downloads

• A dynamic event calendar

• Allow for multi lingual function( self translation) 

• Allow the leisure visitor to create his or her own trip planner 

• Have dedicated trade space with travel trade toolkit for the leisure trade partners

• It will also have a platform for Meeting Planners and Business trade partners 

• Destination Specialist Program 

• A press and media platform for media partners to download press material and 
photographs

• Allow for other new categories – more logical allowances are to be made for cat-
egories in order to facilitate easier navigation.

The current website is still being updated on a continuous basis whilst the new web-
site is under development. The site provides visitors with information on tourism activ-
ities, news, new products, special offers, accommodation facilities, as well as updates 
and information on events within the province.

northern Cape Social platforms

The NCTA’s social platforms are growing and now feature Google places and NC 
events social sites in addition to the NC bouquet which includes facebook, twitter, 
YouTube, flickr and four square. The Northern Cape social media platforms are in-
creasingly being used to inform and update the identified target markets. It was es-
pecially successfully utilized in creating interest and comment during Northern Cape 
events and seasonal tourism offerings. The daily logs detailing the best flower sights 
during the 2011 flower season was met with great response from both the travel trade 
and leisure visitors specifically interested in the unique flower tourism offering during 
the July to September period. 

Great success was also had with the posting of Northern Cape events and happen-
ings with event information and updates constantly uploaded with photographs and 
details. The Northern Cape social media friends, media partners and staff members 
of the NCTA continuously add general tourism information and highlights of their 
daily experiences on twitter, four square and facebook which encouraged the growth 
of friends of the Northern Cape social media platforms. The three day Green Karoo 
Marathon held in March alone encouraged more than 300 daily posts.
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Web Analysis for the period 201 to 2012

The figures in the table below show a growth in the number of visitors to the website in the year under review. This is then a fair 
assumption and an indication that public interest in the Northern Cape as a tourism destination is growing.  An interesting trend 
to note is from which countries these visits originated from:  Italy, France and Switzerland presented a strong presence in this year 
under review which could potentially indicate possible new markets of interest for the Northern Cape to pursue. Unique visitors 
from 93 820 increased to 106 812, number of visits increased from 155 917 to 165 343 and website hits from 9.2 million (9 211 850) 
to 14, 1 million (14,141 037).

2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Unique 
visitors 

22 219 24 408 22 343 24 850 20 959 27 843 27 670 30 340

Number 
of visits

36 833 39 494 36 892 42 698 36 173 47 967 50 604 30 599

Pages 
visited

654 922 815 389 793 161 772 328 670 407 909 168 860 457 846 590

Website 
Hits

2 195 295 2 681 709 1 713 882 2 620 964 2 222 247 3 032 621 2 836 941 3 024 614

Top 7 
Country

SA, Italy, UK, 
Netherlands 
Namibia,

Switzerland, 
France

SA, UK, 
Netherlands, 
Germany, 
Belgium, 
Italy, France

SA, UK,

Germany, 

Italy, 

Switzerland,

France, 
Belgium

SA, Italy, UK, 
Germany, 
Netherlands, 
Belgium, 
France

SA,UK, Italy, 
Namibia,

Netherlands

Switzerland,

Belgium, 

SA, UK, Italy,

Netherlands, 
Namibia, 
France, 
Belgium, 

SA, UK, Ger-
many, Italy,

Netherland, 
SA, France

Belgium

SA, UK, 
Nether-
lands, Italy, 
Belgium, 
France

USA

Top 
Regional 
Requests

Kalahari, 
Karoo, Na-
makwa

Kalahari, 
Namakw, 
Karoo

Karoo, 
Green Kala-
hari, Kalahari

Kalahari, 
Namakwa

Green Kala-
hari

Kalahari, 
Namakwa

Green Kala-
hari

Kala-
hari, Green 
Kalahari, 
Namakwa

Kalahari, 
Karoo, Na-
makwa

Kala-
hari, Green 
Kalahari, 
Namakwa

PerFOrManCe reSearCh 
– measure and track the performance of the northern Cape

Conduct Visitor Surveys

As part of the NCTA’s continuous CRM (customer retention marketing) strategy, the organization has started with NCTA-led visi-
tor surveys in partnership with the Department of Tourism and educational institutions within the province and in neighboring 
provinces. These surveys will be used to determine trends, objectives and wants and needs of the Northern Cape traveling pub-
lics. These findings will then be shared with our tourism partners and service providers to ensure that on continuous basis an 
enhanced tourism experience is being delivered to all our visitors to the Province. 

Visitor behavior needs to be tracked over at least two consecutive years to enable the organization to make informed recom-
mendations to its tourism partners. Visitor surveys were conducted during the Diamond and Dorings Festival and Monster Mob 
Races in April, Gariep Festival in September and along the N12 during December 2011. 

establish a northern Cape Tourism barometer

The NCTA is still facing challenges in receiving qualified information from partners and are in the process of identifying more key 
tourist attractions to approach for inclusion in this report. The NCTA has reviewed and revised criteria previously used and have 
set a new set of criteria more valuable to assess the performance of the province.

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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The new set of criteria will allow the NCTA to indicate duration of stay, number in the travelling party, city and country of origin and 
most importantly, why did they choose the Northern Cape. Critical marketing and quantitative information never before evident 
in these feedback reports would now be included in the survey documentation to determine productive marketing platforms and 
the tourism consumption of visitors whilst in the Northern Cape? 

The more complete set of assessment criteria is now providing critical information which will enable the NCTA to direct its mar-
keting efforts more effectively and ensure and deliver an enhanced travel experience for those choosing to visit the province. 

Further Statistics were also collected from key tourism products and information offices and again indicates mostly that the prov-
ince is increasingly attracting more visitors year on year with The Big hole and Augrabies National park as the most visited attrac-
tions. Kimberley and Kalahari tourism offices are the most visited. 

Key nC tourism Products total 3 top International 
Source markets

3 top national Source 
Markets

3 top SaDC Source Markets

Augrabies Waterfalls Na-
tional Park

65 842 Germany, France, Italy, 
UK

Gauteng, WC. NC Namibia, Botswana, Lesotho

Kgalagadi 28 938 Germany, France,

Switzerland, UK

Gauteng, WC, NC Namibia, Botwsana

Mokala National Park 10 669 Germany, France, Italy Gauteng, FS, NC Botswana, Lesotho
Namaqua National Park 11 998 France, Italy, Japan, 

Germany
WC, Gauteng, NC Namibia, Botswana, Malalwi

Richtersveld   4 880 Germany, UK, Belgium, 
France

Gauteng, WC, KZN, NC Namibia, Botswana

Tankwa Karoo National 
Park

  4 767 Germany, UK, Holland WC, NC, Gauteng -

The Big Hole 83 757 Germany, China, UK WC, Gauteng, FS Namibia, Botswana
Green Kalahari      352 Netherlands, France, 

Belgium

WC, NC, KZN Namibia, DCR

Namakwa 1  690 Germany, Netherlands, 
UK

Gauteng, WC, NC Namibia, Zambia, Congo

Kimberley Tourism 2 328 Germany, France, China NC, Gauteng, KZN Namibia

Conduct brand research

Maloof, Bloodhound and general awareness through marketing and promotional activities.

morning live 
broadcast - 

maloof
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InDUStrY DataBaSe 
– establish an inventory for regu-
lar communication and liaison with 
stakeholders and clients

Database management

Supporting the CRM strategy and to en-
sure an effective and strategic customer 
retention management process, the NCTA 
is continuously developing an integrated 
multi-sectoral database. These additions 
are being gathered from all CRM efforts 
and from all e-marketing platforms. The 
official NCTA data base is currently num-
bering 14 828 entries, an increase of 5 
773 entries from 2011. The entries added 
were sourced from all international and 
national attended shows attended as well 
as approved tour operators lists received 
from the German and Dutch SA Tourism 
offices and the Indaba updated trade list. 

upgrading takes place as follows:

• Business cards collected at events  
and exhibitions

• Attended and has grown by 63.75% 
over the last 12 months.

• Database will also be linked to new 
Northern Cape Tourism website.

listing categories 

Domestic

• Local product owners

• Accommodation establishments

• Local tourism information offices

• National tourism information offices

• Publicity Associations

• Local media (print and electronic)

• National media (print and electronic)

• Local tour operators and tourist guides

• National travel agencies

• National tour operators

• Domestic consumers

international

• International SA Tourism Offices

• South African Embassies

• International media (print and elec-
tronic)

• International tour operators 

• International travel agencies

• International consumers

Viral Campaigns and e -newsletter 

The new format monthly e-newsletter introduced in March 2011 continued to elicit 
favorable comments from both our consumers and trade partners with ongoing re-
quests to be added to the mailing database for future information and updates. The 
newsletter is also posted on the current website and the continued downloads are 
a further favorable indication of the interest in the information contained within the 
newsletters. In addition to the monthly e-newsletter the marketing department has 
also produced and circulated a bi-annual events newsletter which will be expanded 
to quarterly during the next financial year.

MarKetInG StrateGY 
– devise a detailed growth strategy for each key target market

update and improve growth strategy

Based on target market strategy, devise and execute a practical growth strategy for 
each market identifying segments, specific operators, specific media, etc. as per the 
new SAT Domestic strategy   and our own provincial strategy.

The NCTA has through extensive channel marketing efforts; both internationally and 
nationally, delivered on the tourism sector growth within the province. 

Internationally these included the successful collaboration with three international 
and one national tour operators in joint marketing efforts in selling the Northern 
Cape and its unique tourism offerings to our core markets; Netherlands, Belgium, 
Germany and the watch markets of China, Japan and Eastern Europe with several 5, 
14 day or 22 day published tour offerings in their official trade and leisure catalogues. 
Further investment:

• in marketing communications

• successful hosting of world class flagship events, trade and leisure shows atten-
dance, media hosting, editorial releases and advertising coupled with these pub-
lished itineraries has grown the marketing footprint of the Northern Cape tremen-
dously within our identified core and watch list markets and resulted in increased 
visitor numbers to the province.

The successful hosting of flagship extreme events has further increased the Northern 
Cape’s status away from a “Cinderella “status to that of a capable world class tourism 
destination and not to be ignored!  

Increased domestic marketing activities targeting specific market segments coupled 
with joint collaborations with SA Tourism in their Sho’t Left initiatives the Northern 
Cape domestic market share has also shown good improvement and growth. These 
activities include increased media presence, hosting of events and attending key 
trade and leisure shows.

With the introduction of the new national tourism sector strategy and the new do-
mestic tourism strategy launched by SA Tourism the NCTA will once again realign the 
provincial strategies accordingly to assist with the growth of the tourism sector as 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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economic pillar within the Northern Cape and South Africa. 

SA Tourism has done extensive work on a new domestic marketing strategy which is set for a full roll-out during 2012. NCTA will 
align our domestic marketing strategy accordingly and plans a roll-out of our new domestic marketing strategy during the new 
financial year.

InFOrMatIOn DIStrIBUtIOn 
– ensure the distribution of northern Cape tourist information at key distribution points

Distribute marketing collateral

Northern Cape information is continuously distributed to information points such as SA Embassies and SA Tourism offices to 
ensure that Northern Cape information is available at these key distribution points. We are also increasingly receiving requests 
from trade partners for information and have also started dissemination to our key trade partners in Germany, United Kingdom 
and Netherlands during the year under review. Marketing collateral was also distributed on international and national trade and 
consumer show platforms such as Vakantiebeurs, WTM, Indaba and ITB.

Distribution  
Points

nC Guide nC Map nC eng 
DVD

DVD tour 
Itineraries

nC DVD  
Spanish

nC  
e Guide

nC DVD 
German

Cape to 
namibia 
Map

Q 1 3 700 1 550 130   50 200  580
Q2 1 350   580  50   25  30  250
Q3 1 600 200  800 450
Q4 4 010 1 793  400 500 200
total 10 660 3 923 189 200 1 275 950 430  830

bosasa youth 
Centre Springbok
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KeY PerFOrManCe area 6: SPeCIal PrOJeCtS
Aim: To reduce barriers to business and support industry transformation

Strategy actions Performance targets Performance

airline access

Lobby and campaign for 
improved airline access 
to the Northern Cape

aviation task group

Set up an aviation task group to consider 
the current situation with regard to air 
access and to come up with possible solu-
tions and actions

The profile and need for im-
proved air access is raised consid-
erably

Achieved.

An additional flight 
from Cape Town to 
Kimberley (return) 
is in operation.

lobby for improved access

Meet airlines, civil aviation authorities, etc. 
and come up with a plan of action 

Successful agreements with 
inbound airlines.

Achieved.

Community and SMMe 
support

Assist SMMEs from 
previously disadvantaged 
communities to gain ac-
cess to tourism markets 
in support of BEE

Support attendance of travel fairs

Provide financial assistance to attend and 
exhibit at main fairs 

At least 5 SMMEs supported p.a. 
to attend travel fairs

Achieved.  

Facilitate SMMe marketing exposure

Provide preferential exposure in travel 
guide and on website 

Dedicated free SMME advertising 
page in travel guide and website

Achieved.

arrange SMMe networking

Create networking opportunities with the 
tourism industry

Arrange at least 1 function for 
SMMEs to meet mainstream 
trade. Arrange functions to intro-
duce SMMEs to trade  

Achieved.

Stakeholder relations 

Maintain relations with 
complementary organ-
isations and coordinating 
tourism structures

attend meetings and conferences

• National marketing meeting

• National CEO’s forums

• Minmec/Miptech

• Relevant DET meetings

• Relevant Industry Stakeholder 
meetings(Provincial, local and national)

• National conferences

• Provincial Stakeholder Forums

 

Achieved  

 aIrlIne aCCeSS 
- lobby and campaign for improved airline access to the northern Cape

lobby for improved access

Through negotiations, we have succeeded in improving the air access between Cape Town, Kimberley, and Johannesburg. 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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COMMUnItY anD SMMe 
SUPPOrt 
- Assist Smmes from previously dis-
advantaged communities to gain ac-
cess to tourism markets in support 
of black economic empowerment 
(bee)

Various communities, youth and SMME 
programmes and projects were support-
ed.  We assisted these organisations to 
become well established, giving them 
access to tourism markets in support of 
BEE.  In so doing, we help foster a North-
ern Cape tourism culture. The raising of 
community pride levels and the empow-
erment that arises out of such support is 
central to our Community & SMME Sup-
port strategy. As communities take more 
pride, service levels improve and there 
is increased buy-in to tourism within the 
province. NCTA can tangibly demon-
strate that tourism can and does enjoy 
a ripple effect in terms of community 
support and consequently job creation 
and raising levels of community pride.  
Combined, these factors feed back into 
a better quality tourism offering, with 
raised levels of service excellence. As 
confidence increases, new tourism prod-
uct owners may continue to emerge.   We 
stretched our resources to reach as many 
communities in the province as possible.  
We achieved admirably in this regard with 
events such as the Maloof Money Cup 
(MMC) and the Skateboarding for Hope 
clinics.  Community support is achieved 
via strategic partnering with other stake-
holders to advance community develop-
ment, inter alia: 

• Local and District Municipalities

• Government Departments

• Private Sector

Community Support

Social tourism: We support financing for 
tourism familiarisation trips for the aged, 
under- privileged, and for people living 
with disabilities.

Youth tourism: We support the financ-
ing of school excursions, sporting events, 
and Ambassador programmes, examples 

of which include: N12 Festive Season, Easter, Tourism Month, 2011, Maloof Aware-
ness/Development Campaign.  With the latter, we reached well over 30,000 young 
adults.

tourism Month: During this initiative, which ends during September each year (cul-
minating in World Tourism Day, 27 September), we provide financial support to pro-
vincial programmes for Tourism Day activities.  Our direct investment into Tourism 
Month for the year under review was R9428,000.00 

Special Projects: Indirect jobs created through our special projects include entertain-
ment, accommodation, travel, and catering.

bloodhound launch, mier

A total of 323 temporary jobs were created in the Mier area for the track preparation of 
the Land Speed record attempt. The workers are from the following towns:

• Philanderbron

• Rietfontein

• Klein Mier

• Groot Mier

• Loubos

maloof money Cup

Tourism substantially benefits local economies through job creation, investment pro-
motion and entrepreneurial development. The event hugely supported local eco-
nomic development as local SMME derived maximum benefits due to the procure-
ment of local products and other services. The accommodation sector accrued major 
benefits given the increased number of visitors to Kimberley. A communal spirit and 
social cohesion was achieved during all the activities throughout the event and a high 
level excitement and frenzy gripped the people within the province

Maloof Job Creation

Description Jobs Days Total Days

Skate Park 242 50 1142

Concert 283 20 561

Marketing & Branding 176 46 4593

Hospitality 150 5 750

Total 851 121 7046
Support to local festivals: The NCTA invested directly into local festivals to the tune 
of R300, 000.  Our investment benefited the following areas: entertainment; accom-
modation; catering; exhibition space; cultural displays corporate marketing collateral; 
marketing and promotion.

Smme marketing exposure

Marketing exposure is provided to SMMEs on an ongoing basis.  

SMME’s are listed in our travel guide in the following categories:

• All graded establishments listed in the town accommodation listing

• Provincial ETAYA finalists have a ¼ page display advert. 

Our support for SMME’s is extended in the following areas:

• NCTA exhibitions (national and international)=
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• Listed on Northern Cape Tourism 

website

• Included in tour packages of the 
Northern Cape

• SMME tour guides are exposed in 
press releases for events

• SMME tour guides are hired to under-
take tours

• SMME travel agents are hired to con-
duct media trips and trade education-
al trips.

• SMMEs (PDI accommodation estab-
lishments, tourist attractions, craft-
ers) are included in tour packages 
throughout the province

• SMMEs form part of all marketing and 
promotional initiatives – advertising, 
events and activation campaigns

• Exposure in the NCTA newsletter

Smme networking Support

• Provide assistance to attend and ex-
hibit at tourism shows

• Provide assistance for the production 
of marketing and promotional collat-
eral

• Provide platforms for networking op-
portunities and workshops

• Provide platforms for the marketing 
and promotion of products

• Provide marketing and promotional 
assistance during participation at ex-
hibitions (national and international)

youth Tourism Advancement

We undertake projects to enhance 
youth development, growth and leader-
ship skills, such that the youth can truly 
become tourism ambassadors.  We en-
hance youth tourism development by 
giving the youth an opportunity to have 
practical experience in their studies for 
career pathing purposes.  In order to ef-
fectively market the province, the NCTA 
participates in various shows, events and 
travel trade exhibitions. By supporting 
these events, we enhance the Northern 
Cape brand.  Of noteworthy mention 
is our involvement in specific Maloof 
Money Cup (MMC) campaigns that foster 
youth development.

Skateboarding for hope

With the launching of the Skateboarding for Hope initiative in October 2010, the NCTA 
jointly with other departments launched a long term legacy project.  This was with 
the objective of engaging the youth of the province, capturing their attention and 
growing their interest in skateboarding as not only a sport but also a social activity.  
Specifically, we aim to offer an activity that will give meaning to the lives of the youth 
and give them hope for a better future.  We also aim to identify talent and raise aware-
ness of the sport through the running of skateboard clinics and competitions. We 
aim to ensure that the Northern Cape Province has an active participative presence 
and representation in the Maloof Money Cup 2011 and to provide potential Northern 
Cape Skateboarders with a chance to enter the amateur competition.  Skateboarding 
for Hope managed to establish an extensive national footprint for the sport of skate-
boarding and building awareness for the mega-event in Kimberley.  The initiative 
reached far and wide, from major cosmopolitan and urban areas to deep rural com-
munities.  Skateboarding for Hope activations saw communities being introduced to 
skateboarding through free skateboarding clinics and demonstrations, promotional 
give-aways and talent scouting.

Youth Group Outreach With the assistance of sponsors, three groups of youth from 
KZN, Johannesburg and Cape Town, including their supervisors attended the compe-
tition in Kimberley.  The aim was to give the children from disadvantaged background 
an opportunity to experience the world’s greatest skateboarding championship and 
to enjoy a travel experience to the Northern Cape. 2,000 children from the province 
attended.

youth Volunteer programme

A total number of 130 unemployed youth were contracted as Maloof volunteers for 
the month leading up to the championships. The programme was a joint initiative be-
tween the Department of Economic Development & Tourism (Expanded Public Works 
Program Unit), the Northern Cape Tourism Authority, and the National Department 
of Tourism.  Collectively, the objective was aligned to and formed part of a national 
government programme aimed at providing poverty and income relief through tem-
porary work opportunities.  The job creation initiative provided training and skills de-
velopment in an effort to increase the ability of people to earn an income once they 
leave the programme.  The group of volunteers was deployed in sectors handling 
administration, environment, information, information technology, logistics, market-
ing, media, spectator services, ushering and volunteer management.  

Marketing projects that have a direct Impact on SMME Development and exposure

Projects  Direct Investment 

Local Festivals 195 000.00

Flagship Maloof 1 409 266.18

Special Projects - Bloodhound 594 907 00

Tourism Month 295 000 00

Community Support 384 000 00

Website 100 000 00

total 2 978 173 18

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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StaKehOlDer  
relatIOnS 
– maintain relations with organ-
isations and co-ordinating tourism 
structures

The Northern Cape Tourism Act pre-
scribes that the NCTA co-operate be-
tween the public and private sectors in 
the pursuit of tourism growth for the ben-
efit of all the people of the province.  In 
the absence of regional tourism forums, 
the NCTA Board deliberately embarked 
on our first regional stakeholder partner-
ship engagement.  These engagements 
will take place on a quarterly basis in each 
region in the form of road shows.  The 
partnership approach aims to ensure that 
there is a continuous information flow, 
supportive interaction and co-ordination 
between the various parties.  The first of 
the regional engagements took place in 
the Green Kalahari region in Upington.  
The NCTA Board was joined by a delega-
tion from the Tourism Grading Council 
and South African Tourism, which pre-
sented insights on our international and 
domestic markets.  NCTA staff presented 
leisure and business marketing plans for 
the province.

meeting the local stakeholders 

The leisure marketing team visited prod-
uct owners within the region, particularly 
those on the Kokerboom Route compris-
ing Upington, Kakamas, Keimoes, March-
ant and Kanoneiland. The first hand expe-
rience of the different tour activities and 
accommodation products was invalu-
able.  It provided insight into the spec-
trum of tourism products.  In particular, 
we gained a better grasp of the value and 
service levels on offer.  In line with our 
bid to continually forge and build on re-
lationships with product owners, we un-
dertake such trips.  This plays a significant 
role in advancing a tourism culture and 
in advancing service excellence.  We will 
be undertaking such visits on an ongo-
ing basis as we expand the “I love North-
ern Cape” campaign. These visits are to 
expand our knowledge of new products. 
We meet new entrants in the field, pro-
vide advice, and are kept abreast of chal-

lenges.  It is crucial that the NCTA is seen as sympathetic to listening to challenges 
experienced in the regions.  We must never be perceived as a bureaucracy that is 
controlled centrally, with no finger on the pulse of what is going on in the regions.  

provincial marketing forum 

As part of our campaign to promote intra regional travel and highlight the unique 
tourism offerings of each region, we try to schedule the provincial marketing forum 
meetings in the different regions to afford regions an opportunity to showcase their 
offerings.  We engage at these platforms to:

• Build corporate relations

• Share marketing communication plans

• Forge partnerships

• Share resources for advertising eg bulk advertisement discounts 

• Plan exhibitions to participate as team Northern Cape  

• Advance brand application

• Expand the Northern Cape tourism experience 

In terms of the objectives of the Northern Cape Tourism Act, it is through activities or 
platforms such as the above that we can effectively advance the province.  Tourism is 
everybody’s business.  It is only through information sharing with all partners that we 
can keep abreast from national, to regional and indeed at community level.  There 
are continuous policy changes and trends.  We benchmark our performance against 
these policies.

The Northern Cape Tourism Act provides a vehicle for the facilitation of public and 
private sector co-operation, participative decision making and funding in the context 
of marketing the Province as a tourism destination.

We achieve the above through the following activities:

• Forging private sector/SMME synergies

• Partnering at exhibitions

• Via our involvement in events

• Via our involvement in festivals

• Media tours 

• Hosting travel trade

It is in particular through our flagship events that we achieve our objectives.  People 
are always receptive towards our involvement as event sponsors.  Without partners, 
the NCTA would not exist.  We are mandated to work with all regions in our capacity, 
in general, as facilitators.  We work with the private sector and other stakeholders to 
champion and implement these processes.  Our internal planning can only occur if 
we have engaged effectively with all role players in the industry.  Transformation de-
mands that we participate and continually engage with other stakeholders.  We must 
lead the marketing and promotional agenda.
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programme 2: Corporate Services
Key Performance area 7: administrative services 
Aim: To ensure efficient and effective administrative management through compliance to PFMA  

Strategy actions Performance targets actual Performance
Office Systems

Manage office 
space and systems 

Security and safety Prompt payment All payments made within 30 
days as required by Treasury 
Regulations.

Pay office rent Prompt payment 
Pay water & electricity Prompt payment 
Maintain office image through office 
decorations  and gardening service 

Ensure that budget is not 
exceeded

Expenditure within budget. 

Purchase cleaning materials Budget not exceeded
Communication 
Systems

Ensure efficient 
and effective com-
munications and 
communication 
systems

Manage and execute postage and 
courier

Administer and service franking ma-
chine

Comply with policy Expenditure made in line with 
policy.

Manage and pay telephone, fax and 
Internet service

Telephone

Cellphone

Comply with policy All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

Manage printing and stationary Comply with policy All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

Manage rentals and make rental pay-
ments

Prompt payments 

Compliance with policies

All payments made within 30 
days as required by Treasury 
Regulations.

Order copy paper Within budget 

Comply with policy

Expenditure within budget.

All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.Manage photo copies

Progress reports

Within budget 

Comply with policy

Sundry expenses

Ensure efficient 
and effective 
control of sundry 
expenses

Manage petty cash for Public Rela-
tions, Entertainment, etc

Within budget 

Comply with policy

All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

Pay bank charges Efficient management of 
budgets

All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

Interest Paid Efficient management of 
budgets

Pay tV license Prompt payment All payments made within 30 
days as required by Treasury 
Regulations.

Insurance Prompt payment

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Travel and Subsis-
tence

Ensure effective 
and efficient travel 
and subsistence 
services

Petrol allowance

Processing of claims

Within budget 

Comply with policy

All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

air travel

Minmec

Miptec

CEO Meetings

Marketing Forum

Ad hoc

Within budget 

Comply with policy

All expenditure incurred in line 
with policy.

Subsistence claims

Processing of claims

Within budget 

Comply with policy
Board travel 

Subsistence 

Within budget 

Comply with policy
Movable Assets

Ensure effec-
tive and efficient 
management of 
movable Assets

Purchase and maintain computers Good Maintenance Purchase 
of 2 computers

Expenditure within budget.

All payments made within 30 
days as required by Treasury 
Regulations.

Prepare and pay payroll license fee Ensure payments are made
Office furniture Purchase Budget not exceeded

Compliance with policies

Key Performance area 8: Financial and Payroll Services    
 
Aim:  To ensure efficient and effective pay roll services and compliance with NCTA reporting procedures 

Strategy actions Performance targets actual Performance

taxes and levies

Ensure efficient payment of taxes, 
levies and membership fees

Pay skills development levy Ensure monthly payment All payments made within 30 days as 
required by Treasury Regulations.

Pay industry membership fees 
SATSA, SALTA, BMF

Pay and evaluate value membership 
regularly

Pay workman’s compensation levies Ensure  

Annual payment

Board Payments

Manage payments to Board members

Board honorariums

Prepare

Monthly

Ensure Monthly payment All payments made within the 
required timeframe. 

Wages and salaries

Ensure efficient payment of wages, 
allowances and other forms of remu-
neration

Prepare and pay salaries Ensure prompt and correct payment All payments made within the 
required timeframe.

Prepare and pay allowances

Housing

Motor

Ensure prompt and correct payment All payments made within the 
required timeframe.

Prepare and pay various employer 
contributions
UIF
Provident Fund

Ensure prompt and correct payment All payments made within the 
required timeframe.

Prepare and make medical aid fund 
payments

Ensure prompt and correct payment All payments made within the 
required timeframe.

Prepare and make bonus payments 
as per performance system

Ensure  

Annually payment

All payments made within the 
required timeframe.

Prepare and pay casual wages as  per 
project needs

Ensure  

Payments are made 

All payments made within the 
required timeframe.
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Key Performance area 9:  
human resources and Organizational Development
Aim: To ensure an efficient and effective organization with capable and motivated staff 

Strategies actions Performance targets actual Performance

hr Policies

Develop and imple-
ment appropriate 
HR policies and 
practices

labour relations policy
Develop and implement labour 
relations policy according to 
approved programme.

Completion of plan 

Implementation 

Disciplinary Code / Code of 
Conduct developed and imple-
mented.

Annual review of policies con-
ducted.

Procedures manual
Revise policies and procedures 
Develop new procedures 
manual

Completion 

Implementation

employee leave
Update and maintain Leave 
procedures and register 

Monthly balancing of leave 
register

Register updated and recon-
ciled monthly.

Performance  
management

Improve staff capac-
ity and perfor-
mance

Devise performance manage-
ment plan

Performance management 
system implemented and 
monitored

Policy and system approved 
and implemented.

Conduct annual skills audit 
and needs analysis and imple-
ment 

Skills programme completed 
and implemented

Skills audit conducted and 
derived from Performance as-
sessments . (Quarterly reviews)

Implement a skills develop-
ment programme for per-
sonnel (partner with learning 
institutions)

Arrange training programme

Attend seminars

Completion

Implementation

9 People sent on 4 formal train-
ing courses.

.

employee wellness

Maintain and 
improve staff and 
industry motivation 

employee Wellness Pro-
grammes:

Develop eaP programmes 
and offer support to staff

Brand ambassador awards for 
Staff and Industry employees

EAP programmes implemented 
and continuous staff support 
granted

Quarterly award for best em-
ployee

Staff continuously supported. 
EAP programmes to be imple-
mented in 2012 (budget)

Staff meetings held on a 
weekly basis.

Industry awards held in con-
junction with Tourism month 
activities.Arrange weekly staff meetings Staff wellness
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Key Performance area 10: Corporate Governance and Special Projects  
Aim:  To apply best practice in corporate governance thereby reducing risks and improving performance of the NCTA  

Strategy actions Performance targets actual Performance
accounting and 
auditing

Employ high qual-
ity accounting and 
auditing practices

Appoint accounting firm to pre-
pare annual statements 

Achieved.

Appoint internal audit com-
mittee, arrange meetings, draft 
charter

Appoint internal audit committee Audit Committee appointed in 
November 2011. 

Prepare for annual audit 100% compliance with proce-
dures

Achieved.

Engage auditor General to Un-
dertake annual audit

Unqualified audit reports Achieved. 

Strategic planning

Plan effectively

Develop 3-year strategic plan Plan approved by Board and DTEC New plan adopted by board and 
DEDAT.

Board meetings

Manage and 
arrange regular 
Board and Exco 
meetings

Arrange quarterly Board meet-
ings

Timeous submission and follow 
up 

Board meetings held Bi-monthly

Arrange Monthly eXCO meetings Timeous submission and follow 
up

Monthly EXCO meetings held as 
required.

reporting

Report on perfor-
mance as required

Draft and submit reports to DteC Comply performance agreement ¼ reports submitted as required. 

Produce a high-quality annual 
report

Acclaimed annual report on time Annual report tabled to legislature 
as required.

Project support

Support for project 
implementation 

Project fees 

Fees for implementation of spe-
cial projects 

Effective implementation of 
projects 

Projects managed in accordance 
with prescripts.

risk management

Institute proce-
dures to manage 
and reduce risks

Review  financial procedures 
manual and delegations and 
update 

Sound financial procedures 
manual

Financial policies& delegations 
adopted by the new board of 
directors.

Completion of asset register and 
compliance with Audit require-
ments 

Annual verification of assets Asset register updated with all 
purchases.

Devise risk management strat-
egy

Complete strategy Risk assessment completed with 
the help of provincial treasury. 
Reviewed on a continuous basis. 

Manage potential risks e.g. 
monthly printing of staff  tele-
phone  printout

Effective control of identified 
risks. 

Developed policies and proce-
dures to minimise risks during day 
to day operations.
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introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Northern Cape Tourism Authority, set out on pages 62 to 108 which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 
assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999(Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA)  and for such internal control as the ac-
counting authority determines necessary to enable the preparation of  financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.I conducted my audit in accor-
dance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof 
and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-
statement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the  financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

opinion

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Northern Cape Tour-
ism Authority as at 31 March 2012, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

emphasis of matter 

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2011 have been restated as a result 
of errors discovered during 2012 in the financial statements of the Northern Cape Tourism Authority at, and for the year ended, 
31 March 2011.

RepoRT of The AuDiToR-GeneRAl To The pRoVinCiAl leGiSlATuRe on The AnnuAl finAnCiAl STATemenTS of 
noRTheRn CApe TouRiSm AuThoRiTy

RepoRT on The finAnCiAl STATemenTS 
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RepoRT on oTheR leGAl AnD ReGulAToRy ReQuiRemenTS 

In accordance with the PAA and the General notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to perfor-
mance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion.

predetermined objectives 

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual performance 
report of the Northern Cape Tourism Authority as set out on pages XX to XX of the annual report. 

9. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned 
objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, 
verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing 
programme performance information.

10. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects 
the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).

The material finding is as follows:

usefulness of information

Consistency

Changes to planned objective, indicators and targets

11. As per the National Treasury Guide for the preparation of the annual report, changes to objectives, indicators and targets as 
contained in the approved annual performance plan must be disclosed and explained. In total, 25% of changes to the ob-
jectives, indicators and targets of the approved annual performance plan for the year under review were not disclosed and 
explained. This was due to the entity obtaining approval for the projects and deliverables from the board or relevant authority, 
but they neglected to obtain approval for the adjustments to the indicators and targets.

Additional matter

12. I draw attention to the matter below. My conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Material adjustments to the annual performance report

13. Material misstatements in the annual performance report were identified during the audit, of which 75% were corrected by 
management.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

14. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding finan-
cial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters 
in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows: 

budget

15. The accounting authority did not comply with section 23(3) of the Northern Cape Tourism Entity Act, 2008 (Act No 5 of 2008) 
that requires the Entity to submit each year to the responsible Member a statement of the Entity’s estimated income and 
expenditure for requesting appropriation from the Provincial Legislature, in respect of the next ensuing financial year. The 
budget for 2011-2012 was only submitted to the Department of Economic Development and Tourism. 

www.experiencenortherncape.com
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Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports

16. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Prac-
tice (SA Standards of GRAP) as required by section 55(1) ((a) and) (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of provisions and 
trade and other payables were subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit 
opinion..

Audit committee

17. An audit committee was not in place for the whole financial year as required by section 77(c) of the Public Finance Manage-
ment Act  and Treasury Regulation 27.1.1 and 27.1.2 .

18. The audit committee did not meet at least twice a year, as required by section 77(b) of the Public Finance Management Act.

19. The audit committee did not review the 

• effectiveness of the internal audit function 

• annual work programme of the internal audit function 

• coordination between the internal audit function and the external auditors 

• reports of significant investigations issued by the internal audit function 

• responses from management to specific recommendations 

• risk areas of the entity’s operations covered in the scope of internal and external audits 

• effectiveness of the internal control systems 

• accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audits

as required by Treasury Regulation 27.1.8(a), (b), (c), (e) and (g).

20. The audit committee did not review the institution’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions, as required by Treasury 
Regulation 27.1.8(f).

internal audit

21. The accounting authority did not ensure that the internal audit function was established, as required by section 51(1)(a)(ii) of 
the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations 27.2.2 and 27.2.3

human resource management and compensation

22. The Entity did not adhere to the requirements of section 19 (3) of the Northern Cape Tourism Entity Act, 2008 (Act No 5 of 2008) 
that require the Entity to, with the concurrence of the Provincial Treasury, determine the remuneration, allowances and staff 
benefits.  

Asset management

23. Transactions were entered into which caused the bank account to go into overdraft without Ministerial approval, in contraven-
tion of section 66(4) of the PFMA. 

internal control

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance with 
laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant defi-
ciencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

leadership

24. Management did not take corrective action on the following internal control deficiencies identified during our prior year 
audit: 

• drafting and implementation of a revenue management policy

• drafting and implementation of a performance management policy

• implementation of a system for effective control over revenue and receivables.
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25. There is a lack of controls around the IT infrastructure and system currently in place. Various weaknesses in the IT system were 

identified during the audit. The entity has developed and adopted a business continuity plan and a backup policy that ad-
dresses some of the weaknesses identified by the audit team.  

financial and performance management

26. Audit identified a lack of proper review of revenue records for the accurate classification of amounts received, monthly bank 
reconciliations and journal transactions. 

Governance

27. The accounting authority did not ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identi-
fies internal control deficiencies and recommends corrective action effectively. The main reason is due to the fact that the 
audit committee was only appointed in November 2011.

Kimberley

17 August  2012
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STATEMENT OF MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITY

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records
and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all
financial records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet these
responsibilities, the accounting authority sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2013 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

Although the accounting authority are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the
entity's external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the entity's external auditors and their report is presented on page 6.

The financial statements set out on pages 4 to 43, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the accounting authority on 31 May 2012 and were signed on its behalf by:

KJ Phentela (Chairperson)
Designation

Place of signature

31 May 2012
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MEMBERS REPORT

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2012.

1. INCORPORATION

The entity was established on 1 April 2010 in terms of the Northern Cape Tourism Entity Act, No. 5 of 2008. The entity is listed
as a Schedule 3C Public Entity, in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999.

2. REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Main business and operations

The entity is engaged in advancement of tourism in the Northern Cape and operates principally in South Africa.

The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our
opinion require any further comment.

Net deficit of the entity was R 81,732 (2011: deficit R 1,833,382), 

3. GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2012, the entity had accumulated deficits of R (475,335) and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R (475,335).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependant on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
or operations. The Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to
liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

5. MEMBERS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

The accounting authority and key management of the entity did not have any interest in contracts entered into during the year
under review.

6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following General Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) Standards have been issued but is not yet effective, the entity
did not early adopt this Standards.

GRAP 20: Related Party Disclosure, issued June 2011;
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting, issued February 2011;                    
GRAP 25: Employee benefits, issued November 2009;
GRAP 105: Transfer of functions between entities under common control, issued November 2010;
GRAP 106: Transfer of functions between entities not under common control, issued November 2010;
GRAP 107: Mergers, issued November 2010.

The Minister of Finance announced that the application of GRAP 21, GRAP 23, GRAP 24, GRAP 26, GRAP 103, GRAP 104
will be effective for reporting periods commencing after 01 April 2012. All other standards as listed above will only be effective
when a date is announced by the Minister of Finance.

The entity developed their accounting policies for; Non - Exchange Revenue based on GRAP 23, Revenue from Non -
Exchange Transactions and GRAP 105, Transfer of funnctions between entities under common control.

4
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MEMBERS REPORT

7. TRANSFER OUT OF FUNCTIONS - WITSAND NATURE RESERVE

On 01 April 2011 the entity transferred a function (Witsand Nature Reserve) to the Northern Cape Economic Development,
Trade and Investment Promotions Agency (NCEDA). With the transfer of functions, the entity transferred all assets, liabilities
and management functions of the Nature Reserve to NCEDA. Disclose in Note 28, the transfer of functions between entities
under common control.

8. ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality
KJ Phentela (Chairperson) South - African
B Bopape (Deputy Chairperson) South - African
A Vass South - African
RJ Williams South - African
JN Jansen van Vuuren South - African
RM Loko South - African
E van Wyk South - African

9. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the entity for the whole of the financial year under review was, Ms. S Lewis. .

Business address
14 Dalham Road
Belgravia
Kimberley
8300

10. CONTROLLING ENTITY

The Executive Authority of the entity is the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism, MEC J Block.

11. AUDITORS

Auditor -General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2012 2011
Note(s) R R

ASSETS

Current Assets

Inventories 3 - 35,961

Receivables from Exchange Transactions 4 517,717 32,783

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,030,215 5,167,325

Other financial assets 23 112,500 112,500

1,660,432 5,348,569

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 6 604,328 715,050

Intangible assets 7 123,310 23,799

727,638 738,849

Non-Current Assets 727,638 738,849

Current Assets 1,660,432 5,348,569
Total Assets 2,388,070 6,087,418

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 25 50,239 59,125

Trade and other Payables and Projects from Exchange Transactions 8 1,640,765 4,924,537

Unspend conditional grants on Projects 9 1 519,914

Trade and other Payables from Non - Exchange Transactions 26 124,927 -

1,815,932 5,503,576

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 25 46,596 82,295

Provisions 9 1,000,877 853,323

1,047,473 935,618

Non-Current Liabilities 1,047,473 935,618

Current Liabilities 1,815,932 5,503,576
Total Liabilities 2,863,405 6,439,194

Assets 2,388,070 6,087,418

Liabilities (2,863,405) (6,439,194)
Net Assets (475,335) (351,776)

NET ASSETS

Accumulated surplus (475,335) (351,776)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2012 2011
Note(s) R R

Revenue

Revenue from Non - Exchange Transactions

Government grants & subsidies 13.1 15,615,000 14,266,000

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Advertising campaign contributions 13.2 15,568,936 20,094,463

Management fee - Poverty alleviation projects 34,635 -

Foreign exchange gain - 1,089

Recoveries 5,082 -

Insurance claim received 10,143 19,335

Accomodation & entrance fee - 2,466,978

Interest received 14 92,482 57,916

Total Revenue 31,326,278 36,905,781

Expenditure

Employee cost 16 (5,711,231) (5,936,056)

Depreciation and amortisation 6 (108,839) (203,109)

Finance costs 15 (18,816) (15,186)

Debt impairment (103,161) 2,805

Repairs and maintenance (13,297) (83,749)

General Expenses 2 (25,452,666) (32,503,868)

Total Expenditure (31,408,010) (38,739,163)

Revenue 31,326,278 36,905,781

Expenditure (31,408,010) (38,739,163)

Other - -

Deficit for the year (81,732) (1,833,382)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Accumulated
surplus

Total net
assets

R R

Balance at 01 April 2010 1,503,038 1,503,038
Changes in net assets
Prior period Errors (Refer to Note 29) (21,432) (21,432)

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets (21,432) (21,432)
Surplus for the year (Restated) (1,833,382) (1,833,382)

Total recognised income and expenses for the year (1,854,814) (1,854,814)
- -

Total changes (1,854,814) (1,854,814)

Balance at 01 April 2011 (351,776) (351,776)
Changes in net assets
Transfer to NCEDA Witsand Nature Reserve (Refer to Note 28) (41,827) (41,827)

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets (41,827) (41,827)
Surplus for the year (81,732) (81,732)

Total recognised income and expenses for the year (123,559) (123,559)

Total changes (123,559) (123,559)

Balance at 31 March 2012 (475,335) (475,335)

Refer to Note 10; Included in the accumulated surplus is an amount of R346 285 that was set aside as a "Special Fund" for the
Witsand Nature Reserve. The fund have been transferred as part of the transfer of functions, refer to note 28.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2012 2011
Note(s) R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Cash receipts from customers 30,645,701 37,215,635

Interest income 92,482 57,916

30,738,183 37,273,551

Payments

Cash Paid to Suppliers & Employees (34,535,419) (35,394,427)

Finance costs (18,816) (15,186)

Other cash item (124,843) -

(34,679,078) (35,409,613)

Total receipts 30,738,183 37,273,551

Total payments (34,679,078) (35,409,613)

Net cash flows from operating activities 12 (3,940,895) 1,863,938

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (40,198) (79,619)

Purchase of other intangible assets 7 (111,430) (17,122)

Net cash flows from investing activities (151,628) (96,741)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance lease payments (44,587) (39,537)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,137,110) 1,727,660

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,167,325 3,439,665

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 1,030,215 5,167,325

9
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention unless specified otherwise. 

10
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below.

The following GRAP Standards have been issued and are effective: 
GRAP 1 Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2 Cash flow statements
GRAP 3 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
GRAP 4 The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
GRAP 5 Borrowing Cost
GRAP 6 Consolidated and separate financial statements 
GRAP 7 Investments in associates
GRAP 8 Interest in joint ventures
GRAP 9 Revenue from exchange transactions
GRAP 10 Financial reporting in a Hyperinflationary Economies
GRAP 11 Construction Contracts
GRAP 12 Inventories
GRAP 13 Leases
GRAP 14 Events after reporting date
GRAP 16 Investment property
GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and assets
GRAP 100 Non – current assets held for sale and Discontinued operationsGRAP 101 Agriculture
GRAP 102 Intangible assets
IPSAS 20 Related parties
IFRS 3 Business Combinations
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts
IFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of Mineral Resources
IFRS 7 Financial instrument disclosure
IAS 12 Taxes
IAS 19 Employee Benefits
IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation
IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement
SIC 20 Income taxes – Recovery of revaluated Non – depreciated assets
SIC 25 Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax status of an entity or its shareholders
IFRIC 2      Members shares in Co – operative Entities and similar instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining whether a arrangement contains a leases
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction
IFRIC 15 Agreement for the construction of Real Estate
IFRIC 16 Hedges in net investments in a foreign operation.

Standards, Amendments to Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the entity:

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosure - issued June 2011;
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued February 2011; 
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits - issued November 2009;
GRAP 105 Transfer of Funtions between Entities under Common Control - issued November 2010; 
GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entities not under Common Control - issued November 2010 and 
GRAP 107 Mergers - issued November 2010.

The Minister of Finance announced that the application of GRAP 21, GRAP 23, GRAP 24, GRAP 26, GRAP 103, GRAP 104
will be effective for reporting periods commencing after 1 April 2012. All other standards as listed above will only be effective
when a date is announced by the Minister of Finance.

Nature of impending changes in accounting policy:
GRAP 21, Impairment of non - cash - generating units; GRAP 26, Impairment of cash generating units; GRAP 103, Heritages
Assets; GRAP 18, Segment Reporting; GRAP 105, Transfer of functions between entities under common control; GRAP 106,
Transfer of functions between entities not under common control; GRAP 107, Mergers. The effectiveness of this Standards will
not have an effect on the financial statements / accounting policies of the entity, as the entity do not have any related
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

transactions or activities that falls within the scope of these Standards.

GRAP 20, Related Party Disclosure, GRAP 25, Employee Benefits and GRAP 104 Financial Instruments: Accounting Policy will
be develop in terms of this Standards and GRAP 3, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors applied.

Impact on the entity's financial statements once implimented:  
GRAP 21, Impairment of non - cash - generating units; GRAP 26, Impairment of cash generating units; GRAP 103, Heritages
Assets; GRAP 18, Segment Reporting; GRAP 105, Transfer of functions between entities under common control; GRAP 106,
Transfer of functions between entities not under common control; GRAP 107, Mergers. The effectiveness of this Standards will
not have an impact financial statements of the entity, as the entity do not have any related transactions or activities that falls
within the scope of these Standards. 

There will be no material impact on the recognition, measurement and disclosure in the financial statements with the adoption
of GRAP 20, Related Party Disclosure, GRAP 25, Employee Benefits and GRAP 104 Financial Instruments. The adoption will
however result in a change in accounting policy and the relevant disclosure will be made in terms of GRAP 3, Accounting
Policy, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

1.1 Presentation Currency

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand rounded off to the nearest Rand, which is the
functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property,
plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

12
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life
Furniture and fixtures 12 years
Office equipment 10 years
IT equipment 5 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.4 Intangible assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:
 is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,

either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or
 arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate

from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the entity; and
 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software 5 years

1.5 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles
the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not
exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 21.

1.6 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

 It is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net

assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Loans and receivables Financial asset measured at fair value
Available for sale Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Finance lease obligations Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value].

The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity
analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The entity accounts for
that part of a concessionary loan that is:

 a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements,
where it is the issuer of the loan; or

 non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
 Financial instruments at fair value.
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.
 Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price
and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host
contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. This
requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from
cost to fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service
the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to be
received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing
obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the
carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial
liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses
are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers).
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets, net of any related income tax benefit
[where applicable]. Transaction costs incurred on residual interests is accounted for as a deduction from net assets, net of any
related income tax benefit [where applicable].

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.7 Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity has
complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions
or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

1.8 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
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1.8 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the tran€saction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends is recognised when:
 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,

and
 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.9 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.10 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the
service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

1.11 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.12 Related parties

Individuals as well as their close family members, and / or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
/ or operating decisions. Key management personnel is defined as the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and all
other managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer or as designated by the Chief Executive Officer.

1.13 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.14 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with

the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.15 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

1.16 Changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP
3 requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of
the change in policy. In such cases the public entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for
the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in
accounting estimates are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3
requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error. In such cases the public entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest
period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

1.17 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 
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1.18 Events after the reporting date

Recognised amounts in the financial statements are adjusted to reflect events arising after the balance sheet date that provide
evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date. Events after the balance sheet date that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the balance sheet date are dealt with by way of a note to the financial statements. 

1.19 Transfer of functions between entities under common control

Definitions 

An acquirer is the entity that obtains control of the acquiree or transferor.

Carrying amount of an asset or liability is the amount at which an asset or liability is recognised in the statement of financial
position.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to benefit from its activities.

A function is an integrated set of activities that is capable of being conducted and managed for purposes of achieving an
entity’s objectives, either by providing economic benefits or service potential.

A merger is the establishment of a new combined entity in which none of the former entities obtains control over any other and
no acquirer can be identified.

Transfer date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the function and the transferor loses control of that function.

A transfer of functions is the reorganisation and/or the re-allocation of functions between entities by transferring functions
between entities or into another entity.

A transferor is the entity that relinquishes control of a function.

Common control - For a transaction or event to occur between entities under common control, the transaction or event needs
to be undertaken between entities within the same sphere of government or between entities that are part of the same
economic entity. Entities that are ultimately controlled by the same entity before and after the transfer of functions are within the
same economic entity.

A function is an integrated set of activities that is capable of being conducted and managed for purposes of achieving an
entity‘s objectives, either by providing economic benefits or service potential. A function consists of inputs and processes
applied to those inputs that have the ability to create outputs. A function can either be a part or a portion of an entity or can
consist of the whole entity. Although functions may have outputs, outputs are not required to qualify as a function. The three
elements of a function are defined as follows:

 Input: Any resource that creates, or has the ability to create, outputs when one or more processes are applied to it.
 Process: Any system, standard, protocol, convention or rule that when applied to an input or inputs, creates or has

the ability to create outputs.
 Output: The result of inputs and processes applied to achieve and improve efficiency. This may be in the form of

achieving service delivery objectives, or the delivery of goods and/or services.

Identifying the acquirer and transferor 

For each transfer of functions between entities under common control an acquirer and transferor are identified.  All relevant
facts and circumstances are considered in identifying the acquirer and transferor.

The terms and conditions of a transfer of functions undertaken between entities under common control are set out in a binding
arrangement.  The binding arrangement governing the terms and conditions of a transfer of functions may identify which entity
to the transaction or event is the transferor(s) and which entity is the acquirer. Where the binding arrangement does not clearly
identify the acquirer or the transferor, the behaviour or actions of the entities may indicate which entity is the acquirer and which
entity is the transferor.

Determining the acquirer includes a consideration of, amongst other things, which of the entities involved in the transfer of
functions initiated the transaction or event, the relative size of the entities, as well as whether the assets or revenue of one of
the entities involved in the transaction or event significantly exceed those of the other entities. If no acquirer can be identified,
the transaction or event is accounted for in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Mergers.
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1.19 Transfer of functions between entities under common control (continued)

Determining the transfer date 

The acquirer and the transferor identify the transfer date, which is the date on which the acquirer obtains control and the
transferor loses control of that function.

All relevant facts and circumstances are considered in identifying the transfer date.

Assets acquired [transferred] and liabilities assumed [relinquished] 

The derecognition of assets and liabilities, is subject to the following conditions:

The assets transferred and the liabilities relinquished are part of what had been agreed in terms of the binding arrangement (if
applicable), rather than the result of separate transactions.

Determining what is part of the transfer of functions transaction 

Where the entity and the acquirer have a pre-existing relationship before or when negotiations for a transfer of functions began,
or where a binding arrangement is entered into during the negotiations that are separate from a transfer of functions, any
amounts that are not part of what were transferred in a transfer of functions are identified. This policy only applies to the
consideration transferred and the assets transferred and liabilities relinquished in a transfer of functions as governed by the
terms and conditions of the binding arrangement.

The following factors are considered, which are neither mutually exclusive nor individually conclusive, to determine whether a
transaction is part of a transfer or function or whether the transaction is separate:

 the reasons for the transaction
 the timing of the transaction

Effective settlement of a pre-existing relationship between the entity (as acquirer) and transferor in a transfer of functions 

A pre-existing relationship between the entity (as acquirer) and the transferor may be contractual or non-contractual.  If a
transfer of functions in effect settles a pre-existing relationship, the entity (as acquirer) recognises a gain or loss, measured as
follows:

 for a pre-existing non-contractual relationship, fair value.
 for a pre-existing contractual relationship, the lesser of the following:

- the amount by which the binding arrangement is favourable or unfavourable from the perspective of the entity
(as acquirer) when compared with terms for current market transactions for the same or similar items.
- the amount of any stated settlement provisions in the binding arrangement available to the counterparty to
whom the contract is unfavourable.

If the latter is less, the difference is included as part of a transfer of functions accounting. The amount of gain or loss
recognised may depend in part on whether the entity (as acquirer) had previously recognised a related asset or liability, and the
reported gain or loss therefore may differ from the amount calculated by applying the above requirements.

Accounting by the entity as transferor 

Derecognition of assets transferred and liabilities relinquished 

As of the transfer date, the entity derecognises from its financial statements, all the assets transferred and liabilities
relinquished in a transfer of functions at their carrying amounts.

Until the transfer date, the entity continues to measure these assets and liabilities in accordance with applicable Standards of
GRAP.

The consideration received from the acquirer can be in the form of cash, cash equivalents or other assets. If the consideration
received is in the form of other assets, the entity measures such assets at their fair value on the transfer date in accordance
with the applicable Standard of GRAP. The difference between the carrying amounts of the assets transferred, the liabilities
relinquished and the consideration received from the acquirer is recognised in accumulated surplus or deficit.
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1.20 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to
the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The entity follows the guidance of IAS 39 to determine when an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the entity evaluates, among other factors, the duration
and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and
financing cash flow.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were considered significant or prolonged, the entity would suffer an additional
deficit of R - in its 2012 financial statements, being a reclassification adjustment of the fair value adjustments previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity on the impaired available-for-sale financial assets to
surplus or deficit.

Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is tested on an annual basis for impairment. Assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are
indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.
Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and
could materially change over time. 

Contingent provisions on entity combinations

Contingencies recognised in the current year required estimates and judgments.

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.21 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.
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1.21 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy
the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.22 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all deficits of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1.22 Cost of sales (continued)

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.

1.23 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.24 Budget information

Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the
statement of financial performance and the budget have been included in the financial statements. Refer to note 33.

Comparative information is not required.
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2012 2011
R R

2. OPERATING EXPENSES

Detail of operating expenditure
Marketing and advertising 22,960,399 29,369,864
Cost of sales - 230,196
General expenses
General expenses 47,799 108,193
Assessment rates & municipal charges -Third party 43,143 45,757
Bank charges 27,675 51,162
Cleaning 358 70,837
Insurance - Related party 35,664 118,182
IT expenses 73,197 30,389
Lease rentals on operating lease 456,596 404,485
Magazines, books and periodicals 1,292 -
Postage and courier 11,466 10,470
Printing and stationery 45,725 53,984
Damages and losses 7,640 -
Security costs 4,195 3,008
HR and organizational development 276,400 369,325
Subscriptions and membership fees 12,491 11,524
Telephone and fax 266,128 267,561
Training 46,260 22,889
Travel and accomodation 71,843 72,510
Annual report 59,794 97,844
Board and sub-committe expenses 761,145 604,663
Poverty Alleviation  Projects - 14,749
Audit and other fees 243,456 254,219
Replacements - 32,808
Uniforms - 4,386
Catering - 74,839
Laundry services - 74,506
Entertainment - 3,338
Motor vehicle expenses - 68,688
Commission paid - 33,492

25,452,666 32,503,868

3. INVENTORIES

Consumables - 35,961

The inventory as dislcosed in the comparative information was transferred to NCEDA, as part of the Transfer of functions
between entities under common control. Refer to Note 28 for the transfer of function.

4. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Deposits - Rent 32,780 32,780
Trade receivables (103,160) 3
Other receivables 583,170 -
Prepaid expenses 4,927 -

517,717 32,783

Trade and other receivables pledged as security

No Trade and other receivables were pledged as security during the financial year.

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for trade and other receivables approximate fair value due to the short time
period between initiation and settlement thereof. The effect of discounting is not material. 
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2012 2011
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4. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Trade and other receivables’ carrying value equal its fair values.

The entity’s trade receivables are stated after allowances for doubtful debts. An analysis of the trade and receivables are as
follows:

Opening Balance 32,782 153,480
Provision for impairment - current year movement (103,161) (120,700)
Transfer of Witsand Nature Reserve Employee loan (1) -
Movement Trade and receivables - Current year 588,097 -

Closing Balance 517,717 32,782

On 01 April 2011 the entity transferred Witsand Nature Reserve to the NCEDA. A loan of R30 700 and impairment of R30 699
was transferred from trade and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 4 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2012, R -
(2011: R -) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

3 months past due 588,097 -

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2012, trade and other receivables of R 90,000 (2011: R 90,000) were impaired and provided for.

The amount of the provision was R (193,161) as of 31 March 2012 (2011: R (120,700)).

The ageing of these loans is as follows:

Over 6 months 193,161 120,700

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 517,717 32,782

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 120,700 120,700
Provision for impairment 103,161 -
Impairment provision Witsand Receivable transferred (30,700) -

193,161 120,700

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 650 1,728
Bank balances 1,029,565 4,645,684
Short-term deposits - 519,913

1,030,215 5,167,325

Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity that are available for use by the
economic entity

1,030,216 5,167,325
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2012 2011

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Furniture and fixtures 433,559 (55,200) 378,359 1,570,367 (1,135,099) 435,268
Motor vehicles - - - 252,653 (247,430) 5,223
Office equipment 241,161 (98,309) 142,852 343,812 (137,636) 206,176
IT equipment 117,614 (34,497) 83,117 99,077 (30,694) 68,383

Total 792,334 (188,006) 604,328 2,265,909 (1,550,859) 715,050

Included in property plant and equipment are fully depreciated assets which are still in use. These assets are disclosed, per
category, at gross value, as follows: 

The property plant and equipment that was fully depreciated in the prior year was transferred to NCEDA on 01 April 2011 as
part of the Transfer of functions between entities under common control - Witsand Nature Reserve. Refer to Note 28.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Computer Hardware - 17,776
Office Equipment - 77,410
Furniture & Fittings - 834,738
Motor Vehicles - 247,203

- 1,177,127

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012

Opening
balance

Additions Derecognise Transfer out
Witsand
Nature

Reserve

Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 435,268 - (1) (28,982) (27,926) 378,359
Motor vehicles 5,223 - - (5,223) - -
Office equipment 206,176 - (1,646) (12,155) (49,523) 142,852
IT equipment 68,383 40,198 (3,169) - (22,295) 83,117

715,050 40,198 (4,816) (46,360) (99,744) 604,328

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2011

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer in
Section 21
Company

Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures - - 565,112 (129,844) 435,268
Motor vehicles - 8,500 - (3,277) 5,223
Office equipment - 39,399 219,660 (52,883) 206,176
IT equipment - 31,720 49,581 (12,918) 68,383

- 79,619 834,353 (198,922) 715,050

Pledged as security

Finance lease assets with a carrying value of R90 464 (R135 696: 2010/11) have been pledged for security for the finance
lease obligation as disclosed in note 24.
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Office equipment 90,464 135,696

A register containing the information required by the Public Finance Management Act is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2012 2011

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Computer software 135,228 (11,918) 123,310 44,630 (20,831) 23,799

Included in intangible assets are fully depreciated assets which are still in used. These assets are disclosed, per category, at
their gross value as follows: 

The fully depreciated intangible assets as disclosed in the prior year have been transferred to NCEDA, as part of the Transfer
of Functions between Entities under Commom Control, Witsand Nature Reserve.

Computer Software - 16,644

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2012

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Amortisation Total

Computer software 23,799 111,430 (2,821) (9,098) 123,310

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2011

Opening
balance

Additions Transfer in
from Section
21 Company

Amortisation Total

Computer software - 17,122 10,864 (4,187) 23,799

Pledged as security

No intangible assets were pledged as security during the year under review.

Prior Period Errors

Property, plant and Equipment received in prior years at no nominal consideration have been fair valued on 01 April 2010. The
adjustment to Property, Plant and Equipment was done retrospectively, refer to Note 29 on "Prior Period Errors". 

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROJECTS FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables 1,345,944 4,138,567
Other payables 774 411,535
Short term Employee Benefit: Thirteen Cheque 104,162 113,274
Short term Employee Benefit: Leave 189,885 261,161

1,640,765 4,924,537
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8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROJECTS FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for trade and other payables approximate fair value due to the short time
period between initiation and settlement thereof. The effect of discounting is not material.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 1,640,765 4,924,537

9. PROVISIONS

Reconciliation of provisions - 2012

Opening
Balance

Additions Total

Employee benefit cost 853,323 147,554 1,000,877

Reconciliation of provisions - 2011

Opening
Balance

Additions Total

Employee benefit cost 823,453 29,870 853,323

10. UNSPEND CONDITIONAL GRANTS ON PROJECTS

Reconciliation of unspend funds
Access Road to Kgalagadi Transfrontier Park
Opening Balance 519,914 520,761
Expenses incurred (519,913) (847)

1 519,914

The purpose of this project is to upgrade the existing access road from Andriesvale to the Kgalagadi Transfrontier Park into a
low cost road.  The project is managed on behalf of DEAT and commenced on 2 February 2004.  The planned completion date
is 31 March 2011 and the beneficiary of this project is the Siyanda District Municipality.  The total grant allocation for the project
is R38 000 000

11. SPECIAL FUNDS

NCTA - Eco Tourism Fund 346,285 346,285
Transferred to Northern Cape Economic Development Agency (346,285) -

Total Special Funds - 346,285

The special funds that forms part of the accumulated surplus of the entity was transferred to the NCEDA on 01 April 2011, as
part of a transfer of function, refer to Note 28.

34

www.experiencenortherncape.com

AnnuAl RepoRt 2011/2012



100100
Northern Cape Tourism Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
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12. CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Deficit (81,732) (1,833,382)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 108,839 203,109
Finance costs - Finance leases 18,816 15,186
Debt impairment 103,161 (2,805)
Interest received (92,482) (57,915)
Movements in provisions 140,535 95,979
Other non-cash items 7,640 -
Changes in working capital:
Inventories - (173)
Receivables from Exchange Transactions (588,095) 370,576
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - 61,195
Trade and other Payables and Projects from Exchange Transactions (3,512,992) 3,013,016
Unspend conditional grants on Projects - (848)
Finance lease obligations (44,585) -

(3,940,895) 1,863,938

13. REVENUE: NON - EXCHANGE AND EXCHANGE REVENUE

12.1 Government Grants and Subsidies
Department of Economic Development and Tourism 15,370,000 13,955,000
Frances Baard District Municipality 145,000 135,000
Kgalagadi District Municipality - 76,000
Namakwa District Municipality 100,000 100,000

Total Non - Exchange Revenue 15,615,000 14,266,000

13.2 Advertising Campaing Contributions

Income - Sports Tourism Exchange 150,000 -
Income - Festive Season Campaign - 45,000
DEDT Partnership Projects 1,515,126 580,000
Income- Namibia 20,422 70,544
Income - Indaba 730,325 530,793
Income - Getaway 42,975 62,145
Income - Dressing KBY 2010 - 216,720
Contr. Advert Campaign - District 60,000 60,000
Income - 50Day Carnival - 2,400,000
Income Maloof Cup 12,313,929 15,989,089
Income SETA 24,707 17,332
Income ITB - 165,000
Income Meetings Africa - 50,000
Income: Benefit Concert - Ticket 701,451 -
Income Tourism Month 10,000 -
Host VIP S - 3,000
Other - (95,161)

Total Exchange Revenue from Advertising and campaing contributions 15,568,936 20,094,462

14. INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest revenue
Bank 92,482 57,916

- -
92,482 57,916
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15. FINANCE COSTS

Finance leases 18,816 15,186

16. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Basic Salary 3,915,549 3,940,600
Bonus - 58,414
Medical aid - company contributions 113,767 104,249
UIF 22,501 24,339
SDL 47,051 45,296
Leave pay provision charge 129,080 86,934
Provident fund 755,363 789,557
Bonusses 309,828 230,885
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 42,562 52,374
Car allowance 99,436 230,105
Housing benefits and allowances 65,600 51,500
Honorarium Boardmembers 83,188 130,555
Performance Bonus 127,306 120,158
Casual Wages - 71,090

5,711,231 5,936,056
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17. REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT

Chief Executive Officer
Basic Salary 715,338 520,591
Bonus 55,132 43,383
Housing Allowance - 3,500
Travel Allowance - 99,546
Cash Allowance 78,709 43,619
Provident Fund Contributions 168,745 144,855
Medical Aid Contributions 43,724 38,613

1,061,648 894,107

Chief Financial Officer
Basic Salary 361,878 354,437
Bonus 55,580 51,536
Travel Allowance 6,993 16,500
Cash Allowance 104,060 76,779
Provident Fund Contributions 91,533 94,382

620,044 593,634

General Manager - Marketing
Basic Salary 478,047 119,650
Bonus 36,517 -
Travel Allowance 34,863 6,859
Cash Allowance 6,864 1,578
Provident Fund Contributions 121,922 32,726

678,213 160,813

General Manager - Mice
Basic Salary 361,878 354,437
Bonus 55,580 29,313
Travel Allowance 103,015 72,000
Cash Allowance 32,060 21,279
Provident Fund Contributions 91,533 94,382

644,066 571,411

Financial Manager
Basic Salary 314,548 308,558
Bonus 48,316 44,800
Housing Allowance - 3,500
Travel Allowance 25,651 35,200
Cash Allowance 90,459 45,887
Medial Contributions 24,604 21,712
Provident Fund Contributions 79,569 82,046

583,147 541,703

18. RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2012 2011
Trade and other Receivables from Exchange transactions 517,717 32,783
Cash and cash equivalents 1,030,216 5,167,325
Short term loans 112,500 112,500

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 31 March 2012 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables (Exchange Transactions) 1,640,765 - - -
Finance lease obligations 50,239 46,596 - -
Trade and other payables Non - Exchange
Transactions

124,927 - - -

At 31 March 2011 Less than 1
year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years

Trade and other payables (Exchange Transactions) 5,777,860 - - -
Unspend conditional grants (Projects) 519,914 - - -
Finance lease obligations 59,125 82,295 - -

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The entity is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

The entity is not exposed to any price risk.
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19. COMMITMENTS

The following contracts and orders were approved before year end and are payable after year end :

COMMITMENTS
Contractual Commitments 2,330,699 2,429,048

20. RELATED PARTIES

`

Relationships
Board Members with significant influence Refer to members' report note
Controlling Department with significant influence Department of Economic Development and Tourism
Members of Key Management Refer to note 17
Entities under common control of controlling department Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and

Investment Promotions Agency

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions
Agency (Amount receivable in terms of Transfer of Functions of Witsand Nature
Reserve 01 April 2011)

112,500 -

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions
Agency (Amounts payable in terms of Transfer of function Witsand Nature
Reserve 01 April 2011)

(124,927) -

Related party transactions

Revenue from Related parties
Grants - Depertment of Economic Development and Tourism 15,370,000 13,955,000
Partnership projects 1,515,126 580,000

Transactions with Board of Directors
Remuneration 110,125 143,625
Travel And Subsistence 172,916 211,128
Good's and Services 118,419 -

Compensation to Key Management
Salary & Employee Benefits 3,033,815 2,360,188

Transfer of function between entities under common control
Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions
Agency (Assets transfered on 01 April 2011)

(332,094) -

Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment Promotions
Agency (Liabilities transfered on 01 April 2011)

290,267 -

21. CONTINGENCIES

The entity do not have any contingent assets or liabilities on 31 March 2012, that will require disclosure in terms of GRAP 19,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

22. WORLD CUP EXPENDITURE

Distributions of tickets acquired after year-
end 

Quantity 2012 Quantity 2011

Accounting authority - executive - - 2 1,120
Other employees - - 20 11,200
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22. WORLD CUP EXPENDITURE (continued)

- - 22 12,320

Travel costs
Other Employees - 21,635

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables
Loan: Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment
Promotions Agency (Witsand Nature Reserve)
The loan bears no interest and have to be repaid within the next 12 months.

112,500 112,500

112,500 112,500

112,500 112,500

Current assets
Loans and receivables 112,500 112,500
Non-current assets - -
Current assets 112,500 112,500

The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet for financial assets approximate fair value due to the short time period
between initiation and settlement thereof. The effect of discounting is not material.

Fair values of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables 112,500 112,500

Loans and receivables past due but not impaired

Loans and receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2012, R 112,500
(2011: R 112,500) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

+3 months past due 112,500 112,500

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 112,500 112,500

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2012

Loans and
receivables

Available-for-
sale

Total

Trade and other receivables 517,717 - 517,717
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,030,216 1,030,216
Short term loan 112,500 - 112,500

630,217 1,030,216 1,660,433
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY (continued)

2011

Loans and
receivables

Available-for-
sale

Total

Trade and other receivables 32,782 - 32,782
Cash and cash equivalents - 5,167,325 5,167,325
Short term loans 112,500 - 112,500

145,282 5,167,325 5,312,607

25. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 59,149 59,148
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 49,291 108,440

108,440 167,588
less: future finance charges (11,605) (26,168)

Present value of minimum lease payments 96,835 141,420

Non-current liabilities 46,596 82,295
Current liabilities 50,239 59,125

96,835 141,420

It is entity policy to lease certain office equipment under finance leases. 

The average lease term was 5 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% (2011: 10%). 

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangement have been entered
into for contingent rent. 

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES NON - EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

The trade payable is due to the transfer of function of Witsand Nature Reserve to the Northern Cape Economic Development,
Trade and Investment Promotions Agency.
Payable: Northern Cape Economic Development, Trade and Investment
Promotions Agency (Witsand Nature Reserve)

124,956 -

124,956 -

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of Trade payables approximate their fair value.

27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2012

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Finance lease obligation 96,835 96,835
Trade and other payables (Exchange) 1,640,765 1,640,765
Trade and other payables (Non - Exchange) 124,927 124,927

1,862,527 1,862,527
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27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (continued)

2011

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost

Total

Finance lease obligation 141,420 141,420
Trade and other payables 5,777,860 5,777,860
Unspend conditional grants on projects 519,914 519,914

6,439,194 6,439,194

28. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit fees 191,871 170,475
Accounting and other expenditure 51,585 83,744

243,456 254,219

29. TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS BETWEEN ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL
On 01 April 2011 the entity transferred all the functions of Witsand Nature Reserve to NCEDA. With the transfer of functions
various assets and liabilities were transferred.

Carrying value of items transferred
Property, plant and equipment (46,360) -
Intangible assets (1) -
Loans and receivables (1) -
Other payables 216,898 -
Leave and Thirteen cheque provisions 73,369 -
Inventories (35,961) -
Cash and cash equivalents (249,771) -

Amount transferred to Accumulated surplus (41,827) -

Consideration received

30. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets were fair valued on 01 April 2010, which included an assessment of the
useful life's of assets. The entity received the assets from the former Section 21 Company at no nominal consideration. The
effect of the restatement resulted in an adjustment of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
and an adjustment in depreciation and amortisation, the error was retrospectively corrected.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Effect of prior period errors on the Nett surplus / loss
Nett loss as previously disclosed (2,065,706)
Prior period error 232,324

Nett loss 31 March 2011 - Restated (1,833,382)

Effect of prior period errors on the Accumulated surplus
Accumulated surplus 01 April 2010 as previously disclosed 1,156,753
Prior period Error (21,432)

Accumulated surplus 01 April 2010 - Restated 1,135,321
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30. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS (continued)

Financial Position
Property, plant and Equipment
Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - (previously) 724,925
Prior period error - 01 April 2010 (23,099)

Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - Restated 701,826

Intangible Assets
Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - (previously) 9,197
Prior period Errors - 01 April 2010 1,667

Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - Restated 10,864

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation and amortisation 31 March 2011 - (previously) 329,884
Prior period Error 235,742

Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - Restated 94,142

Office maintenance
Office furniture maintenance 31 March 2011 (previously) (421)
Statement of Financial Performance 3,417

Balance disclosed 31 March 2011 - Restated 2,996

31. GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2012, the entity had accumulated deficits of R (475,335) and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R (475,335).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no adjusting or non - adjusting events identified after 31 March 2012.

33. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN BUDGET AND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance:

Net deficit per the statement of financial performance (81,732) (1,833,382)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation 108,839 203,109
Provision for Leave 135,736 86,933
Provision for Bonus 14,058 24,911
Provision for Bad Debts 103,161 -

Net surplus (deficit) per approved budget 280,062 (1,518,429)
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